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essage to ow shareholders

In the story of First Community Corporation 2012

Ii forever be noted as special year It was year ir

whch your company not only exceeded many financial

large -s but also accomplished number of important

strategic objectives that have set course for growth

It



The highlight of the year was total return

of 38.1 percent to you our shareholders

through combination of increased share

value and cash dividends As you will see

later in this report this total return exceeded

relevant banking industry and general market

performance We are also pleased to report

that earnings available to shareholders

increased by 24.0 percent to $3.3 million from

$2.7 million in the prior year While pleased

with this progress we will remain focused

on further improvement in this result

It was also year in which our planning and

work to diversify sources of revenue paid

handsome results Customer sources of non-

interest income increased by 30.3 percent led

by our residential mortgage line of business

which produced $4.2 million in revenue

more than twice that of the prior year This

success enabled your company to continue to

grow revenue in the face of the headwinds of

net interest margin compression experienced

by the financial industry With customer driven

non-interest income representing 33 percent

of total revenue our model provides the

opportunity for long-term revenue growth

It is also important to recognize significant

accomplishments on our balance sheet

Pure deposits including cash management

grew nicely during the year at 11.7 percent

This helped drive down our overall cost of

deposits from 84 basis points in December

2011 to 53 basis points in December 2012

We are also pleased to report that for

the first time since 2009 we experienced

growth in our loan portfolio At 2.4 percent

increase we sense some positive trends

in credit demand and are working hard to

appropriately
underwrite and price these

opportunities All of this has occurred with

the risk levels in our loan portfolio continuing

to be strength of the company Non-

performing assets ended the year declining

to modest level of 1.45 percent and net

loan charge-offs were only 17 basis points

As noted in last years annual report we

continued to actively monitor the capital

markets to determine the optimal window

to access the equity markets In July 2012

we completed very
successful issuance

of common stock in the gross amount of

$15.0 million The offering was more than

three times oversubscribed with blend of

institutional and retail investors The proceeds

were used to redeem the preferred
shares

issued in the TARP-CPP program repurchase

the warrants associated with those preferred

shares and
repay

subordinated debt

issuance The result is thatyour company has

strong and high quality capital position In

January 2013 we announced an increase in the

cash dividend foryou our valued shareholders

This past year was indeed great one

Now we look ahead with renewed spirit and

extra energy in our step We see opportunities

for organic growth in all three lines of

business commercial and retail banking

residential mortgage banking and financial

planning/investment advisory services We

see opportunities for new banking offices

and targeted acquisitions As the largest

community bank in the Midlands of South

Carolina we have the talent capital credit

quality and diversified earnings
model to

move forward from position
of strength

We promise to work hard and thought

fully every day to optimize your long-term

return as shareholder while providing

safe and sound investment

Thank you foryour trust and for

your continued support

/14

Mike Crapps

PRESiDENT AND CEO
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model that sets us apart

It became clear to us that in this changed economic and

regulatory environment diversification of revenue was

top priority We believed wider and more stable business

model would best serve First Community in the future we

were certain that in making that shift it was vital to stay

trueto our style of customerfirst community banking

Our answer came in listening to them

\çluufoi theJL Lure

So rather than attempting to generate diversified revenue through

increased fees for existing products conventional banking wisdom

at the time we enhanced our mortgage and financial planning

lines of business to provide new services our customers would

value While margin will be built overtime in these expanded offer

ings 2012 confirmed our belief in this broader banking model

Customer-driven non-interest income reached $8.5 million Most

impressive is the success of our mortgage division with total loan

production of $140 million and total revenue of $4.2 million an

increase of 115 percent over 2011 and 310 percent over 2010



wrfu1 story ot momentum

ret ome avai able to common sharth olders for the corporation was

By 2011 that number had more than doubled to $21 mfllion Were

rport 2012 saw another notabe increase to $3.3 miflion Ths positive

.rcrd sign
ifica for many reasons which makes it key indicator

an strength stability and potential for growth

noted that numbe of factors contributed to this success but it

ucd revenue govth 38 percent or 926000 We are conf

fo us liversified revenue streams as evidenced by the contributiors

pai
dcd mortgage and financial panning lines changed banking
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Loan growth was an interesting if somewhat

unexpected part of the years story The

first three quarters remained flat no doubt

reflection of ongoing challenge in the

marketplace But the fourth quarter of the

year came on strong remarkably allowing

us to meet budget for loan growth for the

year at 2.40 percent or $7.8 million resulting

in total commercial and retail production

of $59.0 million While we expect to see the

pace
of commercial loan activity increase

as our local economy recovers we are

heartened by this uptick going into 2013

Of course any discussion about loans is

incomplete without look at loan quality

hallmark of our bank We have always been

conservative lenders practice that has

served us and quite frankly our customers

particularly well during these recent
years

of volatility Thats why we consistently

outperform peer banks in nearly every
loan

portfolio quality metric This year was no

exception with continued gains in every

category including net chargeoffs dropping

from $1.6 million in 2011 to $574000

ASSETS LOANS AND DEPOSITS MLLONS

ii ill

Deposits are another big story as we worked to enhance revenue while
strategically

limiting overall balance sheet growth We are pleased to report pure deposit growth

of 11.7 percent or $35.1 million well exceeding our goal for the year





customer need drives business

success drives investor success

It is mantra we live and breathe at First Community Bank Its

formula that this year resulted in shareholder return of 38.1 percent

While diluted earnings per common share decreased slightly

year-over-year
from $0.81 to $0.79 due to the higher share count

following our 2012 offering our share price increased from $6.19

at year-end 2011 to $8.39 on December 31 2012 We continued

to pay cash dividend to our common shareholders that equated

to payout ratio of 20.25 percent of earnings available and in the

first quarter of 2013 shareholders saw an increase in dividends

ONE YEAR STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE VS RELEVANT NDCES

NSC LANK

\kf
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ioned for tomorrow now
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Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

602925 593687 599023 605827 650233

0658 3725

332111 324311 329954 344187 332964

474977 464585 4553A4 449576 423798

54183 36759 30762 30501 57306

54183 47896 41797 41440 68156

4144 3287 3262 3252 3203

4172 3287 3262 3252 3203

23002 25526 27511 30981 33008

5428 7209 9374 13104 15810

17574 18317 18137 17877 7198

496 1420 1878 3103 129

17078 16897 16259 14714 15069

7929 5710 3017 3543 10056

26 575 827 1489 28

19445 18401 17684 16580 15539

27761

5588 781 2419 24535 10554

620 1457 565 696 1761

968 3324 1854 25231 6793
72 102 96 89

604 568 568 567 62

3292 2654 1190 25887 6864
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1.45%

1.44%

17%

39%

52.77%

2.16%

1.67%

50%

1.45%

35.83%

2.20%

1.90%

54%

1.49%

3739%

1.38%

1.50%

0.84%

1.41%

58.21%

0.39%

54%

34%

1.38%

8.53%

0.55% 0.44%

0.55% 044%

0.20% 3.90% 10%

20% 0.39% 0.48%

3.73% 49.66% 11.11%

73% 4.98% 82%

1.40%

7.40%

755%

755%

74.82%

31.16%

22%

8.99%

8.88%

17.33%

18.58%

10.63%

70.33%

i98%

8.16%

/1.16%

7555%

25.55%

33%

8.06%

6.04%

15.33%

15.25%

9.40%

70.59%

3.87%

87%

73.07%

17.48%

3.26%

6.97%

00%

13.73%

14.99%

79%

7353%

89.13%

8.94%

7347%

21.97%

3.10%

6.84%

4.80%

12.41%

13.56%

8.41%

76.99%

21.60%

937%

7274%

19.787

3.16%

1048%

442%

12.58%

13 73%

8.28%

/5.45%



RE Co CILIATIO

Net income loss as reported GAAP
Add Income tax expense benefit

Non-operating items

Goodwill impairment charge

Other-than-temporary impairment on

FHLMC preferred shares

Pre-tax operating earnings

Related income tax expense

The following is reconciliation for thefive years ended December31 2012 of net income loss as reportedfor generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP and the non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion of operating earnings

December31

dollars in thousands 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

3968 3324 1854 25231 6793
1620 1457 565 696 3761

5588 4781 2419 24535 10554

7761

14325

5588 4781 2419 3226 3771

1620 1457 565 696 825

Operating earnings NET INCOME EXCLUDING NON OPERATING ITEMS 3968 3324 1854 2530 2946

Thefollowing is reconciliation for the five years ended December31 2012 of non-interest income loss as reportedfor GAAP and the

non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion regarding non-interest income loss

December31

dollars in thousands 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Non-interest income loss as reported GAAP 7955 6285 3844 5032 10084

Non-operating items

Other-than-temporary impairment charge 14325

Operating non-interest income 7955 6285 3844 5032 4241

The following isa reconciliation for thefive years ended December31 2011 of non-interest expense as reportedfor GAAP and the

non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion regarding non-interest expense

December31

dollars in thousands 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Non-interest expense as reported GAAP 19445 18401 17684 44341 15539

Non-operating items

Impairmentof goodwill 27761

Operatingnon-interestexpense 19445 18401 17684 16580 15539

Our management believes that the non-GAAP measures above are useful because they enhance the
ability

of investors and

management to evaluate and compare our operating results from period to period in meaningful manner These non-GAAP

measures should not be considered as an alternative to any measure of performance as promulgated under GAAP and

investors should consider the OTTI charges in the second and third quarter of 2008 when assessing the performance of the

company Non-GAAP measures have limitations as analytical tools and investors should not consider them in isolation or as

substitute for analysis of the companys results as reported under GAAP

The
efficiency

ratio is key performance indicator in our industry The ratio is computed by dividing non-interest expense

less goodwill impairment bythe sum of net interest income on tax equivalent basis and non-interest income net of any

securities gains or losses and OTTI on securities It isa measure of the relationship between operating expenses and earnings

Operating revenue is defined as net interest income plus noninterest income excluding 0Th related to the write-down of

FHLMC preferred
shares in 2008

Constitutes non-GAAP financial measure Please see Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures below

Includes non accrual loans loans 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest and OREO

Includes loans held for sale 15



consolidated balance sheets

dollars in thousands except par values

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Interest-bearing bank balances

Federal funds sold arid securities purchased under agreements to resell

Investment securities available for sale

Other investments at cost

Loans held for sale

Loans

Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Property furniture aid equipment net

Bank owned life insurance

Other real estate owned

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interest bearing demand

NOW and money market accounts

Savings

Time deposits less than $100000

Time deposits $100000 and over

Total deposits

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Federal Home Loan Flank Advances

Junior subordinated debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock par value $1.00 per share 10000000 shares authorized

and 11350 issued and outstanding at December 31 2012 and 2011

Common stock par value $1.00 per share 10000000 shares authorized

issued and outstanding 5227300 at December 31 2012

and 3307531 at December 31 2011

Common stock warrants issued

Nonvested restricted stock

Additional paid in
capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities arid shareholders equity

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

11517 10599

6779 5512

412 381

203445 201032

2527 5637

9658 3725

332111 324311

4621 4699

327490 319612

17258 17483

10868 10974

3987 7351

160 365

571 571

8253 10645

602925 593887

97526 83572

150874 136483

41100 34048

111182 128616

74295 81866

474977 464585

15900 13616

36344 43862

15464 17913

6057 6015

548742 545991

11137

5227 3308

50 560

152

61615 49165

14915 17603

2358 1329

54183 47896

602925 593887
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consolidated statements of income

Year ended December 31

dollars in thousands except per share amounts

INTEREST INCOME

Loans including fees

Investment securities taxable

investment securities non taxable

Other short term investments

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase

Other borrowed money

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Deposit service charges

Mortgage origination fees

Investment advisory fees and non-deposit commissions

Gain on sale of securities

Gain loss on sale of other assets

Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities

Fair value loss adjustments on interest rate swap

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Other

Total non-interest income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and employee benefits

Occupancy

Equipment

Marketing and public relations

FDIC insurance assessments

Other real estate expense

Amortization of intangibles

Other

Total non-interest expense

Net income before tax

Income tax expense

Net income

Preferred stock dividends

Preferred stock redemption costs

Net income available to common shareholders

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

2012 2011 2010

18361 19110 19851

3832 6291 7376

725 51 190

84 74 94

23002 25526 27511

3122 4573 6281

35 40 60

2271 2596 3033

5428 7209 9374

17574 18317 18137

496 1420 1878

17078 16897 16259

1562 1810 1875

4242 1973 1034

651 767 501

26 575 827

89 155 35

200 297 1560
58 166 581

217 188
2038 1966 1713

7955 6285 3844

11152 9520 8942

1358 1289 1229

1168 1147 1162

478 452 402

597 889 1003

1010 840 823

204 517 621

3478 3747 3502

19445 18401 17684

5588 4781 2419

1620 1457 565

3968 3324 1854

557 670 664

119

3292 2654 1190

0.79 0.81 0.36

0.79 0.81 0.36
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independent registered

public accounting firm

The Board of Directors

First Community Corporation

Lexington South Carolina

We have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of First Community Corporation and

subsidiary the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income changes in shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 not presented

herein and in our report dated March 28 2013 we expressed an unqualified opinion on

those consolidated financial statements The accompanying consolidated balance sheets and

statements of income are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility

is to express
an opinion on the information set forth in these consolidated financial statements

in relation to the consolidated financial statements from which they have been derived

In our opinion the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as

of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income for each

of the
years

in the three-year period
ended December 31 2012 is fairly stated in all material

respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived

Elliott Davis LLC

Columbia South Carolina

March 28 2013

18



shareholder information

ANNUAL MEETING INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

1100 am Wednesday May 22 2013 Elliott Davis LLC

The South Carolina State Museum 1901 Main Street

Palmetto Gallery Suite 900

301 Gervais Street Columbia South Carolina 29201

Columbia SC 29201

TRANSFER AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company

10 Commerce Drive

Cranford New Jersey 07016-3572

800 456-0596

10K/FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Copies of First Community Corporations Annual Report

to the Securities and Exchange Commission form 10K

and other information may be obtained from

Joseph Sawyer

First Community Corporation

Post Office Box 64

Lexington South Carolina 29071

stock information

First community corporations common stock is traded on the NASDAQ capital Market under the trading symbol Fcco The

following is summary of stock prices for the company These prices have been adjusted for all stock splits and stock dividends

2012 2011

HIGH LOW DIVIDENDS PAID HIGH LOW DIVIDENDS PAID

1Q 8.00 5.98 $0.04 6.75 5.40 0.04

2Q 8.80 7.65 0.04 7.35 6.44 0.04

3Q 8.60 7.84 0.04 7.00 6.17 0.04

4Q 8.68 8.15 0.04 6.60 5.42 0.04

All outstanding shares of our common stock are entitled to share equally in dividends from funds legally available when and

if declared by the board of directors The future dividend policy of the company is subject to the discretion of the board of

directors and will depend upon number of factors including future earnings financial condition cash requirements and

general business conditions In addition our ability
to pay cash dividends may be dependent upon receiving cash in the form

of dividends from First community Bank Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to the Banks payment of dividends to

the company As South carolina chartered bank the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is

permitted to pay unless otherwise instructed by the s.c Board the Bank is generally permitted under South carolina state

banking regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendaryear without obtaining the prior

approval of the s.c Board The FDI also has the authority under federal law to enjoin bank from engaging in what in its

opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business including the payment of dividend under

certain circumstances

19



directors

Richard Bogan MD FCCP George Fann Jr DMD Loretta Whitehead

Chairman Chief Medical Officer General Dentistry Broker/n Charge

SLEEPMED Inc EXIT Real Estate Consultants

Thomas Johnson

Thomas Brown Vice Chairman of the Board Mitchell Willoughby

Rector First Community Corporation Chairman of the Board

St Pauls Church First Community Bank First Community Corporation

Greenville SC President and Chief First Community Bank

Executive Officer Partner

Chimin Chao Citizens Building Willoughby and Hoefer P.A

President Loan Association

Chao and Associates Inc Greer SC Chairman Emeritus

James Leventis

Michael Crapps James Kitchens Jr

President and Chief Certified Pub/ic Accountant Directors Emeritus

Executive Officer The Kitchens Firm LLC William Boyd 111

First Community Corporation
Robert Clawson

First Community Bank Alex Snipe Hinton Davis

President Broadus Thompson

Anita Easter Glory Communications Angelo Tsiantis

Principal

Green leaf Enterprises Roderick Rick Todd Jr deceased

Attorney Counselor at Law

O.A Ethridge DMD

Pediatric Dentist Retired

executive officers

FIRST COMMUNITY FIRST COMMUNITY
CORPORATION BANK

Michael Crapps Michael Crapps
Robin Brown

President and President and Executive Vice President

Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Director of Human Resources

and Marketing

David Proctor David Proctor

Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President and Ted Nissen

Chief Risk Officer Chief Risk Officer Executive Vice President

Chief Commercial and

Joseph Sawyer Joseph Sawyer
Retail Banking Officer

Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer
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To be the provider of choice of financial Quality and integrity in all endeavors

solutions to local businesses entrepre

neurs and professionals in the markets Passionate focus on the customer experience

we serve we optimize the long-term
Mutual respect for our colleagues

return to our shareholders while
and their role in our success

providing safe and sound investment
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FIRST COMMUNHY ORPORATION
45S Sinset Boulevard

tthIoh SôuthàroliæÆ907

NOTICE OF ANNUAbMEE11NG OFSIt4iREliOLDERS

April 2013

Dear Fellow Shareholder

We cordially mvite you to attend the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of First Community
Corporation the holding company for First Community Bank At the meeting we will

report on our

performance in 2012 and answer your question.We 1ookfoiward to discussing both our

accomplishments and our plans with you We hope thatyou can attend the meeting and look forward
to semg you there

This letter serves as your official notice that we will hold tle meetmg on May 22 2013 at
1100 a.rn local time at The South Caiolina State MuseqmPalmetto Gallery 301 Gervais Street
Columbia S.C 29201 foi the following purppses

To elect four Class directors to serve on the companys board of- directors each fOr

three-year terms

To approve thØ Łompensation of our ramed executive Offiºers- as disclosed inthe

accompanying proxy statement this is non-bmdm advisory ote Say-on-Pay

To approve non-bmdmg resohtion to determine whether shareholders should vote on
Say-on-Pay proposals every one two or thre years ay-on-Freqency
To

ratify the appointment Of our independent tegitØredtiblic accbdiitants aid

To transact any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any idjournment
of the meeting

Shareholders 9wniug shares of our common stoc at the cloe 9f bqness 9n March 25 2013 are
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting cornplte list oLtiese shareholder wjl levilable at .tie
companys .ffices prior -to-the .neeting At 4he meeting we rŁpprt on our ç4orrnancej 2012

Please usthis Opportunity to tÆkepart in the affairs Of youiómpanby vOting on hbusiæe to
come before this meeting. Even if you plait to attend the nieeti1ig we ourage to vote as sdOiias

possible by telephone through the internet or signing 1athg ad 11ailing .yuproxy card iitle
envelope enclosed Telephone and Inteiºt voting permitsyoto vote yOur coqvience 24 hours
day sven diys week Detailed voting instructions ae incltded on.yourroxy card Howevr if.youk
shares are held in streetnaipe you.wffl need to obtain pro.forin from tititiqnhat hp1
your shares in ordr to vote at

çiur anniÆ1rneetipg

By oder of the Board of Directors

ichael ps
-. President an-Chi euave cer

5455 Sunset Boulevard Lexington South Carolina 29072

Telephone 803 951-2265 Fax 803 358-6900

Mitchell Willoughby

2hairman of the Board
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tenent for miuaL 1.eetrng of

Shareholders tobe Held on May 22 2013

Our board of directors is soliciting proxies for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders This

proxy statement contains important information for you to consider when decijh tR.vote
on the -r

matters brought before the meeting We encourage you to read it carefully We are distributing this

proxathiTohbr abdütApril 201 .. ......

Votijig1hfOrmatiOn

The board set March 25 2013 as the record date for the meeting Shareholders qning sha of

our common stock at the close of business on that date are entitled to attend and vote at the meting

with each share entile to one trot Ther re5290452 shares of cothmon stock duttandtfig ott the

record datA nôtit of thbutstand ishires of comthon stk eitit1bd to vole the meetzn iif

constitute quorum We will count abstentions and bro1

çs
Many of our shareholders hold their shares through stockbroker bank or other nbrnInØe rather

than directly inhoir owitiaIpe. Jyom hp1 our shares in asqck bcprage..ccp l1yfank or

other nomiiee you reofl$iEed bnq jal owner of sharps led ii.ste 4yO314r
broker
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nominees listed below under Election of Directorsfor The approal of the æipiisatkrnof
named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement this is non-binding advisory vote for

the non-binding resolution to approve the cq1iiJe compensation votes to be every

three years and for the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public

accountants for4he yearending
December 31 2013 We are not aware of any other

matters to be

considerecLa meepig Iowever if any other matters come before theTnwetm Mesrs..Proctor

and Sawye proxy on such matters in accordance with theif judgment

Asiumiæg that quiffi is presnt

ithtespeottoPrOpOsai No41 the directors will be elected by plurality
ofthe votes of .the

shares present
in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the

election of directors This means that the individuals who receive the highest number of votes



are selected as directOrs up to the maximum number of directors to be elected at the meeting

We will not count abstentions broker non-votes or thefailure to return signed proxy as either

for or against director so abstentions broker non-vOtes and the failure to return signed

proxy have no impact on the election Of director

With respect to Proposal No the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of

common stOck voted in favor of the matter exceed the tiumber of shares of common stock voted

against the niatter This vote is advisoiy and will not be binding upon our board of directors

However the human resouces/compensation cOmmittee and the board of directors will take into

account the outcomu ofthe vote when considering future executive compensatiOn arratigements

If shareholder subniits proxy but does not specify how heor sh woitid like it to be voted

then the proxy will be voted FOR the approval of thO compensation of the companys named

executive officers We will not count abstentions brokOr non-votes or the failure to return

signed proxy as either for or against this proposal so abstentions broker non-voteS and the

failure to return signed prOxy will not affect the approval of the non-binding resolution to

approve the compensation of the companys named executive officers

With respect to Proposal No the frequency of the advisory vote on the non-binding resolution

to approve the compensation of our named executive officers receiving the greatest number of

votes either every three years every two years or every year will be the frequency that our

shareholders recommend You may vote for frequency of one two or three years or you may
abstain from voting on this proposal If shareholder submits proxy but does not specify how

he or she would like it to be voted then the proxywill be voted for frequency of every three

years Abstentions broker non-votes and the failure to return signed proxy will have no .effect

on the outcome of the votes on this matter

With respect to Proposal No the proposal will be approved if the number ofshares of

common stock voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted

against the matter If shareholder submits proxy but does not specify how he Or she would

like it to be voted then the proxy will be voted FOR the ratification of the appointment of

our independent registered public accountants for the year ended December 31 2013 We will

not count .abstentions broker non-votes or the failure to return signed proxy as either for or

against this proposal so abstentions broker non-votes and the failure to return signed proxy

have no impact on the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public

accountants

You may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the poils close at the

meeting If you are the record holder of the shares you may do this by signing and delivering

another proxy with later date by voting in person at the meeting or by voting again over the

Internet or by telephone prior to 300 a.m Eastern Daylight Time on May 22 2013

Brokers who hold shares for the accounts of their clients may vote these shares either as directed

by their clients .or in their own discretion if permitted by the exchange or other organization of which

they are members Proposals that brokers do not vote on are referred to as broker non-votes

broker non-vote does not count as vote in favor of or against particular proposal for which the

broker has no discretionary voting authority In addition if shareholder abstains from voting on

particular proposal the abstention does not count as vote in favor of or against the proposal

If you hold your shares in street name through broker bank or other nominee it is critical that

you cast your vote if you want it to count in the election of our director nominees for the approval of

the Say-on-Pay proposal or in the Say-on-Frequency proposal In the past if you held your shares in

street name and you did not indicate how you wanted your shares voted in the election of directors

your broker bank or other nominee was allowed to vote those shares on your behalf as they felt

appropriate However new regulations now prohibit your broker bank or other nominee from voting



uninstructed shares on discretionary basis on proposals one two or three at the annual meeting

Thus if you hold your shares in street name and you do not instruct your broker how to vote at the

meeting no votes will be cast on your behalf for proposals one two or three Further if you abstain

from voting on particular proposal the abstention does not count as vote in favor of or against the

proposal or for the frequency of one two or three
years

for the Say-on-Frequency proposal

Solicitations cf proxies may be made in person or by mail telephone or other means We are

paying for the costs of preparing and mailing the proxy materials and of reimbursing brokers and

others for their expenses of forwarding copies of the proxy materials to our shareholders Upon written

or oral request we will promptly deliver separate copy of our annual report on Form 10-K or this

proxy statement to our shareholders at shared address to which single copy of the document was

delivered Alternaiively if you are sharing an address with other shareholders and are receiving

multiple copies of our annual report on Form 10-K or this proxy statement you may request single

copy be sent to your shared address if you prefer Please contact us at 803 951-0500 for any such

request Our directors officers and employees may assist in soliciting proxies
but will not receive

additional compensation for doing so

Important Notke of Internet Availability This proxy statement and the accompanying 2012 Annual

Report on Form 10-K and 2012 Annual Report Overview are available to the public for viewing on the

Internet at http/Iwwwcfpproxy.com15474 Directions to the meeting are available on our website at

wwwfirstcommunitvsc corn

Proposal No Election of Directors

The board of directors is divided into three classes with staggered terms so that the terms of only

approximately one-third of the board members expire at each annual meeting The current terms of the

Class directors will expire at the meeting The terms of the Class II directors will expire at the 2014

Annual Shareholders Meeting and the terms of the Class III directors will expire at the 2015 Annual

Shareholders Meeting Our directors and their classes are

Class Class II Class III

Richard Bogan M.D Thomas Brown Chimin Chao

Michael Crapps O.A Ethridge D.M.D Loretta Whitehead

Anita Easter James Kitchens Jr Thomas Johnson

George Fann Jr D.M.D Roderick Todd Jr Alexander Snipe Jr

Mitchell Willoughby

Shareholders will elect four nominees as Class directors at the meeting to serve three-year

term expiring at the 2016 Annual Shareholders Meeting The directors will be elected by plurality of

the votes cast at the meeting This means that the four Class nominees receiving the highest number

of votes will be elected directors

Richard Bogan MD Michael Crapps Anita Easter and George Fann Jr DMD
whose terms expire at the meeting have been nominated by the board of directors for reelection by the

shareholders The board recommends that you elect Dr Bogan Mr Crapps Mrs Easter and Dr Fann

as Class directors All nominees are currently members of the board and each has consented to being

named in this proxy statement and to serving as director on the board if elected

If you submit proxy but do not specify how you would like it to be voted Messrs Proctor and

Sawyer will vote your proxy to elect Dr Bogan Mr Crapps Mrs Easter and Dr Fann If any of these

nominees is unable or fails to accept nomination or election which we do not anticipate

Messrs Proctor and Sawyer will vote instead for replacement to be recommended by the board of

directors unless you specifically instruct otherwise in the proxy



Information Regarding Nominees for Directors

All of our board membets bring to the board of directors leadership experience derived from their

business professional and board experiences Ten of the thirteen directors have served as directors of

First Community since the inception of our company in 1994 Two others were directors on the board
of two companies that we acquired one in 2004 and the other in 2006 The third has served as

director on our board since 2005 Certain individual qualifications and skills of our directors that

contribute to the board of directors effectiveness as whole are described in the information provided
below

Set forth below is certain information about the Class nominees each of whom is also director

of the bank

Richard Bogan 67 Class director has served as director of the company since its formation

in 1994 Dr Bogan has practiced medicine in Columbia South Carolina since he started Pulmonary
Associates of Carolina in 1978 He graduated with B.S degree from Wofford College in Spartanburg
in 1966 and earned an M.D degree from the Medical College of South Carolina in Charleston in 1970
Dr Bogan has been president of Bogan Consulting Inc medical consulting company since

December 1992 and holds memberships in numerous medical organizations He
currently serves on the

board of directors of the National Sleep Foundation and is the chairman and chief medical officer of

SleepMed Inc Dr Bogan has served in this position since 1999

Dr Bogans experience and background as chairman founder and executive of several medical

related companies allows him to bring significant management and leadership skills to our board He
has strong community ties to the Midlands of South Carolina

Michael Crapps 54 Class director has served as our president and chief executive officer and

as director of the company since its formation in 1994 lifelong Lexington County resident he

began his banking career with South Carolina National Bank in 1980 and by the time he changed jobs
in 1985 he was vice president and senior commercial lender in regional office of that bank From
1985 to 1993 he worked for Republic National Bank in Columbia becoming president chief executive

officer and director of that bank During his career Mr Crapps has been responsible for virtually all

aspects of banking including branches commercial banking operations credit administration

accounting human resources and compliance He also serves the banking industry through his

involvement in the South Carolina Bankers Association having served as its chairman and on its board
of directors Mr Crapps was selected as the 1997 Young Banker of the Year by the South Carolina

Bankers Association He received B.S degree in Economics in 1980 from Clemson University and an
M.B.A degree from the University of South Carolina in 1984 Mr Crapps is also graduate of the

L.S.U Banking School of the South Mr Crapps currently serves as chairman of the Board of the

Navigating Good to Great Foundation on the board of directors of the South Atlantic Division of the

American Cancer Society past chairman on the Saluda Shoals Park Foundation past chairman on
the Board of Directors of the Central Carolina Community Foundation on the Lexington County
School District One Foundation the River Alliance and on the Midlands Business Leadership Group
He is also past chairman of the Lexington Chamber of Commerce

Mr Crapps experience in banking and vision for our company give him the leadership and

consensus building skills that provide significant insight and expertise to the board He is lifelong
resident of Lexington South Carolina and has significant ties to the Midlands of South Carolina He
has been very active in lOcal community and civic organizations

Anita Easte 68 Class director has served as director of the company since its formation in

1994 Ms Easter is retired She is former owner and director or Anchor Continental Inc
manufacturer of pressure-sensitive tapes As Registered Nurse she returned to school and received

B.S in Nursing from the University of South Carolina and was inducted into Sigma Theta Tau the



international honor society for nurses She is past chair of the Greater Columbia Community Relations

Council and is member of the Columbia Luncheon Club The League of Women Voters and The

USC College of Nursing Partnership Board

Mrs Easters experience as former owner and director of large manufacturing company

provides the board with significant business insight and analytical skills She has been active in civic and

community organizations within the Midlands of South CarolirLa and is knowledgeable about the

matkets we serve

George Fann D.MD 68 Class director has served as director of the company since its

formation in 1994 Dr Fann has practiced dentistry in West Columbia South Carolina for 40 years He

earned B.S degree from Clemson University in 1966 and .M.D from the University Of Louisville

School Of Dentistry in 1969 Dr Fann is past chairman of the board of directors of Lexington Medical

Center in West Columbia South Carolina Dr Fann is recipient of the Order of the Palmetto

awarded by the Governor of South Carolina

Dr Fanns experience as medical professional operating his business in the Midlands for

40 years brings to the board insights relative to challenges and opportunities facing small businesses

and healthcare professionals within our market area He has served as board member and chairman

of the board of large medical center As lifelong resident of the Midlands of South Carolina he has

significant knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve

If quorum is present the directors will be elected by plurality of the votes cast at the meeting

This means that the four Class III nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected

directors Abstentions broker non-votes and the failure to return signed proxy will have no effect on

the outcome of the vote on this matter

Information Regarding Continuing Directors

Set forth below is also information about each of the conipanys other directors Each of the

following directors is also director of our bank.

Thomas Brown 54 Class II director has served as director of the company since its formation

in 1994 Mr Brown is currently the Rector at St Pauls Church Greenville South Carolina From 2008

to 2011 he served as the Assistant Rector at All Saints Church Pawleys Island South Carolina

Previously Mr Brown was the president and owner of TC Enterprises
of South Carolina mc

restaurant business based Myrtle Beach Mr Brown graduated from Clemson University in 1981 with

degree in Civil Engineering

Mr Brown has operated and owned small business since 1989 He has extensive knowledge of

the small business environment and the related challenges He brings to the board unique insight and

useful perspective related to the small business environment which is primary target
market segment

for our company

O.A Ethndg MD 69 Class II director has served director of the company since its

formation in 1994 Dr Ethridge currently resides in Lexington South Carolina and practiced childrens

dentistry
in West Columbia South Carolina for more than 20 years After graduating with B.A

degree in Science from Erskine College in Due West South Carolina in 1965 Dr Ethridge received

in 1971 rom the University Of Louisville School Of Dentistry Louisville Kentucky He

became pedodontist in 1974 after receiving pedodontist specialty from Childrens Medical Center in

Dayton Ohio



Dr Ethridges experience as medical professional operating his business in the Midlands of

South Carolina brings to the board insights relative to challenges and opportunities facing small

businesses and medical professionals within our market areas As lifelong resident of the Midlands of

South Carolina he has extensive knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve

James Kitchens Jr 51 Class II director has served as director of the company since its

formation in 1994 Mr Kitchens is Certified Public Accountant and holds the Chartered Financial

Analyst designation He is the president of The Kitchens Firm LLC certified public accounting firm

in Columbia South Carolina Mr Kitchens earned B.S degree in Mathematics from The University

of the South and an M.B.A degree from Duke University.

Mr Kitchens is certified public accountant and bnngs to the board knowledge and understanding
of tax and financial accounting issues He is lifelong resident of the Midlands of South Carolina and

has
strong knowledge of the business environment in the markets we serve

Rod erick Todd Jr 49 Class II director has served as director of the company smce our

merger with DeKalb Bankshares Inc in June 2006 He served as director of DeKaIb Bankshares Inc

and the Bank of Camden from its inception in 2001 until June 2006 In July 2000 Mr Todd founded

the law firm Rodenck Todd Jr Attorney and Counselor at Law Formerly he was partner

Cooper and Todd LLF Attorneys from 1994 to 2000 Mr Todd is graduate of the
University of

South Carolina and the University of South Carolina School of Law

Mr Todd has extensive experience in running and operating his own legal practice in Camden
South Carolina As prior director of start-up community bank he brings additional insights to our

board relative to community bank operations He has strong ties to the Camden market which is

market we expanded into in 2006 through acquisition

Mitchell Willoughby 65 Class II director has served as director of the company since its

formation in 1994 On March 17 2009 Mr Willoughby was eleôted to serve as chairman of the board

beginning on May 19 2009 Mr Willoughby has lived in Columbia South Carolina since 1970 has

practiced law in the community since 1975 and is founding member of the law firm Willoughby

Hoefer PA Mr Willoughby has previously served as general counsel of the Greater Columbia

Chamber of Commerce as well as member of its Board of Directors Mr Willoughby served three

years with the United States Army and over 33 years with the South Carolina Army National Guard

retiring in 2005 in the rank of Brigadier General He received degree in 1969 from Clemson

University and degree from the University of South Carolina in 1975

Mr Willoughbys experience as founding partner in the legal firm of Willoughby Hoefer PA
and over 36 years experience in the United States Army and the S.C Army National Guard allows him
to bring significant organizational and administrative skills to the board of directors His legal

experience and insights provides the board with important perspective on corporate governance related

matters and corporate strategy

Chimin Chao 57 Class III director has served as director of the company since its formation

in 1994 Mr Chao lives in Lexington South Carolina and smce 1987 has been president of the

engineering firm Chao and Associates Inc Irmo South Carolina Mr Chao is member of the

American Society of Engineers and the National Society of Professional Engineers He was selected as

Civil Engineer of the Year by the American Society of Civil Engineers South Carolina Section in 2009
He received M.S degree in Structural Engineering at the University of South Carolina and holds

Professional Engineer license and Building Inspector license in South Carolina

Mr Chao is president of his engineering firm and has strong knowledge of the issues facing
small business professionals which are target market segment for our company He has extensive

knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve



Loretta Whitehead 70 Class III director has served as director of the company since its

formation in 1994 Ms Whitehead has been realtor since 1981 and is currently broker in charge of

EXIT Real Estate Consultants in Lexington South Carolina She taught full-time from 1964 through

1968 after receiving B.A degree in English and Elementary Education from Columbia College in

1963 She also took additional graduate work at the University of South Carolina and University of

Tennessee from 1963 through 1968 She is member of the National Association of Realtors the South

Carolina Association of Realtors and the Central Carolina Association of Realtors She currently serves

as chair of the Lexington Medical Center Foundation scholarship committee and is past
chair of the

Lexington Medical Center Foundation

Mrs Whitehead has significant insights into and experience
in the real estate market in the

Midlands of South Carolina She has been active in civic and community organizations
within the

Midlands of South Carolina and is knowledgeable about the markets we serve

Thomas Johnson 66 Class III director has served as vice chairman of the board since our

merger with DutchFork BancShares in October 2004 From tober 2004 until October 2007 he served

as executive vice president of the company and the bank From 1984 until October 2004 Mr Johnson

served as chairman and chief executive officer of DutchFork BancShares and Newberry Federal Savings

Bank From 2009 to present Mr Johnson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of

Citizens Building and Loan Association in Greer South Carolina Mr Johnson has been in banking

since 1968 He has served as chairman of the Community Financial Institutions of South Carolina and

formerly served on the board of directors of the South Carolina Bankers Association He is member

of the board of dixectors of the Federal Home Loan Bank of 4tlanta representing
South Carohna

member banks Be is also chairman of Business Carolina statewide economic development lender

He received B.S in Marketing in 1968 from the University of South Carolina He formerly served on

the boards of the Newberry Opera House Foundation the Central Carolina Alliance the Central

Carolina Community Foundation and Independent Colleges and Universities

Mr Johnson has extensive experience as director chairman and CEO of community bank for

20 years prior to its acquisition by our company He also serves as director on the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Atlanta His experience brings substantial insight to our board as it relates to challenges

and issues facing the community banking industry

Alexander Snipe Jr 62 has served as Class III director of our company since May 2005

Mr Snipe has ben the president and chief executive officer of Glory Communications Inc since

September 1992 Glory Communications Inc operates
five gospel radio stations located in South

Carolina markets including its first station WFM1Q which began broadcasting in November 1993 in

Columbia South CarolinÆ Prior to forming Glory Communications Inc Mr Snipe was the general

sales manager at radio station for 10 years He has over 20 years of broadcastingexperience

Mr Snipe serves on the board of the William Bonner Bible College The National Association of

Broadcasters Radio Board The Radio Boards Membership Committee chairman and The Gospel

Heritage Foundai ion Mr Snipe is former board member of the Columbia Urban League and The

Gospel Music Association and he is past president of the South Carolina Broadcasters Association

Mr Snipe has significant experience operating small business since 1992 He also serves on the

boards of several other associations and foundations He has strong ties to the Midlands of South

Carolina and has extensive knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve

Information Regarding Remaining Executive Officers

Set forth below is information about our executive officers other than Mr Crapps who is also

director and .is discussed above
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David Procto 56 On February 19 2013 Mr Proctor was named executive vice president and

chief risk officer of the company Prior to this he was senior vice president and senior credit officer of

the company since First Community Bank opened for business in 1995 From May 1994 to June 1995
he was the vice president of credit for Republic Leasing Company From 1987 to 1994 he held various

positions with Republic National Bank in Columbia and most recently was executive vice president and

senior credit officer He is 1979 graduate of Clemson University with B.S in business

administration

Joseph Sawyei 62 On February 19 2013 Mr Sawyer was named executive vice president and

chief financial officer of the company Prior to this he was senior vice president and chief financial

officer of the company smce First Community Bank opened for business in 1995 Prior to joining the

company he was senior vice president and general auditor for the National Bank of South Carolina

He is certified public accountant and 1973 graduate of The Citadel with in political science

Proposal No Non Binding Advisory Vote on Compensation of the Named Executive Officers

The recently enacted Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 the
Dodd-Frank Act enables our shareholders to vote to approve on non-binding basis the

compensation of the companys named executive officers Accordingly we are asking you to approve

the compensation of the companys named executive officers as described under Compensation of

Directors and Executive Officers and the tabular disclosure regarding named executive officer

compensation together with the accompanying narrative disclosure in this proxy statement

The company seeks to align the interests of our named executive officers with the interests of our

shareholders Therefore our compensation programs are designed to reward our named executive

officers for the achievement of strategic and operational goals and the achievement of increased

shareholder value while at the same time avoiding the encouragement of unnecessary or excessive

risk-taking We believe that our compensation policies and procedures are competitive and focused on

performance and are aligned with the long-term interest of our shareholders

The proposal described below commonly known as Say-on-Pay proposal gives you as

shareholder the opportunity to express your views regarding the compensation of the named executive

officers by voting to approve or not approve such compensation as described in this proxy statement

This vote is advisory and will not be binding upon the company the board of directors or the human

resources/compensation committee However the company the board and the human resources

compensation committee will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future

executive compensation arrangements The vote on this resolution is not intended to address any

specific element of compensation but rather relates to the overall compensation of our named

executive officers as described in this proxy statement in accordance with the compensation disclosure

rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC
The board of directors believes our compensation policies and procedures achieve this objective

and therefore recommend shareholders vote FOR the proposal through the following resolution

RESOLVED that the compensation paid to the companys named executive officers as

disclosed in the companys Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders pursuant

to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission including the

compensation tables and any related material disclosed in the Proxy Statement is hereby

APPROVED

If quorum is present the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of common stock

voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted against the matter

Abstentions broker non votes and the failure to return signed proxy will have no effect on the

outcome of the vote on this matter



Proposal No Advisory Non-Binding Vote on the Frequency of Approval of the compensation of the

Named Executive Officers

The Dodd Fi ank Act
requires

that the company provide shareholders with the opportunity to vote

on non binding advisory basis for their preference as to how frequently the company should conduct

an advisory Say-on-Pay vote Shareholders may indicate whether they weuld prefer that the Company

conduct future Say-on-Pay votes every year every two years or every three years Shareholders also

may abstain from casting vote on this proposal

The board of directors has determined that Say on-Pay vote that occurs once every three years is

the most appropriate alternative for the company and therefore the board recommends that you vote

in favor of conducting Say on-Pay vote every three years
The board believes that Say on-Pay vote

occurring every
three

years
will provide our shareholders with sufficient time to evaluate the

effectiveness of the companys overall compensation philosophy policies and practices in the context of

our long-term business results for the corresponding period while avoiding an over-einphasisQn short

term variations in compensation and business results Say-on-Pay vote occurring every three years

willalso permit shareholders to observe and evaluate the effect of any changes to our executive

compensation polLicles and practices that have occurred since the last advisory vote on executive

compensation

This vote is idvisory which means that it is not binding on the company the board of directors or

the human resources/compensation committee The Company recognizes that the shareholders may

have different views as to the best approach and looks forward to hearing from the shareholders as to

their preferences on the frequency of the Say-on-Pay vote The board of directors and the human

resources/compensation cOmmittee will carefully review the outcome of the Say-on-Frequency vote

however when considering the frequency of futUre Sayoæ-Pa votes the board of directors may decide

that it is in the companys and the shirehoiders long-term best interest to hold Say-on-Pay vote more

or less frequently than the frequency receiving the most votes cast by our shareholders

The proxy card provides shareholders with the opportunity to choose among four options holding

the Say-on-Pay vote every year every two years or every three years or abstain from voting

Shareholders are not beingasked to approve or disapprove the recommendation of the board of

directors If quorum is present the frequency of the advisory vote on the non-binding resolution to

approve the compensation of our named executive officers receiving the greatest number of votes

either every
three years every two years or every year will be the frequencythat our shareholders

recommend Abstentions brOker nonvotes and the failure to return signed proxy will have no effect

on the outcome of the votes on this matter

The board recommends you vote for the preferred frequency of future Say-on Pay proposals to be

every three years

Proposal No Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

On March 19 2013 the audit/compliance committee of the board of directors appointed Elliott

Davis LLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31

2013 Although we are not required to seek shareholder ratification in the selection of our accountants

we believe obtaining shareholder ratificatiou is desirable If the shareholders do not ratify the

appointment of Elliott Davis the audit/compliance committee will re-evaluate the engagement of our

independent auditors Even if the shareholders do ratify the appointment our audit/compliance

committee has the discretion to appoint different independent registered public accounting firm at

any time during the year if the audit/compliance committee believes that such change would be in the

best interest of cur shareholders and the company We expect
that representative of Elliott Davis will

attend the meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate questions fr9m shareholders
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If quorum is present the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of common stock

voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted against the matter

Abstentions broker non-votes and the failure to return signed proxy will have no effect on the

outcome of the vote on this matter

The board unanimously recommends that shareholders vote FOR the ratification of the

appointment of Elliott Davis LLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year

ending December 31 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board of directors met 12 times in 2012 Each director in 2012 attended at least 75% of the

combined total of meetings of the board of directors and meetmgs of each committee on which such

director served

Neither the board nor the nomination and corporate governance committee has implemented

formal policy regarding director attendance at an annual meeting of shareholders although board

members are encouraged to attend the nnual shareholders meeting In 2012 ten directors attended

the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The board has determined that majority of its members are independent as defined by the listing

standards of The NASDAQ Stock Market Specifically our board of directors has determined that the

following directors areindependent Richard Bogan Thomas Brown Chimin Chao
Anita Easter Ethridge George Fann Jr James Kitchens Jr
Alexander Snipe Jr Roderick Todd Jr Loretta Whitehead and Mitchell Willoughby

The board of directors has established Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all

directors officers and employees which may be found on our website at wwwfirstcommunitysc.com The

information on our website is not part of this proxy statement The company intends to post on its

website all disclosures that are required by law or The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards

concerning any amendments to or waivers from the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Shareholders may request copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by written request

directed to First Community Corporation Attention Corporate Secretaiy 5455 Sunset Blvd Lexington

South Carolina 29072

Shareholders may communicate directly to the board of directors in writing by sending letter to

the board at First Community Corporation Attention Corporate Secretary 5455 Sunset Blvd
Lexington South Carolina 29072 All letters directed to the board of directors will be received and

processed by the corporate secretary and will be forwarded to the chairman of the nomination and

corporate governance committee without any editing or screening

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

We are focused on the companys corporate governance practices and value independent board

oversight as an essential component of strong corporate performance to enhance shareholder value

Our commitment to independent oversight is demonstrated by the fact that majority of our directors

are independent In addition all of the members of our board of directors audit/comphance human

resources/compensation and nominating and corporate governance committees are independent

Our board of directors believes that it is preferable for one of our independent directors to serve

as chairman of the board The individual our board of directors appointed as chairman Mitchell

Willoughby has been one of our directors since 1994 and is long-time resident of our primary market

area We believe it is the Chief Executive Officers responsibility to manage the company and the

chairmans responsibility to guide the board as it provides leadership to our executive management As
directors continue to be faced with more oversight responsibility than ever before we believe it is
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beneficial to have separate individuals in the role of chairman and chief Executive Officer

Traditionally the company has maintained the separateness of the roles of the chairman and the Chief

Executive Officer In making its decision to have an independent chairman th board of directors

considered the time and attention that Mr Crapps is required to devote to managing the day-to-day

operations of the company By having another director serve as chairman of the board of directors

Mr Crapps will be able to focus his entire energy on running the company This will also ensure there

is no duplication of effort between the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman We believe this board

leadership structure is appropriate in maximizing the effectiveness of board oversight and in providing

perspective to our business that is independent from executive management

Our audit/compliance committee is primarily responsible for overseeing the companys risk

management pro esses on behalf of the full board of directors The audit/compliance committee

focuses on fihancial reporting risk and oversight of the internal audit process It receives reports from

management at least quarterly regarding the companys assessment of risks and the adequacy and

effectiveness of internal control systems as well as reviewing credit and market risk including liquidity

and interest rate risk and operational risk including compliance and legaL risk Strategic and

reputation risk are also regularly considered by this committee The audit/compliance committee also

receives reports from management addressing the most serious risks impacting the day-tç-day

operations of the company Our director of internal audit reports to the audit committee and meets

with the audit/compliance committee in executive sessions as needed to discuss any potential nsk or

control issues involving management The audit/compliance committee reports regularly to the full

board of directors which also considers the company entire risk profile The full board of directors

focuses on certain significant risks facing the company and on certain aspects of the companys general

risk management strategy Management is responsible for the day-to-day risk management processes

We believe this division of responsibility is the most effective approach for addressing the risks facing

our company and that our board leadership structure supports this approach

We recognize
that different board leadership structures may be appropriate

for companies in

different situations We will continue to reexamine our corporate governance policies and leadership

structures on an ongoing basis to ensure that they continue to meet the companys needs

Committees of the Board

Our board of directors has three standing committees the audit/compliance committee the human

resources/compensation committee and the nomitiation and corporate governance committee Each

committee serves in dual capacity as committee of the company and of the bank

Audit/Comphanc Committee

The following directors are members of the audit/compliance committee James Kitchens Jr

Chairman Anita Easter Ethridge D.M.D Loretta Whitehead and Mitchell

Willoughby The board of directors has determined that all of these committee members are

independent as ontemplated in the listing standards of The NASDAQ Stock Market Our board has

determined that Mr Kitchens who was appointed to the audit/compliance committee on March 16

2004 qualifies as an audit committee financial expert under SEC rules The audit/compliance

committee met four times in 2012

The audit/ccmphance committee has the responsibility of reviewing
the companys financial

statements evaluating internal accounting controls reviewing reports of regulatory authorities and

determining that all audits and examinations required by law are performed The committee

recommends to the board the appothtment of the independent auditors for the next fiscal year reviews

and approves thc auditors audit plans and reviews with the independent auditors the results of the

audit and managements responses The board of directors has adopted aft audit/compliance committee
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charter which may be found by clicking on the link for Investor Information on our website at

wwwfirstcommunitysc.com The charter outlines the committees responsibilities for overseeing the

entire audit function and appraising the effectiveness of internal and external audit efforts and may be

amended by the board at any time The audit/compliance committee reports its findings to the board of

directors

Human Resources/Compensation Committee

The following directors are members of the human resources/compensation committee Thomas
Brown Chairman Chimin Chao Roderick Todd Jr and Loretta Whitehead

The human resources/compensation committee is comprised entirely of independent directors as

prescribed by The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards The board of directors has adopted

human resources/compensation committee charter which may be found by clicking on the link for

Investors on our website at wwwfirstcommunitysc corn The human resources/compensation committee

met five times during 2012 This committee is responsible for determining director and executive officer

compensation The human resources/compensation committee discusses and evaluates employee

compensation plans in light of an assessment of any risk posed to the company from such plans The

human resources/compensation committee annually evaluates and recommends to the board the

compensation package for the President/Chief Executive Officer

The human resources/compensation committee also annually reviews the compensation packages

for members Of the banks executive committee The President/Chief Executive Officer has the

responsibility to annually evaluate the performance of each of the members of the banks executive

committee and determine their compensation packages Compensation packages for non-executive

employees is determined by individual supervisors in conjunction with the banks Director of Human
Resources and these compensation decisions are made based on criteria included in the banks overall

budget which is approved annually by the companys board of directors

The human resources/compensation committee is responsible for

Annually reviewing the form and amount of director compensation and recommending

compensation packages to the board

Annually reviewing employee compensation strategies benefit plans including insurance and

retirement plans and equity programs

Appointing trustees to oversee the companys 401K plan

Annually evaluating the President/Chief Executive Officers performance as it compares to the

companys goals and objectives providing feedback to him on his performance and

recommending to the board his compensation package including base salary level incentive

compensation plan equity plans and any special or supplemental benefits

Reviewing and making recommendations to the board concerning employment agreements

severance agreements change in control agreements as well as any supplemental benefits

Overseeing all incentive plans and as such considering methods of creating incentives for

management to achieve sustained growth in earnings and shareholder value and to retain key

management personnel including annual cash incentive plans long term incentive plans

equity plans as well as any special supplemental benefits and making recommendations to the

board concerning the design structure of such plans

Serving as the stock committee or stock sub-committee and asuch has the authority to

approve awards under the companys stock option plan and other equity plans
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Approving the annual report on executive compensation and directors fees for inclusion in

the companys proxy statement

Approving the annual committee report
for inclusion in the company proxy statement

Annually reporting to the board on succession planning for the Chief Executive Officer The

board should consider and evaluate potential successors to the Chief Executive Officer

Reporting its activities and recommendations to the board of directors at any regular or

special meeting of the board

Annually reviewing its charter and presenting it to the board for approval

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The following directors are members of the nomination and corporate governance committee

George Fann Chairman Chimm Chao Alexander Snipe Jr and Roderick Todd Jr

The nomination and corporate governance committee is comprised entirely of independent

directors as prescribed by The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards This committee met three

times during 2012

On March 16 2004 our board adopted nomination and corporate governance committee charter

which may be found on our website by clicking on the link for Investor Information at

wwwfirstcomrnun tysc corn corn The charter provides that the responsibilities of the committee include

reviewmg the qualifications and independence of the members of the board and its various

committee assignments evaluating incumbent directors in determining consideration for reelection

recommending board nominees for election as officers providing guidance on board and

corporate governance issues and considering director candidates recommended by shareholders

who submit nominations in accordance with our bylaws

Shareholders who submit candidates for nomination must deliver nominations in writing to the

secretary
of the company no later than with respect to an election to be held at an annual meeting

of shareholders 90 days in advance of such meeting and iiwith respect to an election to be held at

special meeting of shareholders for the election of directors seven days after nOtice of the special

meeting is given to shareholders Each notice must set forth the name and address of the

shareholder who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated ii

representation that the shareholder is holder of record of stock of the company entitled to vote at

such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or

persons specified in the notice iii description of all arrangements or understandings between the

shareholder and each nominee and any other person or persons naming such person or persons

pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder iv such other

information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as wou ld be required to be included

in proxy statement filed pursuant to the SECs proxy rules had the nominee been nominated or

intended to be nominated by the board of directors and the consent of each nominee to serve as

director of the company if so elected The chairman of the meeting may refuse to acknowledge the

nomination of any person not made in compliance with the foregoing procedure

The nomination and governance committee has not adopted formal policy with regard to the

consideration of diversity in identi1ying director nominees In determining whether to recommend

director nomme the nomination and governance committee members consider and discuss diversity

among other factors with view toward the needs of the board of directors as whole The

nominating committee members generally conceptualize diversity expansively to include without

limitation concepts such as race gender national origin differences of viewpoint professional

experience education skill and other qualities or attributes that contribute to board heterogeneity

14



when identifying and recommending director nominees The nomination and governance committee

believes that the inclusion of diversity as one of many factors considered in selecting director nominees

is consistent with the committees goal of creating board of directors that best serves the needs of the

company and the interests of its shareholders

In evaluating such director recommendations the committee uses variety of criteria to evaluate

the qualifications and skills
necessary

for members of our board of directors Under these criteria

members of the board of directors should have the highest professional and personal ethics and values

consistent with our longstanding values and standards They should have broad experience at the

policy-making level in business government education technology or public interest They should be

committed to enhancing shareholder value and should have sufficient time to
carry

out their duties and

to provide insight and practical wisdom based on experience Their service on other boards of public

companies should be limited to number that permits them given
their individual circumstances to

perform responsibly all director duties Each director must represent the interests of our shareholders

The committee uses variety of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees for director

They regularly assess the appropriate size of the board of directors and whether any vacancies are

expected due to retirement or otherwise If vacancies are anticipated or otherwise arise the committee

considers various potential candidates for director Candidates may come to their attention through

current members of the board shareholders or other persons These candidates are evaluated at

regular or special meetings of the board and may be considered at any point during the year The

committee considers properly submitted shareholder recommendations for candidates In evaluating

such recommendations the committee uses the qualifications and standards discussed above and it

seeks to achieve balance of knowledge experience and capability on the board of directors

Report of the Audit/Compliance Committee

Management is responsible for the companys internal controls and the financial reporting process

The independent auditors are responsible for performing an independent audit of the companys
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America and
issuing report

thereon The audit/compliance committees responsibility

is to monitor and oversee these processes

In this context the committee has met and held discussions with management and Elliott

Davis LLC the companys independent auditors in 2012 In discharging its oversight responsibility as

to the audit process the audit/compliance committee has received the written disclosures and the letter

from the independent auditors required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board regarding the independent auditors communications with the audit/compliance

committee concerning independence and has discussed with the independent auditors their

independence from the company and its management The committee also discussed with management
the internal auditors and the independent auditors the quality and adequacy of the company internal

controls and the internal audit functions organization responsibilities budget and staffing The

committee reviewed both with the independent and mternal auditors their audit plans audit scope and

identification of audit risks

The committee reviewed and discussed with the independent auditors all communications required

by generally accepted auditing standards including those described in Statement on Auditing Standards

No 61 as amended Communication with Audit and Finance Committees and with and without

management present discussed and reviewed the results of the independent auditors examination of

the financial statements The committee also discussed the results of the internal audit examinations

The committee reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements of the

company as of and for the year ended December 31 2012 with management and the independent

auditors

15



Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the independent

auditors the committee recommended to the board that the companys audited consolidated financial

statements be included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 for

filing with the SEC On March 19 2013 the committee appointed Elliott Davis LLC as the companys

independent auditors for 2013

The report of the audit committee is included herein at the direction of its members Mr Kitchens

Ms Easter Dr Ethridge Ms Whitehead and Mr Willoughby

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER INFORMATION

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Executive Compensation

The following table shows the compensation we paid for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and

2011 to our chief executive officer and president our chief financial officer and the most highly

compensated other executive officer who earned over $100000 for the year ended 2012 collectively

the named executive officers

Summary Compensation Table

Non-Equity Non-qualified

Incentive Deferred

Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other

Name Salary Bonus Award Award Compensation2 Earnings3 Compensation456 Total

Principai Position Year $i
Michael Crapps 2012 $312360 $250007 $87356 $46655 $64501 $13582 $549454

President and Chief 2011 $298750 $60603 $13739 $373902

Executive Officer

David Proctor 2012 $174675 $29309 $62580 $36318 9045 $311927

Senior Vice 2011 $168750 $34123 8767 $211640

President Senior

Credit Officer and

Senior Risk Officer

Joseph Sawyer 2012 $205 500 $34 478 $73 666 $62 289 484 $385 417

Senior Vice President 2011 $198333 $58524 9397 $266254

and Chief Financial

Officer

This represents the value of restricted shares issued under the terms of the equity
incentive plan The shares cliff vest at the end of three years

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock grants shown above equals $8.28 in accordance with FASB ASC löpic 718 See discussion of

assumptions used in the valuation of the stock awards Note 17 Stock Options and Restricted Stock the notes to the consolidated

Financial Statements included within the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012

The amount repreents the total cash payout under the terms of the equity incentive plan Of this amount 20% is deferred and cliff vest after

three years

Amounts reflect the change in the present value of benefits attributable to named executive officers for the applicable compensation as

calculated under non-qualified retirement benefit plans

For Mr Crapps includes $10000 and $9800 company matching contribution to 401k plan for 2012 and 2011 respectively
and $1045 for

country club dues for 2012 and 2011 and $2537 and $2894 for premiums paid on term life insurance policy for 2012 and 2011 respectively

For Mr Proctor includes $6987 and $6750 company matching contribution to 401k plan for 2012 and 2011 respectively as well as $1045 for

country club dues for 2012 and 2011 and $1013 and $972 for premiums paid on term life insurance policy for 2012 and 2011 respectively

For Mr Sawyer includes $8220 and $7933 company matching contribution to 401k plan for 2012 and 2011 respectively as well as $249 for

health club dues for 2Olland $1264 and $1215 for premiums paid on term life insurance policy
for 2012 and 2011 respectively

Consists of $25000 discretionary cash bonus paid to Mr Crapps on February 19 2013 based on performance from August30 2012 through

December 31 201.

Due to strong performance during 2012 the company paid higher levels of incentive compensation

than has been paid in recent years This included payments to executives and other employees with

incentive compensation plans and some discretionary incentive payments to other key employees In

addition the Board of Directors awarded discretionary cash mcentive to Mr Crapps for post TARP

activities during the last four months of 2012
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Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements

Michael Crapps On June 2008 we entered into an employment agreement with Mr Crapps

to serve as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the company and bank Unless terminated

earlier according to provisions in the employment agreement the agreement provides three-year term

of employment and at the end of each day during the term of employment the term of the agreement is

automatically extended for an additional day so that the remaining term continues to be three years

except that either party can give the other party written notice of and fix the term to finite term of

three years from the date of the written notice

The initial base salary for Mr Crapps was $249867 which amount is subject to annual review by the

board of directors and may be increased Under his agreement Mr Crapps is eligible to receive bonuses

if he meets the goals set forth annually for him by the human resources/compensation committee of the

board of directors Furthermore Mr Crapps is eligible for the companys long-term equity incentive

program and for the grant of stock options restricted stock and other similar awards

Mr Crapps is provided with country club membership as well as life insurance policy for the

benefit of his spouse and heirs Mr Crapps is also entitled to participation in retirement health welfare

and other benefit plans and programs of the company applicable to employees generally or to senior

executives

The employment agreement provides that if the company terminates Mr Crapps employment

without cause the company shall be obligated to pay Mr crapps compensation in an amount equal to

100% of his then current monthly base salary each month subject to six month delay for 24 months

from the date of termination plus any bonus earned or accrued through the date of termination After

change in control the company will pay Mr Crapps an amount equal to three times the then current

annual base salary In addition the company will pay Mr Crapps any bonus earned or accrued through

the date of change in control The company will remove any restrictions on outstanding incentive awards

so that all such awards vest immediately The company must continue to pay at its expense medical

dental disability and life insurance benefits for period of two years

In the event that the companys independent accountants acting as its auditors on the date of

change in control determine that the payments provided for in the employment agreement constitute

excess parachute payments under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code then the compensation

payable under the employment agreement will be reduced to an amount the value of which is $1.00 less

than the maximum amount that could be paid to Mr Crapps without his compensation being treated as

excess parachute payments under Section 280G

The employment agreement contains provisions relating to non-solicitation of customers and

personnel and non-competition during the term of employment and the two years thereafter as well as

provision relating to the protection of confidential information

David Proctor and Joseph Sawyei On June 2008 the company entered into employment

agreements with David Proctor as senior vice president and senior credit officer and Joseph

Sawyer as senior vice president and chief financial officer Both employment agreements provide for an

initial term of three years to be extended automatically each day for an additional day so that the

remaining term of the agreement will continue to be three years The term may be fixed at three years

without extension by notice of either party to the other The term of each agreement is currently three

years The agreement with Mr Proctor provides for starting annual .alary of $127500 and the

agreement with Mr Sawyer provides for an annual salary of $140000 per year and the amounts are

reviewed annually and may be increased from time to time Mr Proctor and Mr Sawyer are also eligible

to receive annual payments based upon achievement criteria established by the board of directors
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Both agreements provide that if the company terminates the executives employment without

cause the company shall be obligated to pay the executive compensation in an amount equal to 100%

of his then curreni monthly base salary each month subject to six month delay for twelve months

from the date of termination plus any bonus earned or accrued through the date of termination After

change in control the company will pay the executive an amount equal to two times the then current

annual base salary In addition the company will pay the executive any bonus earned or accrued

through the date of change in control The company will remove any restnctions on outstanding

incentive awards so that all such awards vest immediately The company must continue to pay at its

expense medical dental disability and life insurance benefits for period of two years

Each employment agreement contains provisions relating to non-solicitation of customers and

personnel and non competition during the term of employment and the two years thereafter as well as

provision relating to the protection of confidential information

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows the number of shares covered by both exercisable and non exercisable

options owned by the mdividuals named in the Summary Compensation Table as of December 31 2012

as well as the related exercise prices and expiration dates Options are granted pursuant to the

companys equity incentive plan

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31 2012

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentive

Equity Plan

Equity Incentive Awards

Incentive Plan Market or

Plan Awards Payout

Awards Number of Value of

Number of Number of Market Unearned Unearned

Securities Number of Securities Number of Value of Shares Shares

Thiderlying Securities Underlying Shares or Shares or Units or Units or

Unexercised Underlying Unexercised Units of Units of Other Other

Options Unexercised Unearned Option Option Stock That Stock That Rights That Rights That

Exercisable Optiofls Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not Have Not Have Not

Name Unexercisable Price Date Vested Vested Vested Vested

Michael Crapps 5000 10563 $20.20 1/19/2015 10563 $88095

David Proctor 5000 3544 $20.20 1/19/2015 3544 $29557

Joseph Sawyer 5000 4169- $20.20 1/19/2015 4169 $34769

All outstanding options are fully vested as of Januaiy 19 2010

Equity Incentivc Plan awards cliff vest on May 15 2015

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

There were no stock options exercised by any named executive officers during the year ended

December 31 2012

Certain Retirement and Salary Continuation Benefits

The company has established the First Community Bank Profit Sharing Plan qualified 40 1k
defined contribution plan pursuant to which the company makes matching and discretionary

contributions on behalf of the each of the executive officers The company also maintains and pays
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premiums on behalf of each executive officer under life insurance plan and provides partial payment

of premiums for medical benefits if the executive officer so elects

We have entered into salary continuation agreements with Michael Crapps David Proctor and

Joseph Sawyer The salary continuation agreements provide for an annual supplemental retirement

benefit to be paid to each of the applicable executives commencing at the specified normal retirement

age and payable in monthly mstallments for prescribed number of years Each applicable executive

will also receive this benefit if his employment is terminated following change in control as defined

in the executives employment agreement

If the executive dies after separation of service but before his annual supplemental benefit

commences the executives benefit will be paid to his beneficiariçs beginning with the month following

the banks receipt of copy of the executives death certificate If the executive dies after his benefit

has commenced the remaining benefits will be paid to the executives beneficiaries at the same time

and in the same amounts that would have been distributed to the executive had he survived If the

executive dies during active service 100% of his accrual balance as defined in the salary continuation

agreement will be paid in lump sum to his beneficiaries

If the executive experiences disability that results in separation of service prior to the normal

retirement age the executive will be entitled to 100% of his accrual balance determined as of the end

of the plan year preceding termination

If the executive is terminated without cause as defined in the executives employment agreement
the executive is entitled to 100% of his accrual balance determmed as of the end of the plan year

precedmg such termination This benefit is determined by vesting the executive in 10% of the accrual

balance at the end of the first plan year and an additional 10% of such amount at the end of each

succeeding year thereafter until the executive becomes 100% vested in the accrual balance

To offset the annual expense accruals for the benefits payable to the executives under the salary

continuation agreements the bank acquired bank-owned life insurance BOLl It is anticipated that

the BOLT will provide full cost recovery of the benefits paid to the executives under the salary

continuation agreements upon their deaths

The foregoing summary of the material features of the salary continuation agreements for

Messrs Crapps Proctor and Sawyer is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the

agreements the form of which is attached as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed by the company with the

SEC on August 2006

See also the discussion under Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements

Director Compensation

During the year ended December 31 2012 outside directors received retainer in the amount of

$7500 and fees of $1000 for attendance at each board meeting and $400 for attendance at each

committee meeting Committee chairpersons received $8500 as an annual retainer The chairman of

the board received $12500 retainer and $1350 for each board meeting Mr Crapps as an employee

of the company does not receive any board fees He is not listed in the table below because his
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compensation as named executive officer is described above in this proxy statement The following is

summary of the compensation paid to directors for 2012

Name

Richard Bogan $22700 $4995 27695

Thomas Brown 24100 4995 29095

Chimin Chao 25300 4995 30295

Arnta Easter 20700 4995 25695

Ethridge 23100 4995 28095

George Fann Jr 26500 4995 31495

James Kitchens Jr 24100 4995 29095

Thomas Johnson3 24300 4995 142500 171795

James Leventis4 13500 4995 30100 48595

Alexander Snipe 21300 4995 26295

Roderick Todd Jr 22300 4995 27295

Loretta Whitehead 22700 4995 27695

Mitchell Willoughby 28700 4995 33695

The company has implemented director deferred compensation plan whereby the director can

elect to defer the annual retainer and earned monthly fees For the amounts deferred under the

plan the director receives units that can be exchanged for stock when the director retires The

amounts reflected this column include the deferred amounts

On May 15 2012 each non-officer director was granted 04 shares of restricted stock as part of

the overall board compensation plan The shares were valued at $8 27 per share which was the

closing price of the companys common stock on May 14 2012 as reported by The NASDAQ Stock

Market The shares were fully vested on January 2013 The value of restricted stock grants

shown above equals the grant
date fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718

Mr Johnson was paid $12500 per month for the nine months ended September 30 2012 under

the terms of his employment consulting and noncompete agreement entered into upon

consummation of the DutchFork merger on October 2004 and $30000 for the year ended

December 31 2012 under the terms of his supplemental executive retirement agreement which

agreement is further described below

James Leventis retired as an executive officer of the bank and terminated his employment

agreement in February of 2010 Mr Leventis did not receive any severance payment under his

employment agreement He was paid $30100 for the year ended December 31 2012 underthe

terms of his supplemental executive retirement agreement which agreement is further described

below Mr Leventis term expired at the May 16 2012 annual meeting He did not seek reelection

as he had reached the mandatory retirement age based on the companys bylaws

Fees Non-Equity Nonqualitied

Earned or Incentive Deferred

Paid in Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other

Cash Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation

1$ 2$
Total
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Accumulated
Accumulated Share Units

Share Units Since

_________
Inception

227 11841

3264 16217

19 986

128

130 7148

.493

2768 14498
16 840

1619 8714

Amounts include dividend allocation on accumulated units

In connection with their prior employment by the company the company entered into

supplemental executive retirement agreements with each of James Leventis and Thomas Johnson

If either such director dies after his benefit has commenced the remaining benefits will be paid to the

executives beneficiaries at the same time and in the same amounts that would have been distributed to

the executive had he survived Pursuant to their respective supplement executive retirement

agreements Mr Johnson is entitled to receive $30000 annually for seventeen years beginning in

October 2009 and Mr Leventis is entitled to receive $30100 annually for ten years beginning in

March of 2010 Mr Johnson was paid $30000 in 2012 under the plan and Mr Leventis was paid

$30100 in 2012 under the plan

The following table summarizes the fee amounts deferred for each director electing all or partial

deferral

2012

Fees

Deferred

$1
Richard Bogan 1872
Chimin Chao 27738

Ethridge 156

George Fann 20

Thomas Johnson 1130
James Kitchens Jr 78

Alexander Snipe Jr 23491
Loretta Whitehead 133

Mitchell Willoughby 13878
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Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth information known to the Company with respect to beneficial

ownership of the Companycommon stock as of March 31 2013 for each director and nominee

ii each hold-ei ol 0% or greater of the Companys common stock iii the Companys named

executive officers and iv all executive officers and directors as group Unless otherwise indicated

the mailing addre for each beneficial owner is care of First Community Corporation 5455 Sunset

Boulevard Lexington South Carolina 29072

Name

Richard BogarL .4973

Thomas BrowrL 22998 7740

Chimin Chao 36112

Michael Crapps 96151 6290

Anita Easter .23528

O.A Ethridge 23184 4730

George Fann Jr 68115 24080

James Kitchens Jr 6634 34400

Thomas Johnson 30335 4300

David Proctor 28279 5430

Joseph Sawyer 27411 6720

Alexander Snipe Jr 4515

Roderick Todd Jr 793

Loretta Whiteiead 17623

Mitchell Willcughby 24436 4300

Sandler ONeill Asset Management LLC et al4 450600

Manulife Asset Management US LLC et alS 365000

All executive officers and directors as group 15 persons 1237877 97990

Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or

investment power with respect to securities Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and

pursuant to applicable community property laws to the companys knowledge the persons named

in the table above have sole voting and investment power with respect
to all shares of common

stock beneficially owned

Includes shares that may be acquired within the next 60 days as of March 31 2013 by exercising

vested stock options but does not include any unvested stock options On December 16 2011 the

company sold 2500 units with each unit consisting of an 8.75% subordinated note due in 2019

$1000 principal amount and warrant to purchase 43 shares of common stock of the company at

an exercise price equal to $5.90 per share to certain accredited investors including directors and

executive officers of the company for an aggregate purchase price of $2500000 The subordinated

debt was subsequently redeemed by the company on November 15 2012 The warrants remain

outstanding and are exercisable at any time and expire December 16 2019 Warrants issued to

directors and executive officers have been included in the table

For each individual this percentage is determined by assuming the named person exercises all

options which he or she has the right to acquire within 60 days but that no other persons exercise

any options or warrants For the directors and executive officers as group this percentage is

determined by assuming that each director and executive officer exercises all options which he or

she has the right to acquire within 60 days but that no other persons exercise any options The

calculations .are based on 5290452 shares of common stock outstanding on March 31 2013

Number of Right to of Beneficial

Shares Owned1 Acquire2 Ownership3

.09%

.58%

.68%

1.93%

.44%

.53%

1.73%

.77%

.65%

.64%

.64%

.09%

.15%

.33%

.54%

8.52%

6.90%

24.79%
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Based on information set forth in Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14 2013 by

Sandier ONeill Asset Management LLC and certain related entities Sandler ONeill Asset

Management beneficially owned 450600 shares of Common Stock as of December 31 2012 with

shared voting power over 450600 shares and shared dispositive power over 450600 shares The
address of Sandier ONeill Asset Management LLC Management LLC is 150 East 52nd Street

30th Floor New York New York 10022

Based on information set forth in Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13 2013 by

Manuiife Asset Management US LLC and certain related entities Manulife Asset Management
US LLC beneficially owned 365000 shares of Common Stock as of December 31 2012 with sole

voting power over 365000 shares and sOle dispositive power over 365000 shares The address of

Manulife Asset Management US LLC is 101 Huntington Avenue Boston Massachusetts 02199

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The bank has had and expects to have in the future loans and other banking transactions in the

ordinary course of business with directors including our independent directors and executive officers

of the Company and its subsidiaries including members of their families or corporations partnerships

or other organizations in which such officers or directors have controlling interest These loans are

made on substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those available at the

time for comparable transactions with persons not related to the bank and did not involve more than

the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features

In addition our bank subsidiary is subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve

Act which places limits on the amount of loans or extensions of credit to or investments in or certain

other transactions with affiliates and on the amount of advances to third parties collateralized by the

securities or obligations of affiliates The bank is also subject to the provisions of Section 23B of the

Federal Reserve Act which among other things prohibits an institution from engaging in certain

transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantially the same or at

least as favorable to such institution or its subsidiaries as those prevailing at the time for comparable

transactions with nonaffiliated companies

The
aggregate dollar amount of loans outstanding to directors arid exeŒutive officers of the bank

was approximately $10.9 million at March 31 2013

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership RepoEting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires that the ccnpanys executive

officers directors and persons who own more than 10% of any registered class of the companys equity

securities file reports
of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC Executive officers directors

and greater than 10% shareholders are required by regulation to furnish the company with copies of all

Section 16a reports they file

Based solely on review of Forms and and any representations made to the company the

company believes that all such reports for these persons were filed in timely fashion during 2012
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Independent Registered Public Accountants

We have selec ted Elliott Davis LLC to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm

for the year ending December 31 2012 representative of Elliott Davis LLC will be present at the

annual meeting and will have the opportunity to make statement if desired and is expected to be

available to respond to appropriate questions

Audit Fees

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Audit Fees1 96875 95400

Audit-Related Fees2 89955 33900

Tax Fees 13170 10095

Other3 6750 6500

Total $206750 $145895

Audit Fees consisted primarily of the audit of the companys annual consolidated financial

statements and for reviews of the condensed consolidated financial statements included in

the companys quarterly reports on form 10-Q

Audit Related Fees for 2012 and 2011 consisted primarily of procedures related to offering

documents the audit of the Companys 401 plan audit HUD compliance audit and

miscellaneous accounting and research discussions

Other fees for 2012 and 2011 consisted of fees related to Bank Secrecy Act compliance

Oversight of Accountants Approval of Accounting Fees

Under the provisions of its charter the audit/compliance committee is responsible for the

retention compensation and oversight of the work of the independent auditors The committee reviews

any proposed services to insure that securities laws do not prohibit them and approves the scope of all

services prior to being performed All of the accounting services and fees reflected in the table above

have been reviewed and approved by the audit/compliance committee and individuals who were not

employees of the independent auditor performed none of the services

Shareholder Proposals for the 2014 Annual Meeting of SharehOlders

If shareholders wish proposal to be included in the companys proxy statement and form of proxy

relating to the 20 annual meeting of shareholders they must deliver written copy of their proposal

to the principal executive offices of the company no later than December 2013 To ensure prompt

receipt by the company the proposal should be sent certified mail return receipt requested Proposals

must comply with the companys bylaws relating to shareholder proposals in order to be included in the

companys proxy materials

Any shareholder proposal to be made at an annual meeting but which is not requested to be

included in our proxy materials must comply with our bylaws Proposals must be delivered to our

principal executive offices not later than 90 days in advance of the annual meeting
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report including information included or incorporated by reference in this document contains

statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Forward-looking

statements may relate to among other matters the financial condition results of operations plans

objectives future performance and business of our Company Forward-looking statements are based on

many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance Our actual results may

differ materially from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements as they will depend on many

factors about which we are unsure including many factors which are beyond our control The words

may would could should will expect anticipate predict project potential

continue assume believe intend plan forecast goal and estimate as well as similar

expressions are meant to identif such forward-looking statements Potential risks and uncertainties

that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking

statements include without limitation those described under the heading Risk Factors in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC and the following

credit losses as result of among other potential factors declining real estate values increasing

interest rates increasing unemployment or changes in payment behavior or other factors

the amount of our loan portfolio collateralized by real estate and weaknesses in the real estate

market

restrictions or conditions imposed by our regulators on our operations

the adequacy of the level of our allowance for loan losses and the amount of loan loss provisions

required in future periods

examinations by our regulatory authorities including the possibility that the regulatory

authorities may among other things require us to increase our allowance for loan losses or

write-down assets

reduced earnings due to higher other-than-temporary impairment charges resulting from

additional decline in the value of our securities portfolio specifically as result of increasing

default rates and loss seventies on the unde1ying real estate collateral

increases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries

changes in the interest rate environment which could reduce anticipated or actual margins

changes in political conditions or the legislative or regulatory environment including

governmental initiatives affecting the financial services industry

general economic conditions resulting in among other things deterioration in credit quality

changes occurring in business conditions and inflation

changes in access to funding or increased regulatory requirements with regard to funding

increased cybersecurity risk including potential business disruptions or financial losses

changes in deposit flows

changes in technology

changes in monetary and tax policies

changes iii accounting policies and practices



the rate of delinquencies and amounts of loans charged-off

the rate of loan growth in recent years and the lack of seasoning of portion of our loan

portfolio

our ability to maintain appropriate levels of capital

our ability to attract and retain key personnel

our ability to retain our existing clients including our deposit relationships

adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses

loss of consumer confidence and economic disruptions resulting from terrorist activities and

other risks and uncertainties described under Risk Factors below

Because of these and other risks and uncertainties our actual future results may be materially

different from the results indicated by any forward-looking statements For additional information with

respect to factors that could cause actual results to differ from the expectations stated in the forward-

looking statements see Risk Factors under Part Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K In

addition our past results of operations do not necessarily indicate our future results Therefore we

caution you not to place undue reliance on our forward-looking information and statements We
undertake no obligation to update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements whether as

result of new information future events or otherwise

All forward looking statements in this report are based on information available to us as of the

date of this report Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward looking

statements are reasonable we cannot guarantee you that these expectations will be achieved We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward looking statements whether

as result of new information future events or otherwise



PART

Item Business

General

First Community Corporation the Company bank holding company registered under the

Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended was incorporated under the laws of South Carolina

in 1994 primarily to own and control all of the capital stock of First Community Bank the Bank
which commenced operations

in August 1995 as national banking association On October 2012

the Bank converted from national bank charter .to South Carolina state bank charter and the bank

name was changed from First Community Bank NA to First Community Bank As national bank the

Banks primary federal regulator was the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC
Subsequent to the conversion to state bank charter the Banks primary federal regulator is the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC The Bank is also regulated and examined by the

South Carolina Dard of Financial Institutions the Board

On October 2004 we completed our acquisition of DutchFork Bancshares Inc and its wholly-

owned subsidiary Newberry Federal Savings Bank During the second quarter of 2006 we completed

our acquisition of DeKalb Bankshares Inc the holding company for The Bank of Camden On

September 15 2008 we completed the acquisition of two financial planning and investment advisory

firms EAH Financial Group and Pooled Resources LLC The Bank expanded its residential mortgage

business unit with the acquisition of the assets of Palmetto .South Mortgage Corporation Palmetto

South effective July 31 2011 Palmetto South which operates as division of the Bank offers

mortgage loan products for home purchase or refinance in the South Carolina market area We engage

in commercial banking business from our main office in Lexington South Carolina and our 11

full service offices located in Lexington two Forest Acres Irmo Cayce West Columbia Gilbert

Chapin Northeast Columbia Prosperity Newberry and Camden We offer wide-range of traditional

banking products and services for professionals and small-tb medium-Sized businesses including

consumer and commercial mortgage brokerage and investment and insurance services We also offer

online banking to our customers

Our stock trades on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol FCCO

Location and Service Area

The Bank is engaged in general commercial and retail banking business emphasizing the needs

of small-to-medium sized businesses professional concerns and individuals primarily in Richland

Lexington Kershaw and Newberry Counties of South Carolina and the surrounding areas These

counties which we refer to as the Midlands region of South Carolina had an estimated aggregate

population of 756239 July 2011 estimates based on survey changes to 2010 U.S Census data and

total deposits of approximately $15.3 billion as of June 30 2012 according to the most recent data

published by the FDIC Lexington County which is home to six of our Banks branch offices had

population of 267129 according July 2011 estimates and total deposits of $3.4 billion as of June 30

2012 As of December 31 2012 approximately $232 million or 48.8% of our total deposits are located

in Lexington County Richland County in which we have two branches is the largest county in South

Carolina with population of 389116 and total deposits
of $10.9 billion as of June 30 2012 Columbia

which is located within Richland County is South Carolinas capital city and is geographically

positioned in the center of the state between the industrialized Upstate region of South Carolina and

the coastal city of Charleston Intersected by three major interstate highways 1-20 1-77 and 1-26

Columbias strategic location has contributed greatly to its commercial appeal and growth

We serve attractive banking markets with long-term growth potential and well educated

employment base that helps to support our diverse and relatively stable local economy According to



2010 U.S Census Data Lexington Richland Kershaw and Newberry counties had median household

incomes of $52205 $47922 $44064 and $41815 respectively compared to $43939 for South Carolina

as whole The principal components of the economy within our market areas are service mdustries
government and education and wholesale and retail trade The largest employers in our market area
each of which employs in excess of 3000 people are Fort Jackson Army Post the University of South

Carolina Palmetto Health Alliance Blue Cross Blue Shield and Lexington Medical center In addition
Amazon has built distribution center that is expected to add approximately 2000 full time jobs to our
market area when fully operational The Company believes that this diversified economic base has

reduced and will likely continue to reduce economic volatility in our market areas Our markets have

experienced steady economic and population growth over the past 10 years and we expect that the

area as well as the service industry needed to support it will contmue to grow

Banking Services

We offer full range of deposit services that are typically available in most banks and thrift

institutions including checking accounts NOW accounts savings accounts and other time deposits of

various types ranging from daily money market accounts to longer-term certificates of deposit The
transaction accounts and time certificates are tailored to our principal market area at rates competitive
to those offered in the area In addition we offer certain retirement account services such as

Individual Retirement Accounts IRAs All deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC up to the

maximum amount allowed by law currently $250000 subject to aggregation rules

We also offer full range of commercial and personal loans Commercial loans include both
secured and unsecured loans for working capital including inventory and receivables business

expansion including acquisition of real estate and improvements and the purchase of equipment and

machinery Consumer loans include secured and unsecured loans for financing automobiles home
improvements education and personal investments We also make real estate construction and

acquisition loans We originate fixed and variable rate mortgage loans substantially all of which are

sold into the secondary market Our lending activities are subject to variety of lending limits imposed
by federal law While differing limits apply in certain circumstances based on the type of loan or the

nature of the borrower including the borrowers relationship to the bank in general we are subject to

loans-to-one-borrower limit of an amount equal to 15% of the Banks unimpaired capital and surplus
or 25% of the unimpaired capital and surplus if the excess over 15% is approved by the board of

directors of the Bank and is fully secured by readily marketable collateral As result our lending lhnit

will increase or decrease in response to increases or decreases in the Banks level of capitaL Based

upon the capitalization of the Bank at December 31 2012 the maximum amount we could lend to one
borrower is $9.2 million In addition we may not make any loans to any director officer employee or
10% shareholder of the Company or the Bank unless the loan is approved by our board of directors

and is made on terms not more favorable to such person than would be available to person not
affiliated with the Bank

Other bank services include internet banking cash management services safe deposit boxes
travelers checks direct deposit of payroll and social security checks and automatic drafts for various

accounts We offer non-deposit investment products and other investment brokerage services through
registered representative with an affiliation through LPL Fmancial We are associated with Jeannie
Star and Plus networks of automated teller machines and MasterCard debit cards that may be used by
our customers throughout South Carolina and other regions We also offer VISA and MasterCard
credit card services through correspondent bank as our agent

We currently do not exercise trust powers but we can begin to do so with the
prior approval of

our primary banking regulators the FDIC and the SCBFI



Competition

The banking business is highly competitive
We compete as financial intermediary with other

commercial banks savings and loan associations credit unions and money market mutual funds

operating in Richiand Lexington Kershaw and Newberry Counties and elsewhere As of June 30 2012

there were 24 financial institutions operating approximately 196 offices in Lexington Richiand

Kershaw and Newberry Counties The competition among the various financial institutions is based

upon variety of factors including interest rates offered on deposit accounts interest rates charged on

loans credit and ervice charges the quality of services rendered the convenience of banking facilities

and in the case cf loans to large commercial borrowers relative lending limits Size gives larger banks

certain advantages in competing for business from large corporations These advantages include higher

lending limits and the ability to offer services in other areas of South Carolina As result we do not

generally attempt to compete for the banking relationships of large corporations but concentrate our

efforts on small-to-medium sized businesses and individuals We believe we have competed effectively

in this market by offering quality and personal service In addition many of our non-bank competitors

are not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and

federally insured banks

Market Share

As of June 30 2012 the most recent date for which market data is available total deposits in the

Banks primary market area Lexington Richiand Kershaw and Newberry Counties were over

$15.2 billion At June 30 2012 our deposits represented 3.1% of the market

Employees

As of December 31 2012 we had 158 full time employees We believe that our relations with our

employees are good

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Both the Company and the Bank are subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and

regulations that impose specific requirements or restrictions on and provide for general regulatory

oversight of virtually all aspects of our operations These laws and regulations are generally intended to

protect depositors not shareholders The following summary is qualified by reference to the statutory

and regulatory provisions
discussed Changes in applicable laws or regulations may have material

effect on our business and prospects Our operations may be affected by legislative changes and the

policies
of various regulatory authorities.We cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies

economic control or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings
in the

future

Following 2012 on-site examination of the Bank the 0CC notified the Bank that effective

June 28 2012 the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that itentered into with the

0CC in 2010 The 0CC also notified the Bank that effective June 28 2012 it was no longer subject to

the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24 2010 which had

required the Bank to maintain Tier leverage capital ratio of at least 00% Tier risk based

capital ratio of at least 10 00% and total risk based capital ratio of at least 1200% The general

regulatory minimums to be well-capitalized are Tier leverage capital ratio of at least 00%

Tier risk-basecL capital ratio of at least .6.00% and total risk-based capital ratio of at least 1000%

These regulatory capital ratios for the Bank were 10 34% 16 87% and 18 12% respectively as of

December 31 2012 In addition the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond notified the Company that

effective July 10 2012 the Company was no longer subject to the Memorandum of Understanding that

it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in December of 2011 which had



terminated and replaced Memorandum of Understanding entered into in June of 2010 theMOU
First Community Corporation

We own 100% of the
outstanding capital stock of the Bank and therefore we are considered to be

bank holding company under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the
Bank Holding Company Act As result we are primarily subject to the supervision examination
and reporting requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve the Federal Reserve

Board under the Bank Holding Company Act and its regulations promulgated there under
Moreover as bank holding company of bank located in South Carolina we also are subject to the
South Carolina Banking and Branching Efficiency Act

Permitted Activities Under the Bank Holding Company Act bank holding company is generally
permitted to engage in or acquire direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of

any company engaged in the following activities

banking or managing or controlling banks

furnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries and

any activity that the Federal Reserve Board determmes to be so closely related to banking as to
be proper incident to the business of banking

Activities that the Federal Reserve Board has found to be so closely related to banking as to be

proper incident to the business of banking include

factoring accounts receivable

making acquiring brokering or servicing loans and usual related activities

leasing personal or real property

operating non-bank depository institution such as savings association

trust company functions

financial and investment
advisory activities

conducting discount securities brokerage activities

underwriting and dealmg in government obligations and money market mstruments

providing specified management consulting and counseling activities

performing selected data
processing services and support services

acting as agent or broker in selling credit life insurance and other
types of insurance in

connection with credit transactions and

performing selected insurance underwriting activities

As bank holdmg company we also can elect to be treated as financial holding company
which would allow us to engage in broader

array of actjvities In sum financial holding company
can engage in activities that are financial in nature or incidental or complimentary to financial

activities including insurance underwriting sales and brokerage activities providing financial and
investment advisory services underwriting services and limited merchant banking activities We have not
sought financial holding company status but may elect such status in the future as our business

matures If we were to elect in writing for financial holding company status each insured depository



institution we cOntrol would have to be well capitalized well managed and have at least satisfactory

rating under the Community Reinvestment Act CRA discussed below

The Federal Reserve Board has the authority to order bank holding company or its subsidiaries

to terminate any cf these activities or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it

has reasonable cause to believe that the bank holding companys continued ownership activity or

control constitutes serious risk to the financial safety soundness or stability of it or any of its bank

subsidiaries

Change in Control In addition and subject to certain exceptions the Bank Holding Company Act

and the Change in Bank Control Act together with regulations promulgated thereunder require

Federal Reserve Board approval prior to any person or company acquiring control of banlç holding

company Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individual or company acquires 25% or more

of any class of voting securities of bank holding company Control will be rebuttably presuæiod to

exist if person acquires more than 33% of the total equity of bank or bank holding company of

which it may own control or have the power to vote not more than 15% of any class of voting

securities

Source of Strength There are number of obligations and restrictions imposed by law and

regulatory policy on bank holding companies with regard to their depository institution subsidiaries that

are designed to minimize potential loss to depositOrs
and to the FDIC insurance funds in the event

that the depositoty institution becomes in danger of defaulting under its obligations to repay deposits

Under policy of the Federal Reserve Board bank holding company is required to serveas source

of financial strength to its subsidiary depository institutions and to conirnit resources to support such

institutions in circumstances where it might not do so absent such policy Under the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA to avoid receivership of its insured

depository institution subsidiary bank holding company is required to guarantee the compliance of

any insured depository institution subsidiary that may become undercapitalized within the terms of

any capital restoration plan filed by such subsidiary with its appropriate federal banking agency up to

the lesser of an amount equal to 5% of the institutions total assets at the time the institution

became undercapitalized or ii the amount which is necessary or would have been necessary to bring

the institution into compliance with all applicable capital standards as of the time the institution fails to

comply with such capital restoration plan

The Federal Reserve Board also has the authority under the Bank Holding Company Act to

require
bank holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish

control of nonbank subsidiary

other than nonbank subsidiary of bank upon the Federal Reserve Boards determination that such

activity or control constitutes serious risk to the financial soundnçss or stability of any subsidiary

depository institution of the bank holding company Further federal law grants
federal bank regulatory

authorities additional discretion to require bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or

nonbank subsidiary if the agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository institutions

financial condition

In addition the cross guarantee provisions of the Federal Deposit insurance 4ct FDIA
require

insured depository institutions under common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss

suffered or reasonably anticipated by the FDIC as result of the default of commonly controlled

insured depository institution or for any assistance provided by the FDIC to commonly controlled

insured depository institutiOn in danger of default The FDICs claim for damages is superior to claims

of shareholders of the insured depository institution or its holding company but is subordinate to

claims of depositors secured creitors and holders of subordinated debt other than affiliates of the

commonly controlled insured depository
institutions

The FDIA also provides that amounts received from the liquidation or other resolution of any

insured depository institution by any receiver must be distributed after payment of secured claims to



pay the deposit liabilities of the institution prior to payment of any other general or unsecured senior

liability subordinated liability general creditor or shareholder This
provision would

give depositors

preference over general and subordinated creditors and shareholders in the event receiver is

appointed to distribute the assets of our Bank

Any capital loans by bank holding company to any of its subsidiary banks are subordinate in

right of payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary bank In the event of
bank holding companys bankruptcy any commitment by the bank holding company to federal bank

regulatory agency to maintain the capital of subsidiary bank will be assumed by the bankruptcy
trustee and entitled to priority of payment

Capital Requirements The Federal Reserve Board imposes certain capital requirements on the
bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act including minimum leverage ratio and

minimum ratio of quahmg capital to risk weighted assets These requirements are essentially the

same as those that apply to the Bank and are described below under First Community BankCapital
Regulations Subject to our capital requirements and certain other restrictions we are able to borrow

money to make capital contribution to the Bank and these loans may be repaid from dividends paid
from the Bank to the Company Our ability to pay dividends depends on among other things the
Banks ability to pay dividends to us which is subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in
First Community BankDividends We are also able to raise capital for contribution to the Bank by
issuing securities without having to receive regulatory approval subject to compliance with federal and
state securities laws

Dividends Since the Company is bank holding company its ability to declare and pay dividends
is dependent on certain federal and state regulatory considerations including the guidelines of the
Federal Reserve Board The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement regarding the

payment of dividends by bank holding companies In general the Federal Reserve Boards policies

provide that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of

earnings retention by the bank holding company appears Consistent with the organizations capital
needs asset quality and overall financial condition The Federal Reserve Boards policies also require
that bank holding company serve as source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing

ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of

financial stress or adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to

obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary In addition under the

prompt corrective action regulations the ability of bank holding company to pay dividends may be
restricted if subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized These regulatory policies could affect the

ability of the Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions

In addition since the Company is legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and does not
conduct stand-alone operations its ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of the Bank to pay
dividends to it which is also subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in First Community
BankDividends

South Carolina State Reguhztion As South Carolina bank holding company under the South
Carolina Banking and Branching Efficiency Act we are subject to limitations on sale or merger and to

regulation by the S.C Board We are not required to obtain the approval of the S.C Board prior to

acquiring the capital stock of national bank but we must notify them at least 15 days prior to doing
so We must receive the S.C Boards approval prior to engaging in the acquisition of South Carolina
state chartered bank or another South Carolina bank holding company



First Community Bank

As noted above on October 2012 the Bank converted trom national bank charter to South

Carolina state bank charter and the bank name was changed from First Community Bank NA to First

Community Bank Subsequent to the conversion to state bank charter the Banks primary federal

regulator is the F1IC In addition the Bank is regulated and examined by the S.C Board Deposits in

the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to maximum amount of $250000 pursuant to the provisions of

the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Dodd-Frank Act signed into

law by the US President on July 21 2010 The FDIC insurance coverage limit applies per depositor

per insured depository institution for each account ownership category In addition the FDIC provided

unlimited deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts typically business

checking accounts and certain funds swept into noninterest-bearing savings accounts through

December 31 2012 through the Transaction AcÆount Guarantee program The Transaction Account

Guarantee program expired as of January 2013 and these accounts are now insured up to the

maximum $250000 noted above

The Board and the FDIC regulate or monitor virtually all areas of the Banks operations

including

Security devices and procedures

adequacy of capitalization and loss reserves

loans

investments

borrowings

deposits

mergers

issuances of securities

payment of dividends

interest rates payable on deposits

interest rates or fees chargeable on loans

establishment of branches

corporate reorganizations

maintenance of books and records and

adequacy of staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit gathering practices

The FDIC requires that the Bank maintain specified capital ratios of capital to assets and imposes

limitations on the Banks aggregate
investment in real estate bank premises and furniture and fixtures

Two categories of regulatory capital are used in calculating these ratiosTier capital and total capital

Tier capital generally includes common equity retained earnings limited amount of qualifying

preferred stock and qualifying minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries xeduced by goodwill and

certain other intangible assets such as core deposit intangibles and certain other assets Total capital

generally consists of Tier capital plus Tier capital which includes the allowance for loan losses

preferred stock lhat did not qualify as Tier capital certain types
of subordinated debt and limited

amount of other items
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The Bank is required to calculate three ratios the ratio of Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

the ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets and the leverage ratio which is the ratio of Tier

capital to assets on non-risk-adjusted basis For the two ratios of capital to risk-weighted assets

certain assets such as cash and U.S Treasury securities have zero risk weighting Others such as

commercial and consumer loans have 100% risk weightmg Some assets notably purchase money

loans secured by first liens on residential real property are risk weighted at 50% Assets also include

amounts that represent the potential funding of off-balance sheet obligations such as loan commitments

and letters of credit These potential assets are assigned to risk categories in the same manner as

funded assets The total assets in each category are multiplied by the appropriate risk weighting to

determine risk-adjusted assets for the capital calculations

The minimum capital ratios for both the Company and the Bank are generally 8% for total capital

4% for Tier capital and 4% for leverage To be eligible to be classified as well capitalized the Bank

must generally maintain total capital ratio of 10% or more Tier capital ratio of 6% or more and

leverage ratio of 5% or more Certain implications of the regulatory capital classification system are

discussed in greater detail below

Prompt Corrective Action The FDICIA established prompt corrective action program in which

every
bank is placed in one of five regulatory categories depending primarily on its regulatory capital

levels The FDIC and the other federal banking regulators are permitted to take increasingly severe

action as banks capital position or financial condition declines below the Adequately Capitalized

level described below Regulators are also empowered to place in receivership or require the sale of

bank to another depository institution when banks leverage ratio reaches two percent Better

capitalized institutions are generally subject to less onerous regulation and supervision than banks with

lesser amounts of capital The FDICs regulations set forth five capital categories each with specific

regulatory consequences The categories are

Well CapitalizedThe institution exceeds the required mimmum level for each relevant capital

measure well capitalized institution is one having total capital ratio of 10% or greater

ii having Tier capital ratio of 6% or greater iii having leverage capital ratio of 5% or

greater and iv that is not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain

specific capital level for any capital measure

Adequately CapitalizedThe institution meets the required minimum level for each relevant

capital measure No capital distribution may be made that would result in the institution

becoming undercapitalized An adequately capitalized institution is one having total capital

ratio of 8% or greater ii having Tier capital ratio of 4% or greater
and iii having

leverage capital ratio of 4% or greater or leverage capital ratio of 3% or greater if the

institution is rated composite under the CAMELS Capital Assets Management Earnings

Liquidity and Sensitivity to market risk rating system

UndercapitalizedThe institution fails to meet the required minimum level for any relevant

capital measure An undercapitalized institution is one having total capital ratio of less than

8% or ii having Tier capital ratio of less than 4% or iii having leverage capital ratio of

less than 4% or if the institution is rated composite under the CAMEL rating system

leverage capital ratio of less than 3%

Significantly UndercapitalizedThe institution is significantly below the required minimum level

for any relevant capital measure significantly undercapitalized institution is one having

total capital ratio of less than 6% or ii having Tier capital ratio of less than 3% or

iii having leverage capital ratio of less than 3%
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Critically Undercapitalized--The institution fails to meet critical capital level set by the

appropriate federal banking agency critically undercaptahzed institution is one having ratio

of tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less thap 2%

If the FDI determines after notice and an opportunity for hearing that the bank is in an unsafe

or unsound condition the regulator is authorized to reclassify the bank to the next lower capital

category other than critically undercapitalized and require the submission of plan to correct the

unsafe or unson rid condition

If bank is not well capitalized it cannot accept brokered deposits without prior regulatory

approval In addition bank that is not well capitalized cannot offer an effective yield in excess of 75

basis points over interest paid on deposits of comparable size and maturity in such institutions normal

market area for deposits accepted from within its normal market area or national rate paid on deposits

of comparable size and maturity for deposits accepted outside the bank normal market area

Moreover the FDIC generally prohibits depository institution from making any capital distributions

including paym nt of dividend or paying any management fee to its parent holding company if the

depository institution would thereafter be categorized as undercapitalized Undercapitalized institutions

are subject to growth limitations an undercapitalized institution may not acquire another institution

establish additional branch offices or engage in any new line of business unless determined by the

appropriate federal banking agency to be consistent with an accepted capital restoratiOn plan or unless

the FDIC determines that the proposed action will further the purpose of prompt corrective action
and are required to submit capital restoration plan The agencies may not accept capital restoration

plan without determining among other things that the plan is based on realistic assumptions and is

likely to succeed in restoring the depository institutions capital In addition for capital restoration

plan to be acceptable the
depository institution parent holding company must guarantee that the

institution will comply with the capital restoration plan The aggregate liability of the parent holding

company is limited to the lesser of an amount equal to 5.0% of the depository institutions total assets

at the time it became categorized as undercapitalized or the amount that is necessary or would have

been necessary to bring the institution into compliance with all capital standards applicable with

respect to such institution as of the time it fails to comply with the plan If depository institution fails

to submit an acceptable plan it is categorized as significantly undercapitalized

Significantly undercapitalized categorized depository institutions may be subject to number of

requirements and restrictions including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to become categorized as

adequately capit ilized requirements to reduce total assets and cessation of
receipt of deposits from

correspondent banks The appropriate federal banking agency may take any action authorized for

significantly undercapitalized institution if an undercapitalized institution fails to submit an acØeptable

capital restoration plan or fails in any material respect to implement plan accepted by the agency

critically undercapitalized institution is subject to having receiver or conservator appointed to manage
its affairs and for loss of its charter to conduct banking activities

An insured depository institution may not pay management fee to bank holding company
controlling that inStitution or any other person having control of the institutiOn if after making the

payment the institution would be underoapitalized In addition an institution cannot make capital

distribution such as dividend or other distribution that is in substance distribution of capital to the

owners of the institution if following such distribution the institution would be undercapitalized Thus
if payment of such management fee or the making of such would cause bank to become

undercapitalized it could not pay management fee or dividend to the bank liolding company

In December 2010 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision an international forum for

cooperation on banking supervisory matters announced the Basel III
capital rules which set new

capital requirements for banking organizations On June 2012 the Federal Reserve Board the 0CC
and the FDIC issued joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement sections of the
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Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and liquidity On

November 2012 following public comment period the US federal banking agencies announced

that the originally proposed January 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being delayed so

that the agencies could consider operations and transitional issues identified in the large volume of

public comments received The proposed rules if adopted would lead to significantly higher capital

requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in placç The

ultimate impact of the US implementation of the new capital and liquidity standards on the Company
and the Bank is currently being reviewed and is dependent on the terms of the final regulations which

may differ from the proposed regulations At this point the Company cannot determine the ultimate

effect that any fmal regulations if enacted would have on its earnings or financial position In addition

important questions remam as to how the numerous capital and liquidity mandates of the Dodd Frank

Act will be integrated with the requirements of Basel III

Standards for Safety and Soundness The Federal Deposit Insurance Act also requires the federal

banlung regulatory agencies to prescribe by regulation or guideline operational and managerial

standards for all insured depository mstitutions relating to internal controls information systems

and internal audit systems ii loan documentation in credit underwritmg iv interest rate risk

exposure and asset growth The agencies
also must prescribe standards for asset quality earnings

and stock valuation as well as standards for compensation fees and benefits The federal banking

agencies have adopted regulations and Interagency Guidelines Prescribmg Standards for Safety and

Soundness to implement these required standards These guidelines set forth the safety and soundness

standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository

institutions before capital becomes impaired Under the regulations if the FDIC determines that the

Bank fails to meet any standards prescribed by the guidelines the agency may require the Bank to

submit to the agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard as required by the

FDIC The final regulations establish deadlines for the submission and review of such safety and

soundness compliance plans

Regulatory Examination The FDIC also requires the Bank to prepare annual
reports on the

Banks financial condition and to conduct an annual audit of its financial affairs in compliance with its

minimum standards and procedures

All insured institutions must undergo regular on-site examinations by their appropriate banking

agency The cost of examinations of insured depository institutions and any affiliates may be assessed

by the appropriate federal banking agency against eachinstitütion or affiliate as it deems necessary or

appropriate Insured institütiôns are required to submit annual reports to the FDIC their federal

regulatory agency and state supervisor when applicable The FDIC has developed method for insured

depository institutions to provide supplemental disclosure of the estimated fair market value of assets

and liabilities to the extent feasible and practicable in any balance sheet financial statement report of

condition or any other report of any insured depository institution The federal banking regulatory

agencies prescribe by regulation standards for all insured depository institutions and depository

institution holding companies relating among other things to the following

internal controls

information systems and audit systems

loan documentation

credit underwritmg

interest rate risk exposure and

asset quality
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1ansactions with Affiliates and Insiders The Company is legal entity separate
and distinct from

the Bank and its other subsidiaries Various legal limitations restrict the Bank from lending or

otherwise supplying funds to the Company or its nonbank subsidiaries The Company and the Bank

are subject to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Federal Reserve Board

Regulation

Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act places limits on the amount of loans or extensions of

credit to or inve tments in or certain other transactions with affiliates and on the amount of advances

to third parties collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates The aggregate of all covered

transactions is limited in amount as to any one affiliate to 10% of the Banks capital and surplus and

as to all affiliates combined to 20% of the Banks capital and surplus Furthermore withm the

foregoing limitations as to amount each covered transaction must meet specified collateral

requirements The Bank is forbidden to purchase low quality assets from an affiliate

Effective July 21 2011 the Dodd-Frank Act expanded the definition of affiliate for purposes of

quantitative and qualitative limitations of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act to include mutual

funds advised by depository institution or its affiliates The Dodd Frank Act will apply Section 23A

and Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act governing transactions with insiders to derivative

transactions repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing transaction that create credit

exposure to an affiliate or an insider Any such transactions with affiliates must be fully secured The

current exemption from Section 23A for transactions with financial subsidiaries will be eliminated The

Dodd Frank Act will additionally prohibit an insured depository institution from purchasing an asset

from or sellmg an asset to an insider unless the transaction is on market terms and if representing

more than 10% of capital is approved in advance by the disinterested directors

Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act among other things prohibits an institution from engaging

in certain transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantially the same

or at least as favorable to such institution or its subsidiaries as those prevailing at the time for

comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies

Regulation generally excludes all non-bank and non savings association subsidiaries of banks

from treatment as affiliates except to the extent that the Federal Reserve Board decides to treat these

subsidiaries as affiliates The regulation also limits the amount of loans that can be purchased by

bank from an affiliate to not more than 100% of the banks capital and surplus

The Bank is also subject to certain restrictions on extensions of credit to executive officers

directors certain principal shareholders and their related interests Such extensions of credit must

be made on substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral requirements as those

prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with third parties and ii must not involve more

than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features

Dividends rhe Companys principal source of cash flow including cash flow to pay dividends to

its shareholders is dividends it receives from the Bank Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to

the Banks payment of dividends to the Company As South Carolina chartered bank the Bank is

subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay Unless otherwise

instructed by the S.C Board the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking

regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining

the prior approval of the S.C Board The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin

bank from engaging in what in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its

business including the payment of dividend under certain circumstances

Branching Under current South Carolina law the Bank may open branch offices throughout

South Carolina with the prior approval of the S.C Board In addition with prior regulatory approval

the Bank is able to acquire existing banking operations in South Carolina Furthermore federal
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legislationpermits interstate branching including out-of-state acquisitions by bank holding companies

interstate branching by banks and interstate merging by banks The Dodd-Frank Act removes previous

state law restrictions on de novo interstate branching in states such as South Carolina This change

permits out-of-state banks to open de novo branches in states where the laws of the state where the de

novo branch to be opened would permit bank chartered by that state to open de novo branch

Anti-1j.ing Restrictions Under amendments to the Bank Holding Company Act and Federal

Reserve Board regulations bank is prohibited from engaging in certain tying or reciprocity

arrangements with its customers In general bank may not extend credit lease sell property or

furnish any services or fix or vary the consideration for these on the condition that the custOmer

obtain or provide some additional credit property or services from or to the bank the bank holding

company or subsidiaries thereof or ii the customer may not obtain some other credit property or

services from competitor except to the extent reasonable conditions are imposed to assure the

soundness of the credit extended Certain arrangements are permissible bank may offer combined-

balance products and may otherwise offer more favorable terms if customer obtains two or more

traditional bank .product and certain foreign transactions are exempt from the general rule bank

holding company or any bank affiliate also is subject to anti-tying requirements in connection with

electronic benefit tiansfer services

Community Reinvestment Act The CRA requires that the FDIC evaluate the record of the Bank in

meeting the credit needs of its local community including low and moderate income neighborhoods

These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers acquisitions and applications to open branch

or facility Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose additional requfrements .and

limitations on our Bank

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act the GLBA made varioUs changes to the CRA Among other

changes CRA agreements with private parties must be disclosed and annual-CRA reports must be

made available to banks primary federal regulator bank holding compahy will not be permitted to

become financial holding company and no new activities authorized under the GLBA may be

commenced by holding company or by bank financial subsidiary if any of its bank subsidiaries

received less than satisfactory CRA rating in its latest CRA examination

Financial Subsidiaries Under the GLBA subject to certain conditions imposed by their respective

banking regulators national and state-chartered banks are permitted to form financial subsidiaries

that may conduct financial or incidental activities thereby permitting bank subsidiaries to engage in

certain activities that previously were impermissible The GLBA imposes several safegugrds and

restrictions on financial subsidiaries including that the parent banks equity investment in the financial

subsidiary be deducted from the banks assets and tangible equity for purposes of calculating the banks

capital adequacy In addition the GLBA imposes new restrictions On transactions between bank and

its financial subsidiaries similar to restrictions applicable to transactions between banks and non-bank

affiliates

Consumer Protection Regulations Activities of the Bank are subject to variely of statutes and

regulations designed to protect consumers Interest and other charges collected contracted for by the

Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws concerning interest rates The Banks loan

operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions such as

the federal Truth-1n-Lending Act governing disclOsures of credit terms to consumer borrowers

the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975 requiring financial institutions to provide

information to enable the public and public officials to determine whether financial institution

is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves
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the Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibiting discrimination on the basisof race creed or other

prohibited factors in extending credit

the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978 governing the use and provision of information to credit

reporting agencies

the Fair Debt Collection Act governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected

by collection agencies and

the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of

implementing such federal laws

The deposit operations
of the Bank also are subject to

the Right to Financial Privacy Act which imposes duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer

financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of

financial records and

the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation issued by the Federal Reserve Board to

implement that Act which governs automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts

and customers rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other

electronic banlung services

Enforcement Powers The Bank and its institution affiliated parties including its management

employees agent independent contractors and consultants such as attorneys and accountants and

others who participate in the conduct of the financial institutions affairs are subject to potential civil

and criminal penalties for violations of law regulations or written orders of government agency

These practices can include the failure of an institution to timely file required reports or the filing of

false or misleading information or the submission of maccurate reports Civil penalties may be as high

as $1000000 day for such violations Criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes have

been increased to twenty years In addition regulators are provided with greater flexibility to

commence enforcement actions against mstitutions and institution-affiliated parties Possible

enforcement actions include the termination of deposit insurance Furthermore banking agencies

powers to issue cease-and-desist orders have been expanded Such orders may among other things

require affirmative action to correct any harm resulting from violation or practice including

restitution reimbursement indemnificatiOns or guarantees against loss financial institution may also

be ordered to restrict its growth dispose of certain assets rescind agreements or contracts or take

other actions as determined by the ordering agency to be appropriate

Anti-Money Laundering Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering programs that

include established internal policies procedures and controls designated compliance officer an

ongoing employee training program and testing of the program by an independent audit function The

Company and the Bank are also prohibited from entering into specified financial transactions and

account relationships and must meet enhanced standards for due diligence and knowing your

customer in their dealings with foreign financial institutions and foreign customers Financial

institutions must take reasonable steps to conduct enhanced scrutiny of account relationships to guard

against money laundering and to report any suspicious transactions and recent laws provide law

enforcement authorities with increased access to financial information maintained by banks

Anti-money laundering obligations have been substantially strengthened as result of the USA Patriot

Act enacted in 2001 and renewed in 2006 Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for

compliance with lhese obligations and are required to consider compliance in connection with the

regulatory review of applications The regulatory authorities have been active in imposing cease and

desist orders and money penalty sanctions against institutions found to be violating these obligations
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USA PATRIOT Act/Bank Secrecy Act Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering
programs that include established iiiternal policies procedures and controls designated compliance
officer an ongoing employee training program and testing of the program by an independent audit
function The USA PATRIOT Act amended in part he Bank Secrecy Act and provides for the
facilitation of information

sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions for the

purpose of combating terrorism and money laundering by enhancing anti-money laundering and
financial transparency laws as well as enhanced information collection tools and enforcement
mechanics for the u.S government including requiring standards for verifying customer
identification at account opening ii rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions
regulators and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or

money laundering iii reports by nonfinancial trades and businesses filed with the U.S Treasury
Departments Financial Crimes Enforcement Network for transactions exceeding $10000 and iv filing

suspicious activities reports if bank believes customer may be
violating laws and regulations

and
requires enhanced due diligence requirements for financial institutions that administer maintain

or manage private bank accounts or correspondent accounts for non persons Bank regulators
routinely examine institutions for compliance with these dbligàtions and are required to consider
compliance in connection with the

regulatory review of applications

Under the USA PATRIOT Act the Federal Bureau of Investigation FBI can send to the
banking regulatory agencies lists of the names of persons suspectedof involvement jn terrorist
activities The Bank can be requested to search its records for any relationships or transactions with
persons on those lists If the Bank finds any relationships or transactions it- must file suspicious
activity report and contact the FBI

The Office of Foreign Assets Control OFACwhich is division of the Department of the
Treasury the Treasury is responsible for helping to insure that United States entities do not engage
in transactions with enemies of the United States as defined by vanous Executive Orders and Acts
of Congress OFAC has sent and will send our banking regulatory agencies lists of names of personsand organizations suspected of aiding harboring or engaging in terrorist acts If the Bank finds name
on any transaction account or wire transfer that is on an OFAC list it must freeze such account file

suspicious activity report and notify the FBI The Bank has appointed an OFAC compliance officer to
oversee the

inspection of its accounts and the filing of any notifications The Bank actively checks
high-risk- OFAC areas such as new accounts -wire transfers and customer files The Bank performs
these checks utilizing software which is updated each time modification is made to the lists provided
by OFAC and other agencies of Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons

Privacy and Credit Reporting Financial institutions are required to disclose their policies for
collecting and

protecting confidential information Customers
generally may prevent financial

institutions from sharing nonpublic personal flulancial infOrmation with nOnaffiliated third parties except
under narrow circumstances such as the processing of transactions requested by the consumer
Additionally financial institutions

generally may not disclose consumer account numbers to any
nonaffthated third party for use in telemarketmg direct mail marketing or other marketing to
consumers It is the Banks policy not to disclose any personal information unless

required by law The0CC and the federal banlurig agencies have prescribed standards for maintaining the security and
confidentiality of consumer information The Bank is

subject to such standards as well as standards for
notifying consumers in the event of

security breach

Like other lending mstitutions the Bank utilizes credit bureau data in its underwriting activities
Use of such data is regulated under the Federal Credit Reporting Act on uniform nationwide basis
including credit reporting prescreening sharing of information between affiliates and the use of credit
data The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 the FACT Act permits states -to-enact
identity theft laws that arc not inconsistent with the conduct required by the provisions of the FACT
Act

17



Check 21 The Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act gives substitute checks such as

digital image of check and copies made from that image the .same legal standing as the original

paper check Some of the major provisions
include

allowing check truncation without making it mandatory

demanding that every financial institution communicate to accountholders in writing

description of its substitute check processing program and their rights under the law

legalizing substitutions for and replacements of paper checks without agreement from

consumers

retaining in place .the previously
mandated electronic collection and return of checks between

financial institutions only when individual agreements are in place

requiring that when accountholders request verification financial institutions jroduce the

original check or copy that accurately represents
the original aiid demonstrate that the

account debit was accurate and valid and

requiring the re-crediting of funds to an individuals account on the next business day after

consumer proves that the financial institution has erred

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies Our earnings are affected by domestic economic

conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies The

Federal Reserve Boards monetary policies have had and are likely to continue to have an important

impact on the operating results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary

policy
in order among other things to curb inflation or combat recession .The monetary policies

of

the Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon the levels of bank loans investments .and deposits

through its open ni arket operations in United States government securities and through its regulation

of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against member

bank deposits It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and

fiscal policies

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC The Baiiks deposits are insured up to

applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC As insurer the FDIC imposes deposit

insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of and to require reporting by FDIC

insured institutions It also may prohibit any FDIC insured institution from engaging in any activity the

FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose
serious risk to the insurance fund The FDIC also

has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings institutions after giving the banks

regulatory authority an opportunity to take such action and may terminate th deposit insuranc if it

deteimines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or nnsound practices or is in an unsafe or

unsound condition

FDIC insured institutions are required to pay Financing Corporation assessment to fund the

interest on bonds issued to resolve thrift failures in the 1980s The Financing Corporation quarterly

assessment for the fourth quarter of 2012 equaled 1.75 basis points
for each $100 of average

consolidated total assets minus average tangible equity These assessments hich may be revised based

upon the level of deposits will continue until the bonds mature in the years
2017 through 2019

The FDIC may terminate the deposit
insurance of any insured depository institution including the

Bank if it determines after hearing that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices is

in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law regulation

rule order or condition imposed by the FDIC It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily

during the hearing process
for the permanent termination of insurance th institution has no

tangible capital If insurance of accounts is terminated the accounts at the institution at the time of the

termination less subsequent withdrawals shall continue to be insured for period of six months to two
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years as determined by the FDIC Management is not aware of any practice condition or violation
that might lead to termination of the Banks deposit insurance

Incentive Compensation In June 2010 the Federal Reserve Board the FDIC and the 0CC issued
comprehensive final guidance on incentive compensation policies intended to ensure that the

incentive compensation policies of banking organizations do not undermine the
safety and soundness of

such
organizations by encouraging excessive risk taking The guidance which covers all employees that

have the ability to materially affect the nsk profile of an organization either
individually or as part of

group is based upon the key principles that banking organizations incentive compensation
arrangements should provide incentives that do not encourage risk taking beyond the organizations
ability to effectively identify and manage risks ii be compatible with effective internal controls and
risk management and iii be supported by strong corporate governance including active and effective

oversight by the organizations board of directors

The Federal Reserve will review as part of the regular risk focused examination process the
incentive compensation arrangements of banking organizations such as the Company that are not
large complex banking organizations These reviews will be tailored to each organization based on
the scope and complexity of the organizations activities and the prevalence of incentive compensation
arrangements The findings of the

supervisory initiatives will be included in reports of examination
Deficiencies will be incorporated into the organizations supervisory ratings which can affect the

organizations ability to make acquisitions and take other actions Enforcement actions may be taken
against banking organization if its incentive compensation arrangements or related risk-management
control or governance processes pose risk to the organizations safety and soundness and the

organization is not taking prompt and effective measures to correct the deficiencies

Recent Legislative and Regulatoy Initiatives to Address Financial and Economic Crises The
Congress Treasury and the federal banking regulators including the FDIC have taken broad action
since early September 2008 to address volatility in the banking system

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA was enacted The
EESA authorized Treasury to purchase from financial institutions and their holding companies up to
$700 billion in mortgage loans mortgage-related securities and certain other financial instruments
including debt and equity securities issued by financial institutions and their holding companies in the
Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP The Treasury also allocated $250 billion towards the TARP
Capital Purchase Program CPP pursuant to which Treasury purchased debt or equity securities
from

participating institutions Participants in the CPP are subject to executive compensation limits and
are encouraged to expand their lending and mortgage loan modifications The EESA also temporarily
increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100000 to $250000

On November 21 2008 as part of the CPP the Company entered into Letter Agreement and
Securities Purchase Agreement collectively the CPP Purchase Agreement with the Treasury
pursuant to which the Company sold 11350 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred
Stock Series the Series Preferred Stock and ii warrant the CPP Warrant to purchase
195915 shares of the Companys common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $11350000 in cash
The Series Preferred Stock qualified as Tier

capital and was entitled to cumulative dividends at
rate of 5% per annum for the first five years and 9% per annum thereafter The CPP Warrant had
10 year term and was immediately exercisable upon its issuance with an exercise price subject to
anti dilution adjustments equal to $8 69 per share of the common stock

On August 29 2012 we repurchased $3.78 million of our Series Preferred Stock from the

Treasury through modified Dutch auction process This represented 3780 shares of the original
11350 shares of Series Preferred Stock sold to the Treasury pursuant to the CPP On October
2012 we completed the repurchase of the remaining 7570 shares of the Series Preferred Stock from
third party investors who bought the shares on August 29 2012 in the Dutch auction conducted by the
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Treasury In addition on October 25 2012 the Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP

Warrant to purchase 195915 shares of our common stock The repurchase price agreed upon was

$297500 The repurchase of the CPP Warrant from the Treasury completely eliminated its equity stake

in the Company through the TARP CPP

On February 17 2009 the American Recovery and Remvestment Act the Recovery Act was

signed into law in an effort to among other thmgs create jobs and stimulate growth the Umted

States economy The Recovery Act specifies appropriations
of approximately $787 billion for wide

range of Federal pi ograms and will increase or extend certam benefits payable under the Medicaid

unemployment compensation and nutrition assistance programs The Recovery Act also reduces

individual and corporate income tax collections and makes variety of other changes to tax laws The

Recovery Act also imposes certain limitations on compensation paid by participants in TARP

The EESA and the Recovery Act have been followed by numerous actions by the Federal Reserve

Board Congress U.S Treasury the SEC and others to address the liquidity and credit crisis that

followed the recession that commenced in 2007 These measures include homeowner relief that

encourages loan restructuring and modification the establishment of significant liquidity and credit

facilities for financial institutions and banks the lowermg of the federal funds rate action against

short-term selling practices the temporary guaranty program for money market funds the

establishment of commercial paper funding facility to provide back stop liquidity to commercial paper

issuers and coordinated international efforts to address ilhiquidity and other weaknesses in the banking

sector

On July 21 2010 the US President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act

created fundamental restructuring of federal banking regulation Among other things the

Dodd-Frank Act created new Financial Stability Oversight Council to identify sy4emic risks in the

financial system and gave federal regulators new authority to take control of and liquidate financial

firms The Dodd Frank Act also created new independent federal regulator
to admmister federal

consumer protection
laws Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act have delayed effeºtive dates

and the legislation requires various federal agencies to promulgate numerous and extensive

implementing regulations over the next several years Although the substance and scope of these

regulations
cannot be completely determined at this time it is expected that the legislation and

implementing regulations will increase the Companys operating
and compliance costs The following

discussion summarizes certain significant aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act

The Dodd Frank Act required the Federal Reserve to apply consolidated capital requirements to

depository
institution holding companies that are no less stringent than those currently applied

to depository
institutions Under these standards trust preferred securities will be excluded from

Tier capital unless such securities were issued prior to May 19 2010 by bank holding

company with less than $15 billion in assets such as the Company The Dodd-Frank Act also

stipulated capital requirements to be countercychical so that the required amount of capital

increases in times of economic expansion and decreases in times of economic contraction

consistent with safety and soundness practices

The Dodd Frank Act permanently increased the maximum deposit insurance amount for

financial institutions to $250000 per depositor and extended unlimited deposit insurance to

noninterest bearing transaction accounts through December 31 2012 The Dodd-Frank Act also

broadened the base for FDIC insurance assessments which are now based on financial

institutions average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital The Dodd-Frank Act

required the FDIC to increase the reserve ratio of the Deposit Insurance Fund from 1.15% to

1.35% of insured deposits by 2020 and eliminated the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends

to insured depository institutions when the reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds Effective
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July 21 2011 the Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the federal statutory prohibition against the

payment of interest on business checking accounts

The Dodd-Frank Act required publicly traded companies togive shareholders non-binding vote

on executive compensation at their first annual meetmg taking place six months after the date of

enactment and at least every three years thereafter and on so-called golden parachute

payments in connection with approvals of mergers and acquisitions
unless previously voted on by

shareholders The legislation also authorized the SEC to promulgate rules that would allow

shareholders to nominate their own candidates using companys proxy materials Additionally

the Dodd-Frank Act directed the federal banking regulators to promulgate rules prohibiting

excessive compensation paid to executives of depository institutions and their holding companies

with assets in excess of $1 billion regardless of whether the institution is publicly traded or

not The Dodd-Frank Act gave the SEC authorityto prohibit broker discretionary voting on

elections of .directors and executive compensation matters

Effective July 21 2011 the Dodd Frank Act prohibited depository institution from converting

from state to federal charter or vice versa while it is the subject of cease and desist order or

other formal enforcement action or memorandum of understanding with respect to

significant supervisory matter unless the appropriate federal banking agency gives notice of the

conversion to the federal or state authority that issued the enforcement action and that agency

does not object within 30 days The notice must include plan to address the sigmficant

supervisory matter The converting institution must also file copy of the conversion application

with its current federal regulator which must notify the resulting federal regulator of any

ongoing supervisory or investigative proceedings that are likely to result in an enforcement

action and provide access to all
supervisory

and investigative information relating hereto

The Dodd-Frank Act authorized national and state banks to establish branches in other states to

the same extent as bank chartered by that state would .be permitted to branch Previously

banks could only establish branches in other states if the host state expressly permitted

out-of-state banks to establish branches in that state Accordingly banks are able to enter new

markets more freely

Effective July 21 2012 the Dodd Frank Act expanded the definition of affiliate for purposes of

quantitative and qualitative limitations of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act to include

mutual funds advised by depository institution or its affiliates The Dodd-Frank Act now

applies Section 23A and Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act goyerning transactions with

insiders to derivative transactions repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing

transaction that create credit exposure to an affiliate or an insider Any such transactions with

affiliates must be fully secured Historically an exception has existed that exempts covered

transactions between depository
institutions and their financial subsidiaries from the 10% capital

and surplus limitation set forth in Section 23A However the Dodd-Frank Act eliminated this

exception for covered transactions enteredinto after July 21 2012 Effective July 21 2012 the

Dodd-Frank Act also prohibited an insured depository institution from purchasing an asset from

or selling an asset to an insider unless the transaction is on market terms and if representing

more than 10% of capital is approved in advance by the disinterested directors

The Dodd Frank Act required that the amount of any interchange fee charged by debit card

issuer with respect to debit card transaction must be reasonable and proportional to the cost

incurred by the issuer Effective October 2011 the Federal Reserve set new caps on

interchange fees at $0 21 per transaction plus an additional five basis
point charge per

transaction to help cover fraud losses An additional $0.01 per transaction is allowed if certain

fraud-monitoring controls are in place While the restrictions on interchange fees do not apply

to banks that together with their affiliates have assets of less than $10 billion such as the Bank
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the restricl could negatively impact bankcard income for smaller banks if the reductions that

are required of larger banks cause industry-wide reduction of swipe fees

The Dodd-Frank Act created new independent federal agency called the Consumer Financial

Protection Bureau CFPB which granted broad rulemaking supervisory and enforcement

powers under various federal consumer financial protection laws including the Equal Credit

Opportunity Act Truth in Lending Act Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act Fair Credit

Reporting Act Fair Debt Collection Act the Consumer Financial Privacy provisions of the

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and certain other statutes The CFPB has examination and primary

enforcement authority with respect to depository institutions with $10 billion or more in assets

Depository institutions with less than $10 billion in assets such as the Bank are subject to rules

promulgated by the CFPB but will continue to be examined and supervised by federal banking

regulators for consumer compliance purposes The CFPB has authority to prevent unfair

deceptive or abusive practices in connection with the offering of consumer financial products

The Dodd-Frank Act also authorized the CFPB to establish certain minimum standards for the

origination of residential mortgages including determination of the borrowers ability to repay

Under the Dodd-Frank Act financial institutions may not make residential mortgage loan

unless they make reasonable and good faith determinationthat the consumer has

reasonable ability to repay the loan In addition the Dodd-Frank Act allowed borrowers to

raise certain defenses to foreclosure if they receive any loan other than qualified mortgage

as defined by the CFPB On January 13 2013 the CFPB published final rules to among other

things define qualified mortgage and specify the types of income and assets that may be

considered in the ability to-repay determination the permissible sources for venfication and the

required methods of calculatmg the loans monthly payments For example the rules extend the

requirement that creditors verify and document borrowers income and assets to include all

information that creditors rely on in determining repayment ability The rules also provide

further examples of third-party
documents that may be relied on for such verification such as

government records and check-cashing or funds-transfer service receipts The new rules will take

effect on January 10 2014 The Dodd-Frank Act also permitted states to adopt consumer

protection laws and standards that are more stringent than those adopted at the federal level

and in certain circumstances permits state attorneys general to enforce compliance with both

the state and federal laws and regulations

In December 2010 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision an international forum for

cooperation on banking supervisory matters announced the Basel III capital rules which set new

capital requirements for banking organizations On June 2012 the Federal Reserve the 0CC and

the FDIC issued joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement sections of the

Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and liquidity On

November 2012 following public comment period the US federal banking agencies announced

that the originally proposed January 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being delayed so

that the agencies could consider operations and transitional issues identified in the large volume of

public comments received The proposed rules if adopted would lead to significantlyhigher capital

requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in place The

ultimate impact of the US implementation of the new capital and liquidity standards on the Company

and the Bank is currently being reviewed and is dependent on the terms of the final regulations which

may differ from the proposed regulations At this
point

the Company cannot determine the ultimate

effect that any final regulations if enacted would have on its earnings or financial position In addition

important questions remain as to how the numerous capital and liquidity mandates of the Dodd-Frank

Act will be integrated with the requirements of Basel III
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Although it is likely that further regulatory actions will arise as the federal government attempts to

address the economic situation we cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies economic

control or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnmgs in the future

Proposed Legislation and Regulatoiy Action From time to time various legislative and regulatory

initiatives are introduced in Congress and state legislatures as well as by regulatory agencies Such

initiatives may include proposals to expand or contract the powers of bank holding companies and

depository institutions or proposals to substantially change the financial institution regulatory system
Such legislation could change banking statutes and the operating environment of the Company in

substantial and unpredictable ways If enacted such legislation could increase or decrease the cost of

doing business limit or expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance among banks
savings associations credit unions and other fmancial institutions We cannot predict whether any such

legislation will be enacted and if enacted the effect that it or any implementing regulations would

have on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company change in statutes

regulations or regulatory policies applicable to the Company or the Bank could have material effect

on the business of the Company

Item IA Risk Factors

Our business financial condition and results of operations could be harmed by any of the

following risks or other risks that have not been identified or which we believe are immaterial or

unlikely Shareholders should carefully consider the risks described below in conjunction with the other

information in this Form 10-K and the information incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K
including our consolidated financial statements and related notes

Changes in the financial markets could impair the value of our investment portfolio

The investment securities portfolio is significant component of our total earning assets Total

investment securities averaged $204.9 million in 2012 as compared to $205.7 million in 2011 This

represents 37.0% and 37.4% of the average earning assets for the year ended December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively At December 31 2012 the portfolio was 37.1% of earning assets Turmoil in the

financial markets could impair the market value of our investment portfolio which could adversely

affect our net income and possibly our capital

Since the last half of 2007 the bond markets and many institutional holders of bonds have been

under great deal of stress partially as result of the ongoing recessionary economic conditions At
December 31 2012 we had mortgage-backed securities MBSs including collateralized mortgage

obligations CMOs with fair value of $112.1 million Of these approximately $109.4 million were

issued by government sponsored enterprises GSEs and $2.7 million by private label issuers In 2008

and 2009 theprivate label MBSs and CMOs we own incurred rating agency downgrades many to

below investment grade At December 31 2012 four of our private label MBSs and CMOs with

carrying value of $1.6 million have been downgraded below investment grade

Delinquencies on the underlying mortgages on all mortgage securities increased dramatically

throughout 2008 through 2Olland continue to remain at high levels at December 31 2012 We monitor

these investments on monthly basis Increasing delinquencies and defaults in the underlying

mortgages have resulted in recognizing OTTI during 2009 2010 2011 and 2012see Note to the

financial statements In evaluating these securities for OTTI we use assumptions relative to continued

defaults rates loss seventies on the underlying collateral and prepayment speeds Differences in actual

experience and the assumptions used could result in loss of earnings as result of further OTTI
charges all of which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations
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Our other investments include municipal and corporate debt securities As of December 31 2012

we had municipal securities with an approximate fair value of $324 million and corporate
debt and

other securities with an approximate fair value of $2.4 million At December 31 2012 all of the

municipal and corporate debt securities were rated investment grade There is risk that deterioration

in the underlying issuers financial condition or the underlying collateral could result in OTTI charges

in future periods

On September 2008 the Treasury the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Housing Finance

Agency FHFA announced that FHFA was placing the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

the FHLMC under conservatorship Due to these actions we took an OTTI charge of $8.1 million

in the third quarter of 2008 relating to the Freddie Mac preferred stock that we held This charge

along with our second quarter
of 2008 charge of $6.1 million related to our investment in preferred

stock issued by Freddie Mac eliminated any further direct material exposure in our investment

portfolio to Freddie Mac equity securities

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 our securities all of which are classified as Available for

Sale which have unrealized losses were not considered to be other than temporarily impaired and

we believe it is more likely than not we will be able to hold these until they mature or recover our

current book value We currently maintain substantial liquidity
which supports our intent and ability to

hold these investments until they mature or until there Is market price recovery However if we were

to cease to have the ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity or the market prices do

not recover and we were to sell these securities at loss it could adversely affect our net income and

possibly our capital

Our decisions regarding credit risk and reserves for loan losses may materially and adversely affect our

business

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business Although we

seek to mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices our loans and

other extensions of credit may not be repaid The risk of nonpayment is affected by number of

factors including

the duration of the credit

credit risks of particular customer

changes in economic and industry conditions and

in the case of collateralized loan risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of

the collateral

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance fOr loan losses to provide for potential losses in

our loan portfolio We periodically determine the amount of the allowance based on consideration of

several factors including

an ongoing review of the quality mix and size of our overall loan portfolio

our historical loan loss experience

evaluation of economic conditions

regular reviews of loan delinquencies and loan portfolio quality and

the amount and quality of collateral including guarantees securing the loans

There is no precise method of predicting credit losses therefore we face the risk that charge-offs

in future periods will exceed our allowance for loan losses and that additional increases in the
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allowance for loan losses will be required Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result in

decrease of our net income and possibly our capital

Federal and state regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may requie us
to increase our provision for loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs based on judgments
different than those of our management Any increase in the amount of our provision or loans

charged-off as required by these regulatory agencies could have negative effect on our operating
results

We may have higher loan losses than we have allowed for in our allowance for loan losses

Our actual loan losses could exceed our allowance for loan losses Our average loan size continues
to increase and reliance on our historic allowance for loan losses may not be adequate As of

December 31 2012 approximately 78.4% of our loan portfolio excluding loans held for sale is

composed of construction 3.9% commercial mortgage 68.2% and commercial loans 6.3%
Repayment of such loans is generally considered more subject to market risk than residential mortgage
loans

Industry experience shows that portion of loans will become delinquent and portion of loans
will

require partial or entire charge off Regardless of the underwritmg cnteria utilized losses may be

experienced as result of various factors beyond our control including among other things changes in
market conditions affecting the value of loan collateral and problems affecting the credit of our
borrowers

signficant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real estate and events that negatively impact the
real estate market could hurt our business

significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real estate As of December 31 2012
approximately 92.1% of our loans excluding loans held for sale had real estate as primary or

secondary component of collateral The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source
of repayment in the event of default by the borrower and may deteriorate value during the time the

credit is extended continued weakening of the real estate market in our primary market area could
result in an increase in the number of borrowers who default on their loans and reduction in the

value of the collateral securing their loans which in turn could have an adverse effect on our

profitability and asset quality If we are required to liquidate the collateral securing loan to satisI the

debt during period of reduced real estate values our earnings and capital could be adversely affected

Acts of nature including hurricanes tornados earthquakes fires and floods which could be
exacerbated by potential climate change and may cause uninsured damage and other loss of value to
real estate that secures these loans may also negatively impact our financial condition

We have concentration of credit exposure in commercial real estate and challenges faced by the

commercial real estatemarket could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of
operations

As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $2370 million loans outstanding to borrowers

whereby the collateral
securing the loan was commercial real estate representing approximately 71 3%

of our total loans
outstanding as of that date Approximately 31 9% or $75 million of this real estate

are owner-occupied properties Commercial real estate loans are generally viewed as having more nsk
of default than residential real estate loans They are also typically larger than residential real estate
loans and consumer loans and depend on cash flows from the owners business or the property to

service the debt Cash flows may be affected significantly by general economic conditions and
downturn in the local economy or in occupancy rates in the local economy where the property is

located could increase the likelihood of default Because our loan portfolio contains number of

commercial real estate loans with relatively large balances the deterioration of one or few of these

loans could cause significant increase in our level of non-performing loans An increase in
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non-performing loans could result in loss of earnings
from these loans an increase in the related

provision for loan losses and an increase in charge-offs all of which could have material adverse

effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Our commercial real estate loans have grown 3.27% or $7.5 million since December 31 2011

The banking regulators are giving
commercial real estate lçnding greater scrutiny and may require

banks with higher lievels of commercial real estate loans to implement more stringent underwritmg

internal controls risk management policies and portfolio stress testing as well as possibly higher levels

of allowances for losses and capital levels as result of commercial real estate lending growth and

exposures

Repayment of our commercial business loans is often dependent on the cash flows of the borrowei which

may be unpredictable and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value

At December 31 2012 commercial business loans comprised 63% of our total loan portfolio Our

commercial business loans are originated primarily based on the.identified cash flow and general

liquidity of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower and/or

repayment capacity of any guarantor The borrowers cash flow may be unpredictable and collateral

securing these loans may fluctuate in value Although commercial business loans areoften

collateralized by equipment inventory accounts receivable or other business assets the liquidation of

collateral in the event of default is often an insufficient source of repayment because accounts

receivable may be uncollectible and inventories may be obsolete or of limited use In addition business

assets may depreciate over time may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value based on the

success of the business Accordingly the repayment of commercial business loans depends primarily on

the cash flow and credit worthiness of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral value

provided by the borrower and liquidity of the guarantor

Negative developments in the financial industry and the domestic and international credit markets may

adversely affect our operations and results

Negative developments in the global credit and securitization markets Jave resulted in uncertainty

in the financial markets in general with the expectation of continuing uncertainty into 2013 As result

commercial as welil as consumer loan portfolio performances deteriorated at institutions and the

competition for deposits and quality loans has increased significantly
In addition the values of real

estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have declined and may

continue to decline Global securities markets and bank holding company stock prices
in particular

have been negatively affected as has in general the ability cf banks and bank holding companies to

raise capital or borrow in the debt markets As result bank regulatory agencies have been active in

responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations including by issuing historically high

number of formal enforcement orders over the past three years In addition significant new federal

laws and regulations relating to financial institutions have been adopted including without limitation

the EESA the Recovery Act and the Dodd-Frank Act Furthermore the potential
exists for additional

federal or state laws and regulations
and bank regulatory agencies are expected to be active in

responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations by issuing
formal enforcement orders

Negative developments in the financial industry and the domestic and international credit markets and

the impact of new legislation and bank examination practices in response to those developments may

negatively impact our operations by restricting our busmess operations includmg our ability to originate

or sell loans and adversely impact our financial performance We can provide no assurance regarding

the manner in which any new laws and regulations
will affect us
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There can be no assurance that recently enacted legislation will help stabilize the U.S financial system

In response to the challenges facing the financial services sector number of regulatory and

legislative actions have been enacted or announced There can be no assurance that these government

actions will achieve their purpose The failure of the financial markets to stabilize or continuation or

worsening of the current financial market conditions could have material adverse affect on our

business our financial condition the financial condition of our customers our common stock trading

price as well as our ability to access credit It could also result in declines in our investment portfolio

which could be other-than-temporary impairments

Economic challenges especially those affecting Lexington Richland Newberry and Kershaw Counties

and the surrounding areas may reduce our customer base our level of deposits and demand for financial

products such as leans

Our success significantly depends upon the growth in population income levels deposits and

housing starts in our markets of Lexington Richland Newberry and Kershaw Counties and the

surrounding area The current economic downturn has negatively affected the markets in which we

operate and in turn the size and quality of our loan portfolio If the communities in which we operate
do not grow or if prevailing economic conditions locally or nationally remain unfavorable our business

may not succeed continuation of the economic downturn or prolonged recession would likely result

in reductions in the size of our loan portfolio and the continued deterioration of the quality of our loan

portfolio and could reduce our level of deposits which in turn would hurt our business Interest

received on loans represented approximately 79.8% of our interest income for the year ended

December 31 2012 If he economic downturn continues or prolonged economic recession occurs in

the economy as whole there may be less demand for new loans and borrowers will be less likely to

repay their loans as scheduled Moreover in many cases the value of real el75.Ostate or other collateral

that secures our loans has been adversely affected by the economic conditions and could continue to be

negatively affected Unlike many larger institutions we are not able to spread the risks of unfavorable

local economic conditions across large number of diversified economies continued economic

downturn could therefore result in losses that materially and adversely affect our business

Our focus on lending to small to mid-sized community-based businesses may increase our credit risk

Most of our commercial business and commercial real estate loans are made to small business or

middle market customers These businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital

or borrowing capacity than larger entities and have heightened vulnerability economic conditions

If general economic conditions in the markets in which we operate negatively impact this important

customer sector our results of operations and financial condition and the value of our common stock

may be adversely affected Moreover portion of these loans have been made by us in recent years

and the borrowers may not have experienced complete business or economic cycle Furthermore the

deterioration of our borrowers businesses may hinder their ability to repay their loans with us which

could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We face strong competition for customers which could prevent us from obtaining customers and may
cause us to pay higher interest rates to attract customers

The banking business is highly competitive and we experience competition in our market from

many other financial institutions We compete with commercial banks credit unions savings and loan

associations mortgage banking firms consumer finance companies securities brokerage firms

insurance companies money market funds and other mutual funds as well as other super-regional

national and international financial institutions that operate offices in our primary market areas and

elsewhere We compete with these institutions both in attracting deposits and in making loans In

addition we have to attract our customer base from other existing financial institutions and from new

27



residents Many of our competitors are well-established larger financial institutions These institutions

offer some services such as extensive and established branch networks that we do not provide There

is risk that we will not be able to compete successfully with other financial institutions in our market

and that we may have to pay higher interest rates to attract deposits resulting in reduced profitability

In addition competitors that are nOt depository
institutions are generally not subject to the extensive

regulations that apply to us

Our deposit insurance premiums could be substantially higher in the future which could have material

adverse effect on our future earnings

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depository institutions such as the bank up to

applicable limits The amount of particular institutions deposit insurance assessment is based on that

institutions risk classification under an FDIC risk-based assessment system An institutions risk

classification is assigned based on its capital levels and the level of supervisory concern the institution

poses to its regulators Recent market developments and bank failures significantly depleted the FDICs

Deposit Insurance Fund and reduced the ratio of reserves to insured deposits As result of recent

economic conditions and the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act banks are now assessed deposit

insurance premiums based on the banks average consolidated total assets and the FDIC has modified

certain risk-based adjustments which increase or decrease banks overall assessment rate This has

resulted in increases to the deposit insurance assessment rates and thus raised deposit premiums for

many insured depository institutions If these increases are insufficient for the Deposit Insurance Fund

to meet its funding requirements further special assessments or increases in deposit insurance

premiums may be required We are generally unable to control the amount of premiums that we are

required to pay for FDIC insurance If there are additional bank or financial institution failures we

may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums than the recently increased levels Any future

additional assessments increases or required prepayments in FDIC insurance premiums could reduce

our profitability may limit our ability to ursue certain business opportunities or otherwise negatively

impact our operations

Changes in prevailing interest rates may reduce our profitability

Our results of operations depend in large part upon the level of our net interest income which is

the difference between interest income from interest- earning assets such as loans and MBSs and

interest expense en interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits and other borrowings Depending on the

terms and maturities of our assets and liabilities we believe it is more likely than not significant

change in interest rates could have material adverse effect on our profitability Many factors cause

changes in interest rates including governmental monetary policies and domestic and international

economic and political conditions While we intend to manage the effects of changes in interest rates

by adjusting the terms maturities and pricing of our assets and liabilities our efforts may not be

effective and our financial condition and results of operations could suffer

We are dependent on key individuals and the loss of one or more of these key individuals could curtail

our growth and adversely affect our prospects

Michael Crapps our president and chief executive officer has extensive and long-standing ties

within our primary market area and substantial experience with our operations and he has contributed

significantly to our business If we lose the services of Mr Crapps he would be difficult to replace and

our business and development could be materially and adversely affected

Our success also depends in part on our continued ability to attract and retain experienced loan

originators as well as other management personnel Competition for personnel is intense and we may

not be successful in attracting or retaining qualified personnel Our failure to compete for these
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personnel or the loss of the services of several of such key personnel could adversely affect our

business strategy and seriously harm our business results of operations and financial condition

We are subject to extensive regulation that could restrict our activities and impose financial requirements

or limitations on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive dividends from our Bank

We are subject to Federal Reserve Board regulation Our Bank is subject to extensive regulation

supervision and examination by the FDIC the regulating authority that insures customer deposits and

the Board Also as member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta the FHLB our

Bank must comply with applicable regulations of the Federal Housing Finance Board and the FHLB
Regulation by these agencies is intended primarily for the protection of our depositors and the deposit

insurance fund and not for the benefit of our shareholders Our Banks activities are also regulated

under consumer protection laws applicable to our lending deposit and other activities sufficient

claim against our Bank under these laws could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations

We are exposed to further changes in the regulation of financial services companies

Proposals for further regulation of the financial services industry are continually being introduced

in the Congress of the United States of America and the General Assembly of the State of South

Carolina The agencies regulatmg the financial services industry also periodically adopt changes to their

regulations On July 21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law Pursuant to authority granted

under the Dodd Frank Act effective on October 2011 the Federal Reserve Board established new

rules regarding interchange fees charged for electronic debit transactions by payment card issuers

having assets over $10 billion While we are not subject to the interchange fee restrictions the new

restrictions could negatively impact bank card services income for smaller banks if the reductions that

are required of larger banks cause industry-wide reduction of swipe fees On June 2012 the Federal

Reserve the 0CC and the FDIC issued joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement

sections of the Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and

liquidity On November 2012 following public comment period the US federal banking agencies

announced that the originally proposed January 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being

delayed so that the
agencies

could consider operations and transitional issued identified in the large

volume of public comments received The proposed rules if adopted would lead to significantly higher

capital requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in place See

Risk FactorsThe short tenn and long term impact of the changing regulatoiy capital requirements and

anticipated new capital rules is uncertain below It is possible that additional legislative proposals may
be adopted or regulatory changes may be made that would have an adverse effect on our business We
can provide no assurance regarding the manner in which any new laws and regulations will affect us

See Risk FactorsWe are subject to extensive regulation that could restrict our activities and impose

financial requirements or limitations on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive

dividends from our Bank above

The short-term and long-term impact of the changing regulatory capital requirements and anticipated

new capital rules is uncertain

On September 12 2010 the Group of Governors and Heads of Supervision the oversight body of

the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision announced an agreement to strengthened set of capital

requirements for internationally active banking organizations in the U.S and around the world known

as Basel III Basel III calls for increases in the requirements for minimum common equity minimum

Tier capital and minimum total capital for certain systemically important financial institutions to be

phased in over time until fully phased in by January 2019 Any regulations adopted for systemically
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significant institutions may also be applied to or otherwise impact other financial institutions such as

the Company or the Ilank

Various provsions of the Dodd-Frank Act increase the capital requirements of bank holding

companies such as the Company and non-bank financial companies that are supervised by the Federal

Reserve Board The leverage and risk-based capital ratios of these entities may not be lower than the

leverage and risk-based capital ratios for insured depository institutions In particular bank holding

companies many of which have long relied on trust preferred securities as component of their

regulatory capital will no longer be permitted to issue new trust preferred securities that count toward

their Tier
capit

ii While the Basel III changes and other regulatory capital requirements will likely

result in generally higher regulatory capital standards it is difficult at this time to predict how any new

standards will ultimately be applied to the Company and the Bank

In addition in the current economic and regulatory environment regulators of banks and bank

holding companies have become more likely to impose capital requirements on bank holding companies

and banks that are more stringent than those required by applicable existing regulations

The application of more stringent capital requirements for the Company and the Bank could

among other things result in lower returns on Invested capital require the issuance of additional

capital and result in regulatory actions if we were to be unable to comply with such requirements

Our historical operating results may not be indicative of our future operating results

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth and consequently our historical

results of operations will not necessarily be indicative of our future operations Vanous factors such as

economic conditions regulatory and legislative considerations and competition may also impede our

ability to expand our market presence If we experience significant decrease in our historical rate of

growth our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected because high

percentage of oui operating costs are fixed expenses

We may be adversely affected by the soundness of other financial institutions

Financial services intitutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty or other

relationships We have exposure to many different industries and counterparties and routinely execute

transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry including commercial banks brokers

and dealers investment banks and other institutional clients Many of these transactions expose us to

credit risk in the event of default by counterparty or client In addition our credit risk may be

exacerbated when the collateral held by the bank cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not

suffIcient to recover the full amount of the credit or derivative exposure due to the bank Any such

losses could have material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations

We will face isks with respect to expansion through acquisitions or mergers

From time to time we may seek to acquire other financial institutions or parts of those

institutions We may also expnd into new markets or lines of business or offer new products or

services These activities would involve number of risks including

the potential inaccuracy of the estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit operations

managem nt and market risks with respect to target institution

the time and costs of evaluating new markets hiring or retaining experienced local management

and opening new offices and the time lags between these activities and the generation of

sufficient issets and deposits to support the costs of the expansion
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the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible

adverse effects on our results of operations and

the risk of loss of key employees and customers

Our underwriting decisions may materially and adversely affect our business

While we generally underwrite the loans in our portfolio in accordance with our own internal

underwriting guidelines and regulatory supervisory guidelines in certain circumstances we have made
loans which exceed either our internal underwriting guidelines supervisory guidelines or both As of

December 31 2012 approximately $6.6 million of our loans or 10.0% of our banks regulatory capital

had loan-to-value ratios that exceeded regulatory supervisory guidelines of which five loans totaling

approximately $690 thousand had loan-to-value ratios of 100% or more In addition supervisory limits

on commercial loan to value exceptions are set at 30% of our- banks capital At December 31 2012
$4.8 million of our commercial loans or 7.3% of our banks regulatory capital exceeded the

supervisory loan to value ratio The number of loans in our portfolio with loan-to-value ratios in excess

of supervisory guidelines our internal guidelines or both could increase the risk of delinquencies and

defaults in our portfolio

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about clients and counterparties and our

financial condition could be adversely affected we rely on misleading information

In deciding whether to extend credit or to enter into other transactions with clients and

counterparties we may rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of clients and

counterparties including financial statements and other financial information which we do not

independently verify We also may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the

accuracy and completeness of that information and with respect to financial statements on reports of

independent auditors For example in deciding whether to extend credit to clients we may asume that

customers audited financial statements conform with GAAP and present fairly in all material

respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the customer Our financial

condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted to the extent we rely on financial

statements that do not comply with GAAJ or are materially misleading

Our ability to pay cash dividends is limited and we may be unable to pay future -dividends even if we

desire to do so

The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement regarding the payment of dividends by
bank holding companies In general the Federal Reserve Boards policies provide that dividends should

be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings .retention by the bank

holding company appears consistent with the organizations capital needs asset quality and overall

financial condition The Federal Reserve Boards policies also require that bank holding company
serve as source of financial stiength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available

resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of financial stress or

adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to obtain additiOnal

resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary In addition under the prompt corrective

action regulations the ability of bank holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if

subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the

Company to pay dividends or -otherwise engage in capital distributions

Our ability to pay cash dividends may be limited by regulatory restrictions by our Banks ability to

pay cash dividends to the Company and by our need to maintain sufficient capital to support our

operations As South Carolina chartered bank the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of

dividends that it is permitted to pay Unless otherwise instructed by the S.C Board the Bank is
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generally permitted under South Carolina state banking regulations to pay cash dividends of up to

100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior approval of the Board If our

Bank is not permitted to pay cash dividends to the Company it is unlikely that we would be able to

pay cash dividends on our common stock Moreover holders of our common stock are entitled to

receive dividends only when and if declared by our board of directors Although we have historically

paid cash dividends on our common stock we are not required to do so and our board of directors

could reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend in the future

Our stock price may be volatile which could result in losses to our investors and litigation against us

Our stock price has been volatile in the past and several factors could cause the price to fluctuate

substantially in the future These factors include but are not limited to actual or anticipated variations

in earnings changes in analysts recommendations or projections our announcement of developments

related to our businesses operations and stock performance of other companies deemed to be peers

new technology used or services offered by traditional and non4raditional competitors news reports
of

trends irrational exuberance on the part of investors new federal banking regulations and other issues

related to the financial services industry Our stock price may fluctuate significantly in the future and

these fluctuations may be unrelated to our performance General market declines or market volatility in

the future especially in the financial institutions sector could adversely affect the price of our common

stock and the current market price may not be indicative of future market prices Stock price volatility

may make it more difficult for you to resell your common stock when you -want and at prices you find

attractive Moreover -in the past securities class action lawsuits have been instituted against some

companies following periods of volatility in the market price
of its securities We could in the future be

the target
of simil ir litigation Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert

managements att ntion and resources from our normal business

Future sales of our stock by our shareholders or the perception
that those sales could occur may cause

our stock price to decline

Although our common stock -is listed for trading on- the NASDAQ Capital Market the trading

volume in our common stock is lower than that of other larger financial services companies public

trading market having the desired characteristics of depth liquidity an orderliness depends on the

presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given time This

presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market -conditions

over which we have no control Given the relatively low trading volume of our common stock

significant sales of our common stock in the public market or the perception that those sales may

occur could cause the trading price
of our common stock to decime or to be lower than it otherwise

might be in the absence of those sales or perceptions

Economic and other circumstances may require us to raise capital at times or in amounts that are

unfavorable to us we have to issue shares of common stock they will dilute the percentage ownership

interest of existing shareholders and may dilute the book value per share of our common stock and adversely

affect the terms on which we may obtain additional capital

We may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic

acquisitions or investments or to strengthen our capital position
Our ability -to raise additional capital

if needed will depend on among other things conditions in the capital markets at that time which are

outside of our control and our financial performance We cannot provide assurance that such financing

will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all or if we do raise additional capital that it will not

be dilutive to existing shareholders

If we determine for any reason that we -need to raise capital- subject to applicable NASDAQ

rules our board generally has the authority without action by or vote of the shareholders to issue all

32



or part
of any authorized but unissued shares of stock for any corporate purpose including issuance of

equity-based incentives under or outside of our equity compensation plans Additionally we are not

restricted from issuing additional common stock or preferred stock including any securities that are

convertible into or exchangeable for or that represent the right to receive common stock or preferred

stock or any substantially similar securities The market price of our common stock could decline as

result of sales by us of large number of shares of common stock or preferred stock or similar

securities in the market or from the perception that such sales coUld occur If we issue preferred stock

that has .preference over the common stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon

liquidation dissolution or winding-up or if we issue preferred stock with vOting rights that dilute the

voting power of the common stock the rights of holders of the common stock or the market price of

our commonstock could be adversely affectel Any issuance of additional shares of stock will dilute

the percentage ownership interest of our shareholders and may dilute the boo1cvalueper shareof OUt
common stock Shares we issue in connection with any such offering will increase the total number of

shares and may dilute the economic and voting ownership interest of our existing shareholders

failure in or breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure or those of our third party

vendors and other service providers or other third parties including as result of cyber attacks could disrupt

our businesses result in the disclosure or misuse of confidential or proprietary information damage our

reputation increase our costs and cause losses

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Information

security risks for financial institutions such as ours have generally increased in recent years
in

part

because of the proliferation of new technologies the use of the internet and telecommunications

technologies to conduct financial transactions and the increased sophistication and activities of

organized crime hackers and terrorists activists and other external parties As customer public and

regulatory expectations regarding operational and information security have increased our operatmg

systems and infrastructure must continue to be safeguarded and monitored for potential failures

disruptions and breakdowns Our business financial accounting and data processing systems or other

operating systems and facilities may stop operating properly or become disabled or damaged as result

of number of factors including events that are wholly or partially beyond our control For example

there could be electrical or telecommunication outages natural disasters such as earthquakes

tornadoes and hurricanes disease pandemics events arising from local or larger scale political or social

matters including terrorist acts and as described below cyber attacks

As noted above our business relies on our digital technologies computer and email systems

software and networks to conduct its operations Although we have information security procedures

and controls in place our technologies systems networks and our customers devices may become the

target of cyber attacks or information security breaches that could result the unauthorized release

gathering monitoring misuse loss or destruction of our or our customers or other third parties

confidential information Third parties with whom we do business or that facilitate our busmess

activities including financial intermediaries or vendors that provide service or security solutions for our

operations and other unaffihated third parties including the South Carolina Department of Revenue

which had customer records exposed in 2012 cyber attack could also be sources of operational and

information security risk to us including from breakdowns or failures of their own systems or capacity

constraints

While we have disaster recovery and other policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the

effect of the failure interruption or security breach of our information systems there can be no

assurance that any such failures interruptions or security breaches will not occur or if they do occur

that they will be adequately addressed Our risk and exposure to these matters remains heightened

because of the evolving nature of these threats As result cyber security and the continued

development and enhancement of our controls processes and practices designed to protect our

33



systems computers software data and networksfrorn attack damage or unauthorized access remain

focus for us As threats continue to evolve we may be required to expend additional resources to

continue to modify or enhance our protective measures or to investigate and remediate information

security vulnerabiiities Disruptions or failures tin the physical infrastructure oroPerating systems that

support our businesses and clients or cyber attacks or security breaches of the networks systems or

devices that our clients use to access our products and services could result in client attrition

regulatory fines penalties or intervention reputation damage reimbursement or other compensation

costs and/or additiOnal opliancecosts any of which could have material effect on our results of

operations or financial condition

Negative public opinion surrounding our Company and the financial institutions industry generally could

damage our reputation and adversely impact our earnings

Reputation risk or the risk to our business earnings and capital from negative public opinion

surrounding our company arid the financial institutions industry generally is inherent in our business

Negative public opinion can rsult from our actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities

including lending practices corporate governance and acquisitions and from actions taken by

government regulators and community orgamzations in response to those activities Negative public

opinion can adversely affect our ability to keep and attract clients and employees and can expose us to

litigation and regulLatory action Although we take steps to minimize reputation risk in dealing with our

clients and communities this risk will always be present given the nature of our business

The change of control rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code could limit our ability to use

net operatingloss cariyforwards to reduce future taxable income fve were to undergo change of control

We have net operating loss NOL carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes

which generally in be used to reduce future taxable mcome Our use of our NOL carryforwards

would be limited however under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code if we were to undergo

change in ownership of more than 50% of our capital stock over three year period as measured

under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code These complex changes of ownership rules generally

focus on ownership changes involving shareholders owning directly or indirectly 5% or more of our

stock including certain public groups of shareholders as set forth under Section 382 of the Internal

Revenue Code mcluding those arising from new stock issuances and other equity transactions

Whether change in ownership occurs in the future is largely outside of our control and there can

be no assurance that such change will not occur If we experience an ownership change the resulting

annual limit on th use of our NOL carryforwards which generally would equal the product of the

applicable federal Long term tax exempt rate multiplied by the value of our capital stock immediately

before the ownership change then increased by certain existing gains recognized within five
years after

the ownership change if we have net built in gam in our assets at the time of the ownership change

could result in ni eaningful increase in our federal and state income tax liability in future years

Whether an ownership change occurs by reason of public trading in our stock is largely outside our

control and the dt termination of whether an ownership change has occurred is complex No assurance

can be given that we will not in the future undergo an ownership change that would have an adverse

effect on the value of our stock

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable
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Item Properties

Lexington Property The principal place of business of both the Company and our Bank is located

at 5455 Sunset Boulevard Lexington South Carolina 29072 This site which is also the Banks main

office branch is 2.29 acre plot of land The site was purchased for $576 thousand and the building

costs were approximately $1O million The branch operates in 8500 square foot facility located on

this site

In October 2000 the Bank acquired an additional 2.0 acre adjacent to the existing facility for

approximately $300 thousand This site was designed to allow for 24000 to 48000 square fOot facility

at some future date The Bank completed coustruction and occupied the 28000 square foot

administrative center in July 2006 The total construction cost for the building was approximately

$3.4 million The Lexington property is owned by the Bank

Forest Acres Property We operate branch office facility at 4404 Forest Drive Columbia South

Carolina 29206 The Forest Acres site is .71 acres The banking facility is approximately 4000 square

feet with total cost of land and facility of approximately $920 thousand This property is owned by thr

Bank

Irmo Property We operate branch óffiçe facility at 1030 Lake Murray Boulevard Irmo South

Carolina 29063 The Irmô site is approximately one acre The banking facility is approximately 3200

square feet with total cost of land and facility of approximately $1.1 million This property is owned

by the Bank

CaycelWest Columbia Property We operate branch office facility at 506 Meeting Street West

Columbia South Carolina 29169 The Cayce/West Columbia site is approximately 1.25 acres The

banking facility is approximately 3800 square feet with total cost of land and facility of approximately

$935 thousand This property is owned by the Bank

Gilbert Property We operate branch office at 4325 Augusta Highway Gilbert South

Carolina 29054 The facility is an approximate 3000 square foot facility located on an approximate one

acre lot The total cost of the land and facility was approximately $768 thousand This property is

owned by the Bank

Chapin Office We operate branch office facility at 137 Amicks Ferry Rd Chapin South

Carolina 29036 The facility is approximately 3000 square feet and is located on three acre lot The

total cost of the facility and land was approximately $1.3 million This property is owned by the Bank

Northeast Columbia We operate branch office facility at 9822 Two Notch Rd Columbia South

Carolina 29223 The facility is approximately 3000 square feet and is located on one acre lot The

total cost of the facility and land was approximately $1.2 million This property is owned by the Bank

Prosperity Property We operate branch office at 101 Wheeler Avenue Prosperity South

Carolina 29127 This office was acquired in connection with the DutchFork merger The banking facility

is approximately 1300 square feet and is located on .31 acre lot The total cost of the facility and

land was approximately $175 thousand This property is owned by the Bank On December 27 2012

we purchased 1.23 acres directly adjacent to the existing branch for $222 thousand This additional

land along with existing property will be used to replace the existing facility

Wilson Road We operate branch office at 1735 Wilson Road Newberry South Carolina 29108

The banking office was acquired in connection with the DutchFork merger This banking facility is

approximately 12000 square feet and is located on 1.56 acre lot Adjacent to the branch facility is

13000 square foot facility which was formerly utilized as the DutchFork operations center The total

cost of the facility and land was approximately $3.3 million This property is owned by the Bank
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Redbank Properly We operate branch office facility at 1449 Two Notch Road Lexington South

Carolina 29073 This branch opened for operation on February 2005 The facility is approximately

3000 square feet and is located on one acre lot The total cost of the facility and land was

approximately $1 million This property is owned by the Bank

Gamden Properly We operate branch office facility at 631 DeKaib Street Camden South

Carolina 29020 This office was acquired in connection with the DeKaib merger The facility is

approximately 11247 square feet and is located on two acre lot The total cost of the facility and land

was approximately $22 million This property is owned by the Bank

Highway 219 Property 61 acre lot located on highway 219 in Newberry County was acquired in

connection with the DutchFork merger This lot may be used for future branch location but no

definitive plans have been made The current value of this lot is approximately $250 thousand This

property is owned by the Bank

Item Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of operations we may be party to various legal proceedings from time to

time We do not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us which if

determined adversely would have material effect on our business results of operations or financial

condition

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

None
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equit Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

As of March 15 2013 there were approximately 1502 shareholders of record of our common
stock On January 15 2003 our stock began trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the

trading symbol of FCCO Prior to January 15 2003 our stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin

Board under the trading symbol FCCO OB The following table sets forth the high and low sales

price information as reported by NASDAQ in 2012 and 2011 and the dividends per share declared on

our common stock in each such quarter All information has been adjusted for any stock splits and

stock dividends effected during the periods presented

High Low Dividends

2012

Quarter ended March 31 2012 $8.00 $5.98 $0.04

Quarter ended June 30 2012 $8.80 $7.65 $0.04

Quarter ended September 30 2012 $8.60 $7.84 $0.04

Quarter ended December 31 2012 $8.68 $8.15 $0.04

2011

Quarter ended March 31 2011 $6 75 $5 40 $0 04

Quarter ended June 30 2011 $7.35 $6.44 $0.04

Quarter ended September 30 2011 $7.00 $6.17 $0.04

Quarter ended December 31 2011 $6.60 $5.42 $0.04

Notwithstanding the foregoing the future dividend policy of the Company is subject to the

discretion of the board of directors and will depend upon number of factors including future

earnings financial cOndition cash requirements and general business conditions Our ability to pay
dividends is generally limited by the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to us As South Carolina

chartered bank the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to

pay Unless otherwise instructed by the S.C Board the Bank is generally permitted under South

Carolina state bankmg regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net mcome in any calendar

year without obtaining the prior approval of the Board
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Item Selected Financial Data

$599023

329954

455
30762

41797

3262

3262

27511

9374

18137

1878

16259

3017

827

17684

2419

565

1854

96

2.20%

1.90%

0.54%

1.49%

37.39%

3.87%

3.87%

73.07%

17.48%

3.26%

6.97%

5.00%

13.73%

14.99%

8.79%

73.53%

344187

449576

30501

41440

3252

3252

30981

13104

17877

3103

14774

3543

1489

16
27761

24535
696

25231
89

332964

423798

57306

68156

3203

3203

33008

15810

17198

2129

15069

10056
28

15539

10554
3761
6793

1.38%

1.50%

0.84%

1.41%

58.21%

89.13%
8.94%

73.47%

21.97%

3.10%

6.84%

4.80%

12.41%

13.56%

8.41%

76.99%

0.39%

0.54%

034%

1.38%

178.53%

21.60%
9.37%

72.74%

19.78%

3.16%

10.48%

4.42%

12.58%

13.73%

8.28%

75.45%

As of or For the Years Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $602925 $593887 $605827 $650233

Loans held for sale 9658 3725

Loans 332111 324311

Deposits 474977 464585

Ibtal common shareholders equity 54183 36759

ibtal shareholders equity 54183 47896

Average shares outstanding basic 4144 3287

Average shares outstanding diluted 4172 3287

Results of Operations

Interest income 23002 25526

Interest expense
5428 7209

Net interest income 17574 18317

Provision for loan loses 496 1420

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17078 16897

Non-interest income loss 7929 5710

Securities gains losses
26 575

Non-interest expenses 19445 18401

Impairment of goodwill

Income loss before taxes 5588 4781

Income tax expense benefit 1620 1457

Net income loss 3968 3324

Amortization of warrants 72 102

Preferred stock dividends including discount accretion and

redemption costs 604 568

Net income loss available to common shareholders 3292 2654

Per Share Data

Basic earnings loss per common share 0.79 0.81

Diluted earnings loss per common share 0.79 0.81

Book value at period end 10.37 11.11

Tangible book value at period end 10.23 10.83

Dividends per common share 0.16 0.16

Asset Quality Ratios

Non-performing assets to total assets4
1.45% 2.16%

Non-performing loans tO period end loans 1.44% 1.67%

Net charge-offs to average loans 0.17% 0.50%

Allowance for loan losses to period-end total loans 1.39% 1.45%

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing assets 52.77% 35.83%

Selected Ratios

Return on average assets

GAAP earnings loss
0.55% 0.44%

Operating earnings3 0.55% 0.44%

Return on average common equity

GAAP earnings loss
7.40% 7.98%

Operating earnings loss3 7.40% 7.98%

Return on average tangible common equity

GAAP earnings loss
7.55% 8.16%

Operating earnings loss3 7.55% 8.16%

Efficiency Ratio1 74.82% 75.55%

Noninterest income to operating revenue2 31.16% 25.55%

Net interest margin
3.22% 3.33%

Equity to assets 8.99% 8.06%

Tangible common shareholders equity to tangible assets 8.88% 6.04%

Tier risk-based capital
17.33% 15.33%

Total risk-based capital
18.58% 17.25%

Leverage
10.63% 9.40%

Average loans to average deposits5
70.33% 70.59%

The efficiency ratio is key performance indicator in our industry The ratio is computed by dividing non-interest expense

less goodwill impairment by the sum of net interest income on tax equivalent basis and non-interest income net of any

securities gains or losses and OTT on securities It is measure of the relationship between operating expenses and

earnings

568 57 62

1190 25887 6864

0.36 7.95 2.14
0.36 7.95 2.14
9.41 9.38 17.76

9.14 8.92 8.50

0.16 0.24 0.32

0.20% 3.90%
0.20% 0.39%

1.10%
0.48%

3.73% 49.66% 11.11%
3.73% 4.98% 4.82%

38



Operating revenue is defined as net interest income plus noninterest income excluding 0TH related to the write-down ofFHLMC preferred shares in 2008

Constitutes non-GAAJ financial measure Please see Reconciliation of Non-GAAJ Financial Measures below

Includes non-accrual loans loans 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest and OREO
Includes loans held for sale

Reconciliatjons

2012

$3968

1620

5588

December 31

2011 2010 2009

$3 $1854 $25231
1457 565 696

4781 2419 24535

14325

3771

825

2946

2008

6793

10554

27761

The following isoa reconciliation for the five
years ended December 31 2012 of net income loss

as reported for generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and the non-GAAP measure
referred to throughout our discussion of operating earnings

Dollars in thousands ______
Net income loss as reported GAAP

Add Income tax expense benefit
_____

Non operating items

Goodwill impairment charge

Other than temporary Impairment on FHLMC
preferred shares

Pre tax operating earnings 5588 4781 2419 3226
Related income tax expense 1620 1457 565 696

Operating earnings net income excluding non
operating items $3968 $3324 $1854 2530

The following is reconciliation for the five
years ended December 31 2012 of non interest

income loss as reported for GAAP and the non GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion
regarding non interest income loss

Dollars in thousands 2012 2011 2010 2009 2048

Non interest income loss as reported GAAP $7955 $6285 $3844 $5032 $10084
Non-operating items

Other-than-temporary-impairment charge 14325

Operating non interest income $7955 $6285 $3844 $5032 4241

The following is reconciliation for the five years ended December 31 2011 of non-interest

expense as reported for GAAP and the non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion

regarding non interest expense

2012Dollars in thousands
________

Non-interest expense as reported GAAP $19445
Non-operating items

Impairment of goodwill

2011 2010 2009

$18401 $17684 $44341

2008

$15539

27761

Operating non-interest expense $19445 $18401 $17684 $16580 $15539

Our management believes that the non-GAAP measures above are useful because they enhance
the ability-of investors and management to evaluate and compare our operating results from period to
period in meaningful manner These non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative
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to any measure of performance as promulgated under GAM and investors should consider the OTT

charges in the second and third quarter of 2008 when assessing the performance of the company

Non-GAAP measures have limitations as analytical tools and investors should not -consider them in

isolation or as substitute for analysis of the companys results as reported under GAAP

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

First Community Corporation is one bank holding company headquartered in Lexington South

Carolina We operale from our main office in Lexington South Carolina and our 11 full-service offices

located in Lexington two Forest Acres Irmo Cayce-West Columbia Gilbert Chapin Northeast

Columbia Prosperity Newberry and Camden South Carolina During the second quarter of 2006 we

completed our acquisition of DeKalb Bankshares Inc the holding company for The Bank of Camden

The merger added one office in Kershaw County located in the Midlands of South Carolina During

the fourth quarter of 2004 we completed our first acquisition of another financial institution when we

merged with DutchFork Bancshares Inc the holding company for Newberry Federal Savings
Bank

The merger added three offices in Newberry County In 2007 our College Street office in Newberry

was consolidated with our Wilson Road Office in Newberry On September 15 2008 the Company

completed the acquisition
of two financial planning and investment advisory firms EAH Financial

Group and Pooled Resources LLC In addition the Bank expanded jts residential mortgage business

unit with the acquisition
of the assets of Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation Palmetto South

effective July 31 2011 Palmetto South which operates as division of the Bank offers mortgage loan

products for home purchase or refinance in the South Carolina market area We engage in general

commercial and retail banking business characterized by personalized service and local decision making

emphasizing the banking needs of small to medium-sized businesses professional concerns and

individuals

The following discussion describes our results of operations
for 2012 as compared to 2011 and

2010 and also analyzes our financial condition as of December 31 2012 as compared to December 31

2011 Like most community banks we derive mOst of our income from interest we receive on our loans

and investments primary source of funds for making these loans and investments is our deposits on

which we pay interest Consequently one of the key measures of our success is our amount of net

interest income or the difference between the income on our interest-earning assets such as loans and

investments and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits

We have included number of tables to assist in our description -of these measures For example

the Average Balances table shows the average balance during 2012 2011 and 2010 of each category

of our assets and liabilities as well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each

category review of this table shows that our loans typically provide higher interest yields than do

other types of interest earning assets which is why -we intend to channel substantial percentage of our

earning assets into our loan portfolio Similarly the Rate/Volume Analysis table helps demonstrate

the impact of changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and liabilities during the years

shown We also track the sensitivity
of our various categories of assets and liabilities to changes in

interest rates and we have included Sensitivity Analysis
Table to help explain this Finally we have

included number of tables that provide detail about our investment securities our loans and our

deposits and other borrowings

There are risks inherent in all loans so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb

probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible We establish and maintain this

allowance by charging provision for loan losses against our operating earnings In the following

section we have irLcluded detailed discussion of this process as well as several tables describing our

allowance for loarL losses and the allocation of this allowance among our various categories of loans
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In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments we earn income through fees and

other expenses we charge to our customers We describe the various coæiponents of this noninterest

income as well as our noninterest expense in the following discussion The discussion and analysis also

identifies significant factors that have affected our financial position and operating
results during the

periods included in the accompanying financial statements We encourage you to read this discussion

and analysis in conjunction
with the financial statements and the related notes and the other statistical

information also included in this report

Recent Developments

Following 2012 on site examination of the Bank the 0CC notified the Bank that effective

June 28 2012 the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that it entered into with the

0CC in 2010 The 0CC also notified the Bank that effective June 28 2012 it was no longer subject to

the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24 2010 which had

required the Bank to maintain Tier leverage capital ratio of at least 00% Tier risk-based

capital ratio of at least 10 00% and total risk based capital ratio of at least 1200% The general

regulatory minimums to be well-capitalized are Tier leverage capital
ratio of at least 5.00%

Tier risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.00% and total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%

These regulatory capital ratios for the Bank were 10.34% 16.87% and 18.12% respectively as of

December 31 2012 The Bank is well capitalized for regulatory purposes In addition the Federal

Reserve Bank of Richmond notified the Company that effective July 10 2012 the Company is no

longer subject to the MOU that it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in

December of 2011

On July 27 2012 the Company closed public offering of common stock The offering resulted in

the issuance of total of 1875000 shares of common stock at $8 00 per share including 244565 shares

granted to the underwriters to cover overallotments resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million Net

proceeds were approximately $13.8 million after deduºting underwriting discount commissions and

other estimated expenses

On August 29 2012 we repurchased $3 78 million of our Series Preferred Stock from the

Treasury through modified Dutch auction process
This represented 3780 shares of the onginal

11350 shares of preferred stock sold to the Treasury in November 2008 pursuant to the TARP CPP

The remaining 7570 shares of Series Preferred Stock were purchased in this same auction by third

party investors unrelated to the Company The auction price was $982 83 per share which we believe

was the highest price paid through that date for companys shares in the Treasurys TARP preferred

stock auctions

Between September 30 2012 and October 2012 we repurchased or redeemed the remaining

shares of Series Preferred Stock from the third party investors at par The repurchase amount

including those repurchased directly from the Treasury included related non-recurring expenses in the

amount of $119 thousand including attorney costs accounting costs and Treasury underwriter costs In

addition we recorded charge for the remaining discount accretion of approximately $159 thousand

On October 2012 we completed planned conversion from national bank charter to South

Carolina state bank charter as non-member bank It is anticipated that this conversion will reduce

certain regulatory examination costs in the future

On October 25 2012 the Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP Warrant to purchase

195915 shares of our common stock issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP CPP The repurchase

price agreed upon was $297500 and the transaction was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2012 The

settlement of the CPP Warrant completely eliminated the Treasurys equity
stake in the Company

through the TARP CPP

41



On November 15 2012 we redeemed the $2.5 million of
outstanding subordinated debt at par

which was issued in November 2011

Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry in the

preparation of our financial statements Our significant accounting policies are described in the notes

to our consolidated financial statements in this report

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us that have
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities We consider these accounting
policies to be crftical accounting policies The judgment and assumptions we use are based on historical

experience and other factors which we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances Because of

the nature of th judgment and assumptions we make actual results could differ from these judgments
and estimates that could have material impact on the carrying values of our assets and liabilities and
our results of operations

We believe the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires the most

significant judgment and estimates used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements Some
of the more critical judgments supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses include

judgments about the credit worthiness of borrowers the estimated value of the underlying collateral
the assumptions about cash flow determination of loss factors for estimating credit losses the impact
of current events and conditions and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent losses

Under different conditions or using different assumptions the actual amount of credit losses incurred

by us may be different from managements estimates provided in our consolidated financial statements
Refer to the portion of this discussion that addresses our allowance for loan losses for more complete
discussion of our processes and methodology for determining our allowance for loan losses

The evaluation and recognition of other-than-temporary impairment OrFI on certain

investments
including our private label mortgage-backed securities requires significant judgment and

estimates Some of the more critical judgments supporting the evaluation of OTT include projected
cash flows including prepayment assumptions default rates and seventies of losses on the underlying
collateral within the security Under different conditions or utilizing different assumptions the actualOr recognized by us may be different from the actual amounts recognized in our consolidated

financial statements See Note to the fmancial statements for the disclosure of certain of the

assumptions usedi as well as OTTI recognized in the financial statements during the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Results of Operations

Our net income was $4 million or $0 79 diluted
earnings per common share for the year ended

December 31 2012 as compared to net income of $3 million or $081 diluted
earnings per common

share for the year ended December 31 2011 During 2012 we continued to control our growth in

assets by reducing funding from FHLB borrowings and certificates of deposits greater than $100000
We were able to grow loans excluding loans held for sale by $7.8 million from December 31 2011 to

December 31 2012 despite the continued slow economic environment Average loan balances increased

slightly during 2012 to $331.6 million compared to $329.5 million in 2011

Net interest income decreased $743 thousand in 2012 from $18.3 million in .2011 The decrease in

net interest income is due to the continuation of historically low interest rates throughout 2011 and
2012 The net interest margin on tax equivalent basis during 2012 was 3.22% as compared to 3.33%

during 2011 See below under Net Interest Income and Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity
for further discussion about the effect of the increase in net interest margin Net interest spread the
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difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest-bearingi liabilities was

295% 2012 as compared to 11% in 2011 The provision for loan losses was $46 thousand in 2012

as compared to $1.4 million in 2011 The reduction in the provision for loan losses reflects lower net

charge-offs and an improvement in our credit quality measures over the last year Non-interest.income

was $8.0 milliOn in 2012 as compared to $6.3 million in 2011 This increase was primarily due to

increased mortgage origination fees as result of the expansion of this business through the acquisition

of Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation PSMC in the second half of 2011 Non-interest expense
increased to $19.4 million in 2012 as compared to $18.4 million in 2011 As discussed below under

Non interest income and expense the increase is attributable to increases in salary and benefits of

$1 million in 2012as compared to 2011

Net interest income increased $180 thousand in 2011 from $18.1 million in2010 to $18.3 million in

2011 The increase in net interest income was primarily due to the increase in the net interest margin
in 2011 as compared to 2010 The impact of the improvement in net interest..margin was somewhat
offset by decrease in average earning assets of $5.5 million from $556.0 million dwing 2010 to

$550.5 million in 2011 The net interest margin on tax equivalent basis during 2010 was 3.28% as

compared to 3.33% during .2011 Net interest spread the difference between the yield on earning assets

and the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was 3.11% in 2011 as compared to 3.01% in 2010 The

provision for loan losses was $1.9 million in 2010 as compared to $1.4 million in 2011 Non-interest

income was $3.8 million in 2010 as compared to $6.3 million in 2011 This increase is primarily due to

lower other-than-temporary-impairment charges and increases in both mortgage origination fees and

fee income on investment advisory services and commission on sale of non-deposit products in 2011 as

compared to 2010 Non-interest expense increased to $18.4 million in 2011 as compared to

$17.7 million in 2010 As discussed below under Non-interest income and expense the increase is

primarily attributable to increases in salary and benefits of $578 thousand in 2011 as compared to 2010

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is our primary source of revenue Net interest income is the difference

between income earned on assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings used to support such

assets Net interest income is determined by the rates earned on our interest-earning assets and the

rates paid on our interest-bearing liabilities the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities and the degree of mismatch and the maturity and repricing characteristics of its

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest income totaled $17.6 million in 2012 $18.3 million in 2011 and $18.1 million in 2010
The yield on earning assets was 4.15% 4.64% and 4.95% in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The
rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was 1.20% 1.53% and 1.94% in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The fully taxable equivalent net interest margin was 3.22% in 2012 3.33% in 2011 and

3.28% in 2010 Our loan to deposit ratio on average during 2012 was 70.3% as compared to 70.6%

during 2011 and 73.5% during 2010 Loans typically provide higher yield than other types of earning

assets and thus one of our goals is to grow the loan portfolio as percentage of earning assets in

order to improve the overall yield on earning assets and the net interest margin At December 31

2012 the loan including held for sale to deposit ratio was 71.9%

The net interest margin decreased in 2012 as compared to 2011 Starting in early 2008 and

continuing through 201 interest rates have been at historic lows The yield on earning assets

decreased by 49 basis points and our cost of funds decreased by 33 basis points in 2012 as compared to

2011 This resulted in decrease in our net interest spread of 16 basis points in 2012 as compared to

2011 Continued historically low interest rates have impacted our ability to reduce funding cost in

relation in proportion to the decline in earning asset yields As result we continued to control the

growth of our balance sheet and increased our funding from lower cost sources non-interest bearing
transaction accounts interest-bearing transaction accounts money market accounts and savings
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deposits During 2012 the average balance in these accounts increased by $20 million as compared

to 2011 This change in the mix of funding sources has lessened the impact of the significant decline in

our yield on earning assets Our average borrowings and time deposits which are typically the higher

costing funding source decreased $36.9 million and $186 million respectively in 2012 as compared to

2011 Throughout 2012 time deposits and borrowed funds represented 59.9% of our total interest

bearing funding sources and in 2011 these balances represented 65.1% of our interest bearing funding

sources

The net interest margin showed slight improvement in 2011 as compared to 2010 The yield on

earning assets decreased by 31 basis points and our cost of funds decreased by 41 basis points in 2011

as compared to 2010 This resulted in an increase in our net interest spread of 10 basis points in 2011

as compared to 2010 Close monitoEing of time deposit pricing as well as reducing the level of

borrowed funds enabled our cost of funds to decline more than the yield on earning assets between the

two periods Our average borrowings and time deposits which are typically the higher costing funding

source decreased $18.6 million and $14.8 million respectively in 2011 as compared to 2010 During

2011 the average b1ance in the lower cost sources of funding increased by $26.9 million as compared

to 2010 This change in the mix of funding sources contributed to the improvement in our margin

between the two periods Throughout 2011 time deposits and borrowed funds represented 65.1% of

our total interest bearing funding sources and in 2010 these balances represented 70.3% of our interest

bearing funding sources
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Average Balances Income Expenses and-Rates The following table depicts for the periods

indicated certain information related to our average balance sheet and our average yields on assets and

average costs of liabilities Such yields are derived by dividing income or expense by the average
balance of the corresponding assets or liabilities Average balances have been derived from daily

averages

Year ended December 31

0.49% 15178

4.15% 550456

7992

17759

740

31791

4823

$603915

2011 2010

Income Yield Average Income Yield

Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

5.80% $337143 $19851 5.89%

3.08% 194426 7566 3.89%

______
0.49% 4420 94 0.38%

______
4.64% 55989 27511 4.95%

7556

18343

1189

30755

4882

$608950

359 0.51%

307 0.69%

76 0.26%

5539 2.32%

______ _______
3093 3.02%

Dollars in thousands

2012

Average Income Yield Average
Balance Expense Rate Balance

5.54% $329534 $19110

2.22% 205744 6342

Cash and due from banks

74

25526

Assets

Earning assets

Loans1 $331564 $18361

Securities 204 4557

Other short-term

investments2 17234 84

Total earning assets 553724 23002

8643

Premises and equipment 17388

Intangible assets 832

Other assets 25556

Allowance for loan losses 4843
Total assets $601300

Liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities2

Interest-bearing transaction

accounts 89734 151

Money market accounts 52575 153

Savings deposits 39020 49

Time deposits 198392 2769

Other borrowings 71926 2306

0.17% 83625

0.29% 48802

0.13% 32093

1.40% 219737

3.21% 87460

270 0.32%

209 0.43%

48 0.15%

4046 1.84%

2636 3.01%

7J138

4293

2271
238297

________ _______ ________ _______
102282

_______

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 451647 5428 1.20% 471717 7209 1.5% 484281 9374 1.94%

82572 76485

5286 5269

_______ 44340 42915

$603 915 $60950

sale

$18317

Demand deposits 91737

Other liabilities 5469

Shareholders equity 52447
_______

Total liabilities and

shareholders equity $601390
________

Net interest spread 2.95% 3.01%
Net interest income/margin $17574 3.17% 3.26%

Net interest margin tax

equivalent3

All loans and deposits are domestic Average loan balances include non accrual loans and loans held for

The computation includes federal funds sold securities purchased under agreement to resell and interest

bearing deposits

Based on 32.5% marginal tax rate

3.22%

3.11%

3.33% $18137

3.33%
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Market Risk and interest Rate Sensitivity

Market risk reflects the risk of economic loss resulting from adverse changes in market prices and

interest rates The risk of loss can be measured in either diminished current market values or reduced

current and poteni ial net income Our primary market risk is interest rate risk We have established an

Asset/Liability Management Committee ALCO to monitor and manage interest rate risk The

ALCO monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to diminish

the potential adverse impact that changes in interest rates could have on our net interest income The

ALCO has established policy guidelines and strategies with respect to interest rate risk exposure and

liquidity

monitoring technique employed by us is the measurement of our interest sensitivity gap which

is the positive or negative dollar difference between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate

repricing within given period of time Also asset/liability modeling is performed to assess the impact

varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assumptions will have on net interest income Interest rate

sensitivity can be managed by repricing assets or liabilities selling securities available-for-sale replacing

an asset or liability at maturity or by adjusting the interest rate during the life of an asset or liability

Managing the amount of assets and liabilities repricing in the same time interval helps to hedge the

risk and minimize the impact on net interest income of rising or falling interest rates Neither the

gap analysis or asset/liability modeling are precise -indicators of our interest sensitivity position due to

the many factors that affect net interest income including the timing magnitude and frequency of

interest rate changes as well as changes in the volume and mix of earnIng assets and interest-bearing

liabilities

The following table illustrates our interest rate sensitivity at December 31 2012

2012 versus 2011

Increase decrease due to

Volume Rate Net

2011 versus 2010

Increase decrease due to

Volume Rate Net

The following table presents the dOllar amount of changes in interest income and interest expense

attributable to changes in volUme and the amount attributable to changes in rate The combined tifect

in both volUme and rate whiCh cannot be separately identified has been allocated proportionately to

the change due to vOlume and due to rate

In thousands

As-sets

Earning assets

Loans

Investment securities

Other short term investments

Total earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing transaction accounts

Money market accounts

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Other short-term borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

$117

25
10

866 749
1759 1784

10

2674 2523151

$428
420

41

277

313
1645

21

1709

741
1225

20

1986

Net interest income

18 137 119
18 74 56

366 911 1277
515 186 329

323 1457 1780

743

60

36

407
447

250

149
134
35

1086
11

1916

89
98
28

1493
458

2166

180
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Interest Sensitivity Analysis

Within One to Three to Over

Dollars in thousands
One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total

Assets

Earning assets

Loans1 $327317

Loans Held for Sale 9658

Securities2 202453

Federal funds sold securities purchased

under agreements to resell and other

earning assets
________ ________ ________ _______ ________

Total earning assets
________ _______ _______ _______ ________

Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing deposits

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Period gap

Cumulative gap

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets

20798 34152 14007 28014 96971

13476 18866 5390 16171 53903

8220 6165 4110 22605 41100

109369 47086 29020 185477

151863 106269 52527 66792 377451

31411 4094 2Q096 12107 67708

183274 110363 72623 78899 445
24067 53220 31114 711t $101291

24067 77287 $108401 $101291 $101291

4.40% 14 14% 19.84% 18.54% 18.54%

Loans classified as non-accrual as of December 31 2012 are not included in the balances

We entered into five year interest rate swap agreement on October 2008 The swap agreement

has $10.0 million notional amount We receive variable rate of interest on the notional amount

based on three month LIBOR rate and pay fixed rate interest of 3.66% The contract was entered

into to protect us from the negative impact of rising interest rates Our exposure to credit risk is

limited to the ability of the counterparty to make potential future payments required pursuant to the

agreement Our exposure to market risk of loss is limited to the changes in the markt value of the

swap between reporting periods At December 31 2012 and 2011 the fair value of the contract was

negative $338 thousand and $602 thousand respectively
The fair value adjustment diring each

reporting period is recognized in other income For the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 the adjustment reflected in earnings amounted to $58 thousand $166 thousand and $581

thousand respectively The fair value of the contract is the present value over the rmaining term of

the contract of the difference between the estimated swap rate for the remaining term at the

reporting date multiplied by the notional amount and the fixed interest rate of 3.66% multiplied by the

notional amount of the contract The interest rate swap contract expires on October 2013

Through simulation modeling we monitor the effect that an immediate and sustained change in

interest rates of 100 basis points and 200 basis points up and down will have on net-interest income

over the next 12 months Based on the many factors and assumptions used in simulating the effect of

changes in interest rates the following table estimates the hypothetical percentage change in net

interest income at December 31 2012 and 2011 over the subsequent 12 months At December 31 2012

Securities based on amortized cost

111690

9658

78971

7021

207340

20153

51636

$117750

45833

163583

77724

26013

103737

7021

71789 546449
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we are slightly asset sensitive As result our modeling reflects improvement in ournet interest

income in rising rate environment In declining rate environment the model reflects significant

decline in net interest income This primarily results from the current level of interest rates being paid

on our interest bearing transaction accounts as well as money market accounts The interest rates on

these accounts are at level where they cannot be
repriced in proportion to the change in interest

rates The increase and decrease of 100 and 200 basis points assume simultaneous and parallel

change in interesi rates along the entire yield çurve

Net Interest Income Sensitivity

Hypothetical

percentage change in

net interest income

December 31

Change in short-term interest rates 2012 2011

200bp 6.52% 3.05%

lOObp 3.83% 2.06%

Flat

lOObp 9.05% 7.48%

200bp 13.58% 12.91%

We also perform valuation analysis projecting future cash flows from assets and liabilities to

determine the Present Value of Equity PVE over range of changes in market interest rates The

sensitivity of PVE to changes in interest rates is measure of the sensitivity of earnings over longer

time horizon At December 31 2012 and 2011 the PVE exposure in plus 200 basis point mcrease in

market interest rates was estimated to be 7.53% and 2.70% respectively During 2012 and 2011 the

improvement in the PVE to rising rates is result of two factors The first is the change in the mix of

our funding sources as noted above in the Net Interest Income section above The other significant

impact results from changes in certain assumption in our interest rate risk model in 2011 During 2011
we performed an internal analysis of our deposit products as it relates to repricing and decay

assumptions on certain deposit products This study resulted in lengthening the average life and decay

rates of our deposit products from what had been modeled in prior periods Tjie change in assumptions

was not run for prior periods as the change in these assumptions has no impact on the results of

operations or financial position

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31 2012 the allowance for loan losses amounted to $4 million or 39% of loans

excludes loans held for sale as compared $4.7 million or 1.45% of loans at December 31 2011 Our

provision for loan loss was $496 thousand for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to

$1.4 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The

provision is made based on our assessment of general loan loss risk and asset quality The allowance

for loan losses represents an amount which we believe will be adequate to absorb probable losses on

existing loans that may become uncollectible Our judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses is based on number of assumptions about future events which we believe to be

reasonable but which may or may not prove to be accurate Our determination of the allowance for

loan losses is based on evaluations of the collectability of loans including consideration of factors such

as the balance of impaired loans the quality mix and size of our overall loan portfolio economic

conditions that may affect the borrowers ability to repay the amoUnt and quality of collateral securing

the loans our historical loan loss experience and review of specific problem loans We also consider

subjective issues such as changes in the lending policies and prdcedures changes in the local/national

economy changes in volume or type of credits changes in volume/severity of problem loans quality of

loan review and board of director oversight and concentrations of credit Periodically we adjust the
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amount of the allowance based on changing circumstances We charge recognized losses to the

allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses There can be no

assurance that charge-offs of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as

estimated at any point in time or that provisions
for loan losses will not be significant to particular

accounting period especially considering the overall weakness in the commercial real estate market in

our market areas

We perform an analysis quarterly to assess the risk within the loan portfolio
The portfolio is

segregated into similar risk components for which historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for

identified changes in current portfolio characteristics Historical loss ratios are calculated by product

type
and by regulatory credit risk classification See Note 5Loans The annualized eighted average

loss ratios over the last 24 months for loans classified substandard special mention and
pass

have been

approximately 3.55% 1.43% and 0.19% respectively The allowance consists of an allocated and

unallocated allowance The allocated portion is determmed by types and ratings
of lons within the

portfolio The unallocated portion of the allowance is established for losses that exist the remainder

of the portfolio and compensates for uncertainty in estimating the loan losses As result of the

economic downturn beginning in 2008 and continuing through 2012 real estate values have been

dramatically impacted With our loan portfolio consisting of large percentage of real estate secured

loans we like most financial institutions continue to experience higher delinquencies
and problem

loans from pre 2008 historical levels Non-performing assets were $13.2 million 2.20% of total assets

at December 31 2010 $12.8 million 2.16% of total assets at December 31 2011 and $8.8 million

1.45% of total assets at December 31 2012 While we continue to experience moderation in this ratio

as evidenced by the decline as of December 31 2012 compared to December 31 2011 and we believe

these ratios are favorable in comparison to current industry results nationally and speifically in our

local markets we continue to be concerned about the impact of this economic environment on our

customer base of local businesses and professionals As noted below in the
Allocatiop

of the

Allowance for Loan Losses table the unallocated portion of the allowance as percentage of the total

allowance has grown over the last several years
The allocated portion of the allowance is based on

historical loss experience
as well as certain qualitative factors as explained above The unallocated

portion of the allowance is established for losses that exist in the remainder of the portfolio and

compensates for uncertainty in estimating the loan losses The unallocated portion ofthe allowance is

composed of factors based on managements evaluation of various conditions that ar not directly

measured in the estimation of probable losses through the experience formula or specific allowances

The unallocated allowance of the portfolio is primarily identified through discussions with senior credit

management and through consideration of various portfolio specifics and other unce$ainties outside of

our markets that could impact the risk inherent in the portfolio These include factors such as

uncertainty as to sustainable economic recovery ongoing global debt crisis and susrttined levels of

high national unemployment Given these uncertainties in economic conditions and particularly real

estate valuations we do not believe it would be prudent to reduce substantially the overall level of our

allowance at this time The unallocated portion as percentage of the loan portfolio has grown

recently primarily as result of higher historical loss periods dropping out of our overall analysis

accompanied by relatively flat loan portfolio As economic conditions show sustainable improvement

we believe the unallocated portion of the allowance should decrease as percentage of the total

allowance In the near term however this percentage may continue to increase slightly

Our Company has significant portion of its loan portfolio with real estate as the underlying

collateral At December 31 2012 and 2011 approximately 92.0% of the loan portfolio had real estate

collateral see Note 15 to financial statements for concentrations of credit When loans whether

commercial or personal are granted they are based on the borrowers ability to generate repayment

cash flows from income sources sufficient to service the debt Real estate is generally taken to reinforce

the likelihood of the ultimate repayment and as secondary source of repayment During this

economic cycle many borrowers traditional income sources have been impacted negatively and real
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estate values have dropped significantly We continue to work closely with all our borrowers that are

experiencing economic problems as result of this cycle and believe we have the processes in place to

monitor and identify problemcredits There can be no assurance that charge-offs of loans in future

periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as estimated at any point in time or that

provisions for loan losses will not be significant to particular accounting period The allowance is also

subject to examination and testing for adequacy by regulatory agencies which may consider such factors

as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the allowance relative to that of peer
institutions Such regulatory agencies could

require us to adjust our allowance based on information

available to them at the time of their examination

At December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we bad non-accrual loans in the amount of $4.7 million

$5.4 million and $5.9 million respectively Nonaccrual loans at December 31 2012 consisted of

23 loans All of these loans are considered to be impaired are substantially all real estate-related and

have been measured for impairment under the fair value of the collateral method We consider loan

to be impaired when based upon current information and events it is believed that we will be unable

to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Such fair values

are obtained using independent appraisals which we consider to be level inputs The aggregate

amount of impaired loans was $6.2 million and $9.4 million for the years ending December 31 2012
and 2011 respectively The non-accrual loans range in size from $1 thousand to $1.4 million The

largest relationship is in the amount of $1.4 million with mortgage on an owner occupied commercial

business located in the midlands of South Carolina

In addition to the non-accrual loans that are considered to be impaired we have nine loans

totaling $1 million that are classified as troubled debt restructurings but are accruing loans as of

December 31 2012 The largest relationship consists of two loans totaling $595 thousand The real

estate securing these two loans is currently under contract to be sold by the borrower See Note

Loans to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosures related to impaired loans and

troubled debt resiructurings There were $2 million $3 million and $24 million in loans

delinquent 30 to 89 days at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively There were $55 thousand

$25 thousand and $373 thousand in loans greater than 90 days delinquent and still
accruing interest at

December 31 2012 2011 and .2010 respectively

Our management continuously monitors non-performing classified and past due loans to identify

deterioration regarding the condition of these loans We have identified three relationships in the

amount of $2.3 million which are current as to principal and interest at December 31 2012 and not

included in non-performing assets that could be potential problem loans Each of these loans is real

estate-related and the loans range in size from $300 thousand to $800 thousand They have been

identified as potential problems based on our review that their traditional sources of cash flow may
have been impacted and that they may ultimately not be able to service the debt These loans are

continually monitored and are considered in our overall evaluation of the adequacy of our allowance

for loan losses

The following table summarizes the activity related to our allowance for loan losses
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$329534 $337143

$344187

4136

1022

4854 4581

Allowance for Loan Losses

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Average loans and loans held for sale

outstanding $331564 $337743 $318954

Loans and loans held for sale outstanding at

period end $341769 $328036 $329954 $332964

Total nonaccrual loans 4715 5403 5890 1757

Loans past due 90 days and still accruing 55 25 373 59

Beginning balance of allowance 4699 4911 3530

Loans charged-off

Construction and development loans 1402

family residential mtrtgage 126 465 1273 450 763

Non-farm non-residential mortgage 187 498 223 117

Multifamily residential
93 84

Home equity
285 187 107 16

Commercial 258 265 125 700 271

Installment credit card 44 62 91 174 90

Overdrafts 34 37 50 34 110

Total loans charged-off
742 1696 1949 2984 1250

Recoveries

family residential mortgage 85 43 41

Non-farm non-residential mortgage

Home equity

Commercial 42 31 32

Installment credit card 25 10 19

Overdrafts 13 13 23

Total recoveries 168 64 128

Net loans charged off 574 1632 1821

Provision for loan losses 496 1420 1878

Balance at period end 4621 4699 4911

Net charge offs to average loans 17% 50% 54%

Allowance as percent of total loans 1.39% 1.45% 1.49%

Non-performing loans as of total lOans... 1.44% 1.67% 190%

Allowance as of non-performing loans 96.88% 86.60% 78.41%
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18

73
54

154

2830

3103

4854

0.84

1.41%

1.50%

94.11%

57

172

1078

2129

4581

0.34%

1.38%

.55%

252.26%
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The following table presents an allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the end of each of

the past five years The allocation is calculated on an approximate basis and is not necessarily indicative

of future losses or allocations The entire amount is available to absorb losses occurring in any category
of loans

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

%of %of %of %of %of
loans loans loans loans loans

in in in in in

Dollars in thousands
Amount category Amount category Amount category Amount category Amount category

Commercial Financial

and Agricultural 338 6.3% 331 6.4% 681 6.2% 634 6.6% 681 8.3%
Real Estate

Construction 3.9% 3.6% 905 3.2% 1331 5.8% 1319 8.7%
Real Estate Mortgage

Commercial 1322 68.2% 1475 67.9% 1404 66.2% 1522 62.2% 1641 57.7%
Residential 235 11.7% 514 11.8% 465 14.1% 243 14.8% 289 15.7%

Consumer 417 9.9% 578 10.3% 414 10.3% 133 10.6% 100 9.6%
Unallocated 2309 N/A 1801 N/A 1042 N/A 991 N/A 551 N/A
Total $4621 100.0% $4699 100.0% $4911 100.0% $4854 100.0% $4581 100.0%

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loans when we believe after considering economic and

business conditions and collection efforts that borrowers financial condition is such that the

collection of interest is doubtful delinquent loan is generally placed in nonaccrual status when it

becomes 90 days or more past due At the time loan is placed in nonaccrual status all interest which
has been accrued on the loan but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted from earnings as

reduction of reported interest income No additional interest is accrued on the loan balance until the

collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably certain

Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income
significant source of noninterest income is service charges on deposit

accounts We also originate fixed rate residential loans on servicing released basis in the secondary
market These loans are fixed rate residential loans that are originated in our name These loans have
locked in price commitments to be purchased by investors at the time of closing Therefore these loans

present very little market risk for the Company We typically deliver to and receive funding from the

investor withm 30 days Other sources of noninterest income are derived from investment advisory fees

and commissions on non-deposit investment products bankcard fees ATM/debit card fees commissions
on check sales safe deposit box rent wire transfer and official check fees Non-interest income

increased from $6.3 million in 2011 to $8.0 million in 2012 Deposit service charges decreased by
$248 thousand in 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily as result of changes to Regulation that

became effective July 2010 required that customers affirmatively opt in to our overdraft protection

program To the extent customers who had previously utilized this product did not opt in these changes
have resulted in reduced fees resulting from ATM and point of sale transaºtions It is expected that this

regulatory change along with other
proposals or recommendations related to overdraft protection

programs including mandated limitations on the number of items an institution can charge within

established time frames as well as the order in which items presented for payment must be processed
on accounts could reduce deposit service charge fees in the future Mortgage origination fees increased

by $2.2 million to $4.2 million in 2012 from $2.0 million in 2011 As previously noted the addition of

Palmetto South as of July 31 2011 was significant contributor to the increased mortgage fees in the

third and fourth quarters of 2011 and throughout the entire year of 2012 Historically low interest rates
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continued to impact the level of refinancing activity during 2012 Investment advisory fees and

non-deposit commissions decreased to $651 thousand in 2012 as compared to $767 thousand in 2011
An increased focus on this source of revenue should enable us to reverse this decline in 2013 and
thereafter

During the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we sold certain non-agency MBSs that were
rated below investment grade In 2012 we sold eight below investment grade non-agency MBSs and
one investment grade corporate security with total book value of approximately $11.7 million The
loss on the sales amounted to approximately $2.1 million and waS offset by gains the approximate
same amount from the sale of certain agency MBSs and municipal securities The sales in 2011 also

related primarily to the sale of certain non-agency MBSs that had been downgraded to below
investment grade The sales of below investment grade and the other investment securities resulted in
net gains of $26 thousand and $575 thousand in 2012 and 2011 respectively The proceeds were
reinvested in our investment portfolio primarily in securities with risk

rating of 20% or less During
the year ended December 31 2012 we incurred OTTI charges of $200 thousand credit component on
certain non-agency MBSs that were sold as part of the transactions noted above This compares to
OTTI charges in 20i1 of $297 thousand see Note 4Investment Securities to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information The sales as well as the OTTI chargs in 2012 and 2011
continued to significantly reduce the level of securities on our balance sheet that ar rated below
investment grade At December 31 2012 there were four remaining mvestments in our portfolio rated

below investment grade with carrying value of $1.6 million During the year ended December 31
2012 and 2011 we prepaid FHLB advances in the amount of $6.0 million and

$10.7 million

respectively We incurred losses in the amount of $217 thousand and $188 thousand during 2012 and

2011 respectively as result of the prepayment of these advances

During 2012 we recorded
negative fair value adjustment on an interest rate swap with notional

amount of $10 million in the amount of $58 thousand as compared to negative $166 thousand
2011 The interest rate swap was entered into in 2008 to protect assets and liabilities from the

negative
impact in rising interest rate environment See Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity

discussion This swap expires on October 2013

Deposit service charges decreased by $65 thousand in 2011 as compared to 2010 As
previously

discussed changes to Regulation that became effective July 2010 required that customers

affirmatively opt in to our overdraft protection program To the extent customers who had previously
utilized this product did not opt in these changes have resulted in reduced fees resiilting from ATM
and point of sale transactions Mortgage origination fees increased by $939 thousand to $1.9 million in

2011 from $1.0 million in 2010 The addition of Palmetto South as of July 31 2011 was significant
contributor to the increased mortgage fees in the third and fourth quarters of 2011 Investment

advisory fees and non-deposit commissions increased to $767 thousand in 2011 as compared to

$501 thousand in 2010 This increase results from continued effort and emphasis placed on this

revenue source as well as an overall increase in the assets under management For the year ended
December 31 2011 we had net gains on the sale of securities in the amount of $575 thousand as

compared to $827 thousand in the comparable period of 2010 The net gains related primarily to the
sale of certain non-agency MBSs that had been downgraded by the rating agencies tb below investment

grade other investment grade non-agency MBSs agency MBSs and shares of FHLMC preferred stock
The FHLMC preferred stock was previously written down in 2008 as result of FHLMC being placed
into conservatorship These sales were initiated to reduce the level of securities on our balance sheet
that were rated below investment grade The cash generated from these transactions was reinvested in
our investment portfolio primarily in securities with risk rating of 20% or less During 2010 we
restructured portion of our available-for sale investments During the second quarter of 2010 we sold

CDO and realized loss in the amount of $1 million Approximately $41 million in

available-for sale GSE bonds and MBSs were sold that realized gam of approximately $1 million In
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the third and fourth quarters of 2010 we sold two corporate securities certain non-taxable municipal

securities and other GSE securities and realized gains of $711 thousand The sales and resulting net

gains during the last half of 2010 were result of our desire to restructure the portfolio to better

position us for rising rate environment as well as investing in securities that have lower regulatory

risk weighting such as GNMA mortgage-backed securities and SBA pools

Other than temporary impairment OTFI charges credit component were $297 thousand in

2011 as compared to $1.6 million in 2010 The 2011 OTFI charges were taken on four below

investment grade private label MBSs In 2010 0Th charges of $477 thousand credit component

were realized on nine private label mortgage backed securities and $1.1 million on one pooled trust

preferred security

During 2011 we recorded negative
fair value adjustment on an interest rate swap with notional

amount of $10.0 million in the amount of $166 thousand This compares to negative fair value

adjustment of $581 thousand during 2010 The interest rate swap was entered into in 2008 to protect

assets and liabilities from the negative impact in rising interest rate environment See Market Risk

and Interest Rate Sensitivity discussion In 2011 we realized loss on early extinguishment of debt in

the amount of $188 thousand Other non-interest income increased by $253 thousand in 2011 as

compared to 2010 The increase primarily
relates to increases in ATM surcharge and debit card

exchange fees of $220 thousand This results from an increase in number of new transaction accounts

as well as increased usage of our debit card product by existing customers Dunng 2010 we realized fee

income related to ATM and debit card usage to include interchange fees of approximately

$840 thousand as compared to $1 million in 2011

Noninterest Expense In the very competitive
financial services industry we recognize the need to

place great deal of emphasis on expense management and continually evaluate and monitor growth in

discretionary expense categories in order to control future increases Noninterest expense increased

from $18 million in 2011 to $19 million in 2012 Salary and benefit expense increased $1 million

from $9.5 million in the 2011 to $11.2 million in 2012 At December 31 2011 we had 157 full time

equivalent employees as compared to 158 full time employees at December 31 2012 As result of the

Palmetto South acquisition in the third quarter
of 2011 we added approximately 10 full time equivalent

employees The compensation paid to most of these employees is variable based on mortgage

origination fees geiierated Having the Palmetto South employees for the entire year of 2012 normal

salary adjustments and increased health insurance cost account for the majority of the increase in salary

and benefit cost in 2012 as compared to 2011 FDIC insurance assessments decreased $292 thousand in

2012 as compared 2011 During the second quarter
of 2011 the FDIC changed the assessment from

deposit base to an asset based calculation The impact to community banks in our asset range was to

generally lower the amount of our assessment This change in assessment in addition to the lifting of

the previously mentioned formal agreement resulted in the lower FDIC premiums in 2012 In

November 2009 all insured institutions with limited exceptions were required to prepay insurance

assessments for three-year period Our prepayment made in December 2009 amounted to

approximately $2.9 million At December 31 2012 the remaining prepaid insurance assessment

amounted to $350 thousand and is included in Other assets Other real estate expenses increased by

$170 thousand in 2012 as compared to 2011 Thisincrease results from write-down on real estate

previously acquired for potential future branch site to its estimated fair value The write down on this

property was $170 thousand

Salary and benefit expense increased $578 thousand from $8 million in the 2010 to $9 million

in 2011 At December 31 2010 we had 147 full time equivalent employees as compared to 157 full

time employees at December 31 2011 The increase in number of full time equivalent employees as

well as normal salary adjustments made for 2011 account for the increase in salary and benefit expense

in 2011 as compared to 2010 As previously noted we acquired Palmetto South on July 31 2011 which

is the primary contributor to the increase in the number of full time equivalent employees in 2011 as
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compared to 2010 ATM/debit card processing expense increased by $58 thousand in 2q11 as compared

to 2010 This increase is result of increased number of accounts as well as higher
utilization by

existing customers of the debit card produôt FDIC insuranc assessments decreased $114 thousand in

2011 as compared 2010 As noted above in the second quarter
of 2011 the FDIC chanted the

assessment from deposit base to an asset based calculation which resulted in lowering the amount of

our assessment

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the primary components of noninterest

expense

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$11152 9520 8942

1358 1289 1229

1168 1147. 1162

.478 452 402

479 472 414

13S 178 150

297 307 .302

.72 66 63

168 193 97
597 889 1003

209 213 220

1010 840 8Z3

745 1040 1068

194 119 119

172. 174 181

312 319 264

204 517 621

.692 666 624

$19445 $18401 $17684

Income tax expense for 2012 was $1.6 million as compared to income tax expense for the year

ended December 31 2011 of $1.5 million and $565 thousand for the year ended Decetuber 31 2010

see note14 Income Taxes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information We

recognize deferred tax assets for future deductible amounts resulting from differences in the financial

statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and operating loss carry
forwards valuation

allowance is then established to reduce the deferred tax asset to the level that it is nire likely than not

that the tax benefit will be realized At December 31 2012- there is deferred tax valuation allowance

of $132 thousand primarily
related to capital loss carryforward that will likely expire prior to being

realized Contribution carry
forwards of approximately $710 thousand expired in 2010 and the related

valuation allowance in the amount of $241 thousand was reversed As of December 2012 we have

tax net loss carryforward of approximately $6.2 million The carryforward expires in 2032 .Se Note 14

Income Taxes to the financial statements for reconciliation of the tax expense It is anticipated that

our effective tax rate for 2013 will be between 28% and 31%

-In thousands

Salary and employee benefits

Occupancy

Equipment

Marketing and public relations

ATMldebit card processing

Supplies

Telephone

Courier

Correspondent services

FDIC/EICO premium

Insurance

Other real estate expenses

Professional fees

Loss on limited partnership
interest

Postage

Director fees

Amortization of intangibles

Other

Income Tax Expense
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Financial Position

Assets totalLed $6029 million at December 31 2012 as compared to $593 million at December 31
2011 an increase of $9.0 million Over the last three years we have successfully controlled balance
sheet growth by paying down FHLB advances as they matore or prepaying the advances when the

pricing and our liquidity were favorable Loans at December 31 2011 were $324.3 million as compared
to $332.1 million excluding loans held for sale at December 31 2012 We funded in excess of

$49.7 million of new loan production in 2012 At December 31 2011 loans accounted for 59.9% of

earning assets as compared to 60.0% at December 31 2011 The loan-to-deposit ratio at December 31
2012 was 69.9% as compared to 69.8% at December 31 2011 During 2011 we began to close and
fund loans originated for sale in the secondary market in the name of the Bank These loans are

generally held for less than thirty days and have locked in purchase commitments by investors prior to

closing Prior to 2011 the loans originated for sale were closed and funded in the investors name and
therefore were not reflected on our balance sheet At December 31 2012 loans held for sale amounted
to $9.7 million as compared to $3.7 at December 31 2011 Investment securities were $206.0 million at

December 31 2012 as compared to $206.7 million at December 31 2011 Short-term federal funds sold
and interest-bearing bank balances were $7.0 million at December 31 2012 compared to $5.9 million at
December 31 2011 Deposits increased by $10.4 million to $475.0 million at December 31 2012 as
compared to $464.6 million at December 31 2011 At December 31 2012 we had no brokered
certificates of deposits As previously discussed due to the current economic cycle and the significant
emphasis by regulators and the investment community on tangible capital regulatory capital ratios and
overall liquidity we attempted to control the growth of our balance sheet throughout 2011 and 2012
We have focused on growing our pure deposit base deposits excluding time deposits while continuing
to fund soundly underwritten loans As result non-interest bearing NOW money market and savings
deposits grew by $35.4 million in 2012 while time deposits declined by $25.0 million During 2011 and
2012 we sold certain non-agency MBSs that had previously been downgraded by the rating agencies to
below investment grade other investment grade non-agency MBSs agency MBSs and shares of
FHLMC preferred stock The FHLMC preferred stock had previously been written down in 2008 as
result of FHLMC being placed into conservatorship These sales served to significantly reduce the level
of securities on our balance sheet that are rated below investment grade see Note Investment
Securities for further information As of December 31 2012 the total book value of securities four
securities rated below investment grade in our portfolio amounted to $1.6 million As

previously noted
management continues to monitor the remaining portfolio with high degree of scrutiny There can be
no assurance that we will not conclude in future periods that conditions existing at that time indicate

some or all of these securities are other than temporarily impaired which would require charge to

earnings in such period We do not consider any of our investments to have additional

other-than-temporary impairment.in excess of amounts previously recognized at December 31 2012

Shareholders
equity totaled $54 million at December 31 2012 as compared to $47 million at

December 31 2011 As previously noted on July 27 2012 the Company closed public offering of

common stock The offering resulted in the issuance of total of 875 million shares of common stock
at $8 00 per share resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million Net proceeds were approximately
$13 million after deducting underwriting discount commissions and other estimated expenses The
proceeds were used to repurchase the 11350 outstanding shares of our Series Preferred Stock

originally issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP CPP In addition on October 25 2012 the

fteasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP Warrant issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP
CPR The repurchase price was $297500 The repurchase of the CPP Warrant was closed on
November 2012 The net proceeds were also used to redeem the $2.5 million of

outstanding
subordinated debt at par on November 15 2012 which was originally issued in November 2011 The
balance of the proceeds from the public offering will be used for general corporate purposes including
contributing portion of the proceeds to the Bank as additional capital if it may be needed to support
organic growth and potentially opportunistic acquisitions that meet our investment criteria
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Net income available to common shareholders less dividend payments to common shareholders

resulted in retained deficit decreasing to $14.9 million as of December 31 2012 Due to the low

interest rate environment and the continued reduction in below investment grade securities

accumulated other comprehensive income increased from $1 million at December 31 2011 to

$2 million at December 31 2012

Earning Assets

Loans and loans held for sale

Loans typically provide higher yields than the other types of earning assets During 2012 loans

accounted for 59 9% of average earning assets The loan portfolio including held for sale averaged

$329 million in 2011 as compared to $331 million in 2012 Quality loan portfolio growth continues

to be strategic focus in 2013 and thereafter Associated with the higher loan yields are the inherent

credit and liquidity risks which we attempt to control and counterbalance One of our goals as

community bank has and continues to be to grow our assets through quality loan growth by providing

credit to small and mid-size businesses as well as individuals within the markets we serve In 2012 we

funded new loans excluding loans originated for sale of approximately $49 million as compared to

$46 million in 2011 Loan production and portfolio growth rates continue to be impacted by the

current slow economic cycle as borrowers are less inclined to leverage their corporate and personal

balance sheets However we remain committed to meeting the credit needs of our local markets

continuation of the slow recovery
from recessionary

national and local economic conditions as well as

deterioration of asset quality within our Company could significantly impact our ability to grow our

loan portfolio Significant increases in regulatory capital expectations beyond the traditional well

capitalized
ratios and significantly

increased regulatory
burdens could impede our ability to leverage

our balance sheet and expand the loan portfolio

The following table shows the composition of the loan portfolio by category

December 31

In thousands

2012 2011 201G 2009 2008

Commercial financial agricultural
20924 20608 20555 22758 27833

Real estate

Construction 13052 11767 10540 19972 28832

Mortgageresidential
38892 38337 46684 50985 52423

Mortgagecommercial 2265.75 220288 218298 214 191832

Consumer

Home equity
27173 27976 27747 28824 23872

Other
5495 5335 6130 7470 8172

Total gross
loans

332111 324311 329954 344187 332964

Allowance for loan losses 4621 4699 4911 4854 4581

Total net loans $327490 $319612 $325043 $339333 $328383

In the context of this discussion real estate mortgage loan is defined as any loan other than

loans for construction purposes secured by real estate regardless of the purpose of the loan We follow

the common practice
of financial institutions in the Companys market area of obtaining security

interest in real estate whenever possible in addition to any other available collateral This collateral is

taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan and tends to increase the

magnitude of the real estate loan components Generally we limit the loan-to-value ratio to 80% The

principal components of our loan portfolio at year-end 2012 and 2011 were comrnercia1 mortgage loans

in the amount of $226 million and $220 million representing
68 1% and 67 9% of the portfolio

respectively Significant portions of these commercial mortgage loans are made to finance
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owner-occupied real estate We continue to maintain conservative philosophy regarding our
underwriting guidelines and believe it will reduce the risk elements of the loan portfolio through
strategies that diversify the lending mix

The repayment of loans in the loan portfolio as they mature is source of liquidity The following
table sets forth the loans maturing within specified intervals at December 31 2012

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changes in Interest Rates

December 31 2012

Over one Year
One Year Through Five Over five

in thousands or Less Years years Total

Commercial financial and agricultural 5287 14648 989 20924
R/E-Constructicn

11762 157 1133 13052
All other loan

50966 199213 47956 298135

$68015 $214018 $50078 $332111

Loans maturing after one year with

Variable Rate
45299Fixed Rate

218797

$264096

The information presented in the above table is based on the contractual maturities of the
individual loans including loans which may be subject to renewal at their contractual maturity Renewal
of such loans is subject to review and credit approval as well as modification of terms upon their
maturity

Investment Securities

The investment securities portfolio is significant component of our total
earning assets Total

investment secur averaged $204.9 million in 2012 as compared to $205.7 million in 2011 This
represents 37.0% and 37.4% of the average earning assets for the year ended December 31 2012 and
2011 respectively At December 31 2012 and 2011 our investment securities portfolio amounted to
$206.0 million and $206.7 million respectively

Beginning in 2008 and continuing into 2012 the bond markets and many institutional holders of
bonds came under

great deal of stress partially as result of increasing delinquencies in the mortgage
lending market As of December 31 2012 we own total MBSs and CMOs with an amortized cost of
$110.4 million and an approximate fair value of $112.1 million These included securities with an
amortized cost of $107.3 million and approximate fair value of $109.4 million issued by GSEs The
contractual cash flows of the investments are guaranteed by the GSE Accordingly it is expected that
the securities would not be settled at price less than our amortized cost

Also included in our MBS and CMO portfolio are PLMBSs with an amortized cost of $3.1 million
and approximate fair value of $2.7 million at December 31 2012 During the second quarter of 2008we implemented leverage strategy whereby we acquired approximately $63.2 millioii in certain
non-agency MBSs and CMOs All of the mortgage assets acquired in this transaction were classified as
prime or ALT-A securities and represented the senior or super-senior tranches of the securities The
assets acquired as part of this strategy were classified as held-to-maturity in the investment portfolioDue to the

significant spreads on these securities they were all purchased at discounts
Starting in

early2009 many of these securities acquired in the
leverage strategy as well as others that were owned priorto 2008 began to be downgraded by the various rating agencies Beginning in 2011 and 2012 we began
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selling the majority of these downgraded secUrities At December 31 2012 there are only fonr CUSIPs

remaining that have been downgraded below investment grade The carrying value of these remaining

securities is $1.6 million at December 31 2012 We continue to perform an internal detailed analysis on

each CUSIP on quarterly basis The analysis includes stressing each security using various

assumptions for conditional default rate CDR prepayment speeds CPR and seventies of loss on

underlyingcollatera1 once it is liquidated For the year ended December 31 2012 we recognized

impairment charges on four PLMBS investments whereby the credit component was $200 thousand

recognized through earnings see Note to the financial statements For the year ended December 31

2011 we recognized the credit impairment charges of $297 thousand as thecredit component on nine

PLMBS securities through earnings Our exposure to future losses resulting from OTTI has been

greatly
reduced as result of the overall reduction through the sale of the majority of these investments

The following table summarizes the PLMBSs portfolio by credit rating as of December 31 2012

The rating reflects the lowest rating by any major rating agency

Dollars in thousands

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

264 268

380 374

320 318

72 71

231 225

71 72

97 97 96

2008 1653 1291

$3443 $3088 $2715

Number
of Par

Credit Rating
CUSIPs Value

$264

Al .1 380

A3 320

72

BBB 231

Baal
71

Baa2

Below Investment Grade

Total _____

The current rating process
does not adequately consider what the holder paid for the bond or the

Impact that they are multi-obligor securities This can cause an entire security to be rated below

investment grade even though majority of the underlying obligors are paying timely on the underlying

obligation
We believe that the robust monitoring process

that we have in place allows us to properly

evaluate the credit risk underlying
these securities and record any further 011 in timely manner

We held no other debt securities rated below investment grade at December 31 2012 At

December 31 2012 the estimated weighted average life of the investment portfolio was approximately

6.1 years duration of approximately 3.5 and weighted average tax equivalent yield of approximately

2.0%
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2012 2011 2010Dollars in thousands _________ _________ _________

Securities available-for-sale at fair value

U. Government sponsored enterprises 1534 34 1338
Small Business Administration pools 54993 36479 31496
Mortgage-backed securities 112144 141631 121257

State and local government 32373 20488 19055

Preferred stock 447 21 235

Corporate bonds 1010 1415 2585
Other 944 964 943

Total $203445 $201032 $189309

We hold other investments carried at cost which included Federal Reserve and the FHLB stock

These investments amounted to $2.5 million and $5.6 million at December 31 2012 and 2011
respectively At Iecernber 31 2012 as result of our conversion to state non member charter we
are no longer recluired to hold stock in the Federal Reserve Bank and the balance of $25 million

represents our holdings in FHLB stock

Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yields

The following table shows at amortized cost the scheduled maturities and average yield of

securities held at December 31 2012

In thousands ________ ________ ________ ________

Available-for-sale

Government sponsored enterprises $1500 2.50% 22 4.97%

Small Business Administration pools. 12838 1.44%

Mortgage-backed securities 25426 0.65% 68659 1.44%

State and local government 500 3.60% 1500 3.00%

Corporate 1000 4.00%

Other 10 0.97% 50 053%
______ ______

Total investment securities

available-for-sale $27436 0.81% $84069 1.50% $57738 2.75% $30684 2.86%

Yield calculated on tax equivalent basis

Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments which consist of federal funds sold securities purchased under agreements
to resell and interest bearing deposits averaged $17.2 million in 2012 as compared to $15.2 million in

2011 We maintain the
majority of our short term overnight investments in our account at the Federal

Reserve rather than in federal funds at various correspondent banks due to the lower regulatory capital
risk weighting At December 31 2012 short-term investments including funds on deposit at the Federal
Reserve totaled $7.0 million These funds are primary source of liquidity and are generally invested in

an earning capacity on an overnight basis

The following table shows the investment portfolio composition

December 31

Within One
Year

Amount Yield

Alter One But

Within Five

Years

Amount Yield

Alter Five But

Within Ten

Years

Amount Yield

Alter Ten Years

Amount Yield

24819 2.50% 16491

4643 3.99% 11697

28276 2.76% 1207

1.95%

3.82%

3.35%

0.00% 1289 5.19%
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Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Deposits Average deposits were $471.5 million during 2012 compared to $466.8 million during

2011 Average interest-bearing deposits were $379.7 million during 2012 as compared to $384.3 million

during 2011

The following table sets forth the deposits by category

December 31

2012 2011 2010

%of %of %of

In thousands
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits Amount Deposits

Demand deposit accounts 97526 20.5% 83572 18.0% 72625 16.0%

NOW accounts 96971 20.4% 88330 19.0% 78814 17.3%

Money market accounts 53903 11.4% 48153 10.4% 44790 9.8%

Savings accounts 41100 7% 34048 3% 29886 6%

Time deposits less than $100000 111316 23 4% 128616 27 7% 143946 31 6%

Time deposits more than $100000 74161 156% 81866 176% 85283 187%

$474977 100.0% $464585 100.0% $455344 100.0%

Large certificate of deposit customers tend to be extremely sensitive to mterest rate levels making

these deposits less reliable sources of funding for liquidity planning purposes than core deposits Core

deposits which exclude certificates of deposit of $100000 or more provide relatively stable funding

source for the loan portfolio and other earning assets Core deposits were $400.8 million and

$382.7 million at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

stable base of deposits is expected to continue be the pnmary source of funding to meet both

our short-term and long-term liquidity needs in the future The maturity distribution of time deposits is

shown in the following table

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit and Other Time Deposit of $100000 or more

December 31 2011

After Three After Six After

Within Three Through Through IWelve

In thousands
Months Six Months lWeIve Months Months Total

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more $13296 $14780 $17632 $28587 $74295

There were no other time deposits of $100000 or more at December 31 2012

Borrowed funds Borrowed funds consist of securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLB

advances and long-term debt as result of issuing $15.5 million in trust preferred securities Short-term

borrowings in the form of securities sold under agreements to repurchase averaged $15.4 million $15.9

and $17.4 million during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The maximum month-end balances during

2012 2011 and 2010 were $17.3 million $18.1 million and $21.8 million respectively The average rates

paid during these periods were 0.23% 0.25% and 0.35% respectively The balances of securities sold

under agreements to repurchase were $15.9 million and $13.6 million at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively The repurchase agreements all mature within one to four days and are generally originated

with customers that have other relationships with the company and tend to provide stable and

predictable source of funding As member of the FHLB the bank has access to advances from the

FHLB for various terms and amounts During 2012 and 2011 the average outstanding advances

amounted to $38.8 million and $56.0 million respectively
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The following is schedule of the maturities for FHLB Advances as of Decenber 31 2012 and

2011

December 31

In thousands
2012 2011

Maturing Amount Rate Amount Rate

2011

2012 1000 0.36%

2013 4000 3.58%

2015 4000 4.22% 6500 4.09%

After five years 32344 4.13% 32362 4.13%

$36344 4.14% $43862 3.99%

In addition to the above borrowings we issued $15.0 million in trust preferred securities on

September 16 2004 The securities accrue and pay distributions quarterly at rate of three month

LIBOR plus 257 basis points The debt may be redeemed in full anytime after September 16 2009 with

notice and matures on September 16 2034 In the fourth quarter of 2011 we issued $2.5 million in

8.75% subordinated notes maturing December 16 2019 with interest payable quarterly On
November 15 2012 the subordinated notes were redeemed in full at par Warrants for 107500 shares

of common stock at $5.90 per share were issued in connection with the issuance of the subordinated

debt The warrants expire December 16 2019

Capital Adequacy and Dividends

Total shareholders equity as of December 31 2012 was $54.2 million as compared to $47.9 million

as of December 31 2011 In November 2008 we issued $11.35 million in Series Preferred Stock

under the CPP Preferred dividends of 5% were paid during the year ended December 31 2012

through the date of redemption and in 2011 on the Series Preferred Stock As previously noted we
closed on public offering of common stock which resulted in the issuance of total of 1.875 million

shares of common stock at $8.00 per share resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million Net proceeds

were approximately $13.8 million after deducting underwriting discount commissions and other

estimated expenses The proceeds were used to repurchase all 11350 outstanding shares of our

Series Preferred Stock and repurchase the CPP Warrant Proceeds were also used to redeem the

$2.5 million of outstanding subordinated debt at par on November 15 2012 which was originally issued

in November 2011 The remaining net proceeds from the common stock offering along with retention

of earnings available to common shareholders less dividend payments on our common stock plus an

increase in accumulated other comprehensive income accounted for the increase in shareholders

equity During each quarter of 2012 and 2011 we paid dividend on our common stock of $0.04 per

share

In addition dividend reinvestment plan was implemented in the third quarter of 2003 The plan

allows existing shareholders the option of reinvesting cash dividends as well as making optional

purchases of up to $5000 in the purchase of common stock per quarter
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The following table shows the return on average assets net income divided by average total

assets return on average equity net income divided byaverage equity and equity to assets ratio for

the three years ended December 31 2012

For years 2010 and 2011 includes Series perpetual preferred stock issued November 21
2008

Following 2012 on-site examination of the Bank the 0CC notified the Bank that effective

June 28 2012 the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that it entered into with the

0CC in 2010 The 0CC also notified the Bank that effective June 28 2012 it was no longer subject to

the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24 2010 which had

required the Bank to maintain Tier leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00% Tier risk-based

capital ratio of at least 10.00% and total risk-based capital ratio of at least 12.00% In addition the

Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond notified the Company that effective July10 2012 the Company
was no longer subject to the MOU that it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of

Richmond in December of 2011

The Company and the Bank exceeded their regulatory capital ratids at December 31 2012 and

2011 as set forth in the following table

$14605 00% $61588 16 9% $46983 12 9%
29209 8.00% 66158 18.1% 36949 10.1%

23824 4.00% 61588 10.3% 37764 6.3%

15.1% $40730 11.1%

16.4% 30677 8.4%

9.3% 31479 5.3%

2012

Return on average assets 0.55%

Return on average common equity 7.40%

Equity to assets ratio1 8.99%

Dividend Payout Ratio 15.25%

2011 2010

0.44% 0.20%

7.98% 3.73%

8.06% 6.98%

15.79% 28.1%

Required Actual Excess

Amount Amount AmountIn thousands

The Bank

December 31 2012

Risk Based Capital

Tier

Total Capital

Tier Leverage

December 31 2011

Risk Based Capital

Tier

Total Capital

Tier Leverage

The Company
December 31 2012

Risk Based Capital

Tier

Total Capital

Tier Leverage

December 31 2011

Risk Based Capital

Tier

Total Capital

Tier Leverage

$14647 400% $55377

29294 8.00% 59971

23898 4.00% 55377

$14628

29258

23806

4.00%

8.00%

4.00%

$63381 17.3% $48753

67963 18.7% 38705

63381 10.6% 39575

$14668 4.00%

29335 8.00%

23909 4.00%

13.3%

10.7%

6.6%

11.3%

9.3%

5.4%

$56207

63256

56207

15.3%

17.3%

9.4%

$41539

33921

32298
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Since the Company is bank holding company its ability to declare and pay dividends is

dependent on certain federal and state regulatory considerations including the guidelines of the

Federal Reserve Board The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement regarding the

payment of dividends by bank holding companies In general the Federal Reserve Boards policies

provide that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of

earnings retentidn by the bank holding company appears consistent with the organizations capital

needs asset quality and overall financial condition The Federal Reserve Boards policies also require

that bank holding company serve as source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing

ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of

financial stress or adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to

obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary In addition under the

prompt correctivc action regulations the ability of bank holding company to pay dividends may be

restricted if subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized These regulatory policies could affect the

ability of the Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital
distributions

In addition since the Company is legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and does not

conduct stand-alone operations its ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of the Bank to pay

dividends to it which is also subject to regulatory restrictions As South Carolina chartered bank the

Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay Unless otherwise

instructed by the S.C Board the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking

regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining

the prior approval of the S.C Board The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin

bank from engag ng in what in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its

business includiiig the payment of dividend under certain circumstances

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring sources and uses of funds in order to meet our

day to day cash flow requirements while maximizing profits Liquidity represents our ability to convert

assets into cash or cash equivalents without significant
loss and to raise additional funds by increasing

liabilities LiquidJLty management is made more complicated because different balance sheet

components are subject to varying degrees of management control For example the timing
of

maturities of the investment portfolio is very predictable aad subject to high degree of control at the

time investment decisions are made However net deposit inflows and outflows are far less predictable

and are not subject to nearly the same degree of control Asset liquidity is provided by cash and assets

which are readily marketable or which can be pledged or which will mature in the near future

Liability liquidity is provided by access to core funding sources principally the ability to generate

customer deposits in our market area In addition liability liquidity is provided through the ability to

borrow against approved lines of credit federal funds purchased from correspondent banks and to

borrow on secured basis through securities sold under agreements to repurchase The Bank is

member of the FHLB and has the ability to obtain advances for various periods
of time These

advances are secured by securities pledged by the Bank or assignment of loans within the Banks

portfolio

With the successful completion of the common stock offering in 1995 the secondary offerings

completed in 1998 and 2012 the trust preferred offering completed in September 2004 the acquisition

of DutchFork in October 2004 the acquisition of DeKaib in June 2006 we have maintained high

level of liquidity and adequate capital along with retained earnings less the 2009 and 2008 net loss

sufficient to fund the operations of the Bank for at least the next 12 months We anticipate that the

Bank will remain well capitalized institution for at least the next 12 months The loss related to

goodwill impairment in 2009 was noncash charge and had no impact on regulatory capital or tangible

equity Total shareholders equity was 8.99% of total assets at December 31 2012 and 8.07% at
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December 31 2011 Funds sold and short-term interest bearing deposits are our primary source of

liquidity and averaged $17.2 million and $15.2 million during the year ended December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively The Bank maintains federal funds purchased lines in the amount of $10.0 million

each with two financial instItutions although these were not utilized in 2012 The FHLB has approved

line of credit of up to 25% of the Banks assets which would be collateralized by pledge against

specific investment securities and or eligible loans We regularly review the liquidity position of the

Company and have implemented internal policies establishing guidelines for sources of asset based

liquidity and limit the total amount of purchased funds used to support the balance sheet and funding

from non-core sources We believe that our existing stable base of core deposits along with continued

growth in this deposit base will enable us to meet our long term liquidity needs successfully

We believe our liquidity remains adequate to meet operating and loan funding requirements and

that our existing stable base of core deposits along with ºontinued growth in this deposit base will

enable us to meet our long-term and short-term liquidity needs successfully

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of operations we engage in variety of financial transactions that in

accordance with GAA1 are not recorded in the financial statements or are recorded in amounts that

differ from the notional amounts These transactions involve to varying degrees elements of credit

interest rate and liquidity risk Such transactions are used by the company for general corporate

purposes or for customer needs Corporate purpose transactions are used to help manage credit

interest rate and liquidity risk or to optimize capital Customer transactions are used to manage
customers requests for funding Please refer to Note 16 of the Companys financial statements for

discussion of our off balance sheet arrangements

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as the

company and the bank are primarily monetary in nature Therefore interest rates have more

significant effect on our performance than do the effects of changes in the general rate of inflation and

change in prices In addition interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the

same magnitude as the prices of goods and services As discussed previously we continually seek to

manage the relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide

interest rate fluctuations including those resulting from inflation

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Additional information required under this Item may be found under the Notes to Financial

Statements under Note 24
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of First Community Corporation is responsible for establishing and mamtarning

adequate internal control over financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is defined in

Rule 13a-15f promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as process designed by or

underthe supervision of our principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by our

board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and

procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of our assets

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and

that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our

management and directors and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatem nts Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of

December 31 2012 In making this assessment our management used the criteria set forth by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control

Integrated Framework

Based on that assessment we believe that as of December 31 2012 our internal control over

financial reportmg is effective based on those critena

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm

regarding our internal control over financial reporting Managements report on internal control over

financial reporting was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to

rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide only

managements rexrt in this annual report

/s MICHAEL CRAPPs Is JOSEPH SAWYER

Chief Executive Officer and President Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

66



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

First Community Corporation

Lexington South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Community Corporation
and subsidiary the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated
statements of income comprehensive income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each
of the years in the three year period ended December 31 2012 These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The
Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of eipressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial rorting
Accordingly we

express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessmg the accounting principles
used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of First Community Corporation and subsidiary as of
December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the

years in the three year period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with U.S generally accepted
accounting principles

Is Elliott Davis LLC

Columbia South Carolina

March 28 2013
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Deposits

Non-interest bearing demand

NOW and money market accounts

Savings

Time deposits less than $100000

Time deposits $100000 and over

Total deposits

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Junior subordinated debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock par
value $1.00 per share 10000000 shares authorized and

11350 issued and outstanding at December 31 2012 and 2011

Common stock par value $1.00 per share 10000000 shares authorized issued and

outstanding 5227300 at December 31 2012 and 3307531 at December 31 2011

Common stock warrants issued

Nonvested restricted stock

Additional paid in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31

Dollars in thousands except par values

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Interest-bearing bank balances

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell

Investment securitiesavailable for sale

Other investments at cost

Loans held for sale

Loans

Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Property furniture and equipmentnet

Bank owned life insurance

Other real estate owned

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

2012 2011

$11517 $10599

6779 5512

412 381

203445 201032

2527 5637

9658 3725

332111 324311

4621 4699

327490 319612

17258 17483

10868 10974

3987 7351

160 365

571 571

8253 10645

$602925 $593887

83572

136483

34048

128616

81866

464585

13616

43862

17913

6015

545991

97526

150874

41100

111182

74295

474977

15900

36344

15464

6057

548742

5227

50

152
61615

14915
2358

54183

$602925

11137

3308

560

49165

17603
1329

47896

$593887
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORAIlON

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts
2012 2011 2010

Interest income

Loans including fees $18361 $19110 $19851

Investment securitiestaxable 3832 6291 7376

Investment securitiesnon taxable 725 51 190

Other short term investments 84 74 94

Total interest income 23002 25526 27511

Interest expense

Deposits 3122 4573 6281

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 35 40 60

Other borrowed money 2271 2596 3033

Total mterest expense 5428 7209 9374

Net interestincome 17574 18317 18137

Provision for loan losses 496 1420 1878

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17078 16897 16259

Non-interest income

Deposit service charges 1562 1810 1875

Mortgage origination fees 4242 1973 1034

Investment advisory fees and non-deposit commissions 651 767 501

Gain on sale of securities 26 575 827

Gain loss on sale of other assets 89 155 35

Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities 200 297 1560
Fair value loss adjustments on interest rate swap 58 166 581
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 217 188
Other 2038 1966 1713

Total non-interest income 7955 6285 3844

Non-interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits 11152 9520 8942

Occupancy 1358 1289 1229

Equipment 1168 1147 1162

Marketing and public relations 478 452 402

FDIC Insurance assessments 597 889 1003

Other real estate expense 1010 840 823

Amortization of intangibles 204 517 621

Other 3478 3747 3502

Total non interest expense 19445 18401 17684

Net income before tax 5588 4781 2419

Income tax expense 1620 1457 565

Net income 3968 3324 1854

Preferred stock dividends 557 670 664

Preferred stock redemption costs 119

Net income available to common shareholders 3292 2654 1190

Basic earnings per common share 0.79 0.81 0.36

Diluted earnings per common share 0.79 0.81 0.36

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

69



FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Dollars in thousands

Net income $3968 $3324 1854

Other comprehen ive income loss

Unrealized gain loss during theperiod on available for sale securities

net of tax of $471 $1964 and $564 respectively 914 3751 1065

Less Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net income net of

tax of $9 $201 and $289 respectively 17 374 537

Reclassification adjustment for other-than-temporary-impairment on

securities net of tax benefit of $68 $104 and $546 respectively 132 193 1014

Other comprehensive income loss 1029 3570 588

Comprehensive income $4997 $6894 1266

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

Common Stock

Dollars and shares in thousands _______ ________ ________ _________ _________ ___________
Balance December 31 2009

Net income

Other
comrehensjye loss net of

taxof $307

Amortization of compensation on

restricted stock

Dividends Common $0.16 per share

Preferred stock
Dividend reinvestment plan

Balance December 31 2010

Net incoifie

Other comprehensive income net

of tax of $2061

Issuance of stock warrants

Issuance of restricted stock

Amortization of compensation on
restricted stock

Dividends Common $0.16 per share

Preferred stack

Dividend reinvestment plan

Balance December 31 2011

Net income

-Other comprehensive income net

of tax of $561

Repurchase of stock warrants

Issuance of restricted stock

Amortization of compensation on

restricted stoçlç

Issuance of common stock net of

expenses of $1200

Dividends Common $0.16 per share

Preferred stock

Redemption of preferred stock 11285
Adcretion and redemption costs 148

Dividend reinvestment plan

Balance December 31 2012

See Notes -to Consolidated Financial Statements

$10939 3252

96

11035

23

15

3308

Accumulated
--

Number Common Additional Nonvested Other
Preferred Shares Common Stock Paid-in Restricted Accumulated Comprehensive

Stock Issued Stock Warrants Capital Stock Deficit Income loss Total

$3252 509 $48873 79 $20401 $1653 41440

1854 1854

588- 588

79 79

-- 521 521
664 568

18 18 83 101

3270 3270 509 48956 19732 2241 41797

3324 3324

3570 3570
51 51

23 133 65 91

65 65

525 525
102

670
--

568
15 76 91

11137 3308 560 49165 17603 1329 47896
3968 3968

1029 1029

510 212
--

-- 298
33 239 272

120 120

1875 11917 13792

605 605
475 475

11285
200 52

___ 82 -- 93

50 $61615 $152 $14915 2358 54183

33

1875

11 11

5227 $5227
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

862

3112
496

317

89

134275
128342

204

26
200

58

170

217

2260
38

6032

59012

103245
43144

11312
5728

806

7479

10392

1500

9235
2284

2500
13792

11073

510
93

605
475

3663

2216

16492

18

6023

1029

2770

56003

103040
40441

241

3020
10

308

3633

9242

7500

31921
929

120
2500

182

525
670

12883

9969
26461

16492

7706

3570

3889

85456

140374
42910

10
8874

4778

3208

242

4600

5710

5232
7990

44

101

522
64

8641

5617

20844

26461

9413

588
7278

46244

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

3968 3324 1854

841 882

1968 1421

1420 1878

261 333

155

60488

56763
517 621

575 827
297 1560

166 581

188

1214 1016

496 336

6547 9658

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Amounts in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided in operating activities

Depreciation

Premium amortization

Provision for loan losses

Writedowns of other real estate owned

Loss on sale of other real estate owned

Originations of HFS loans

Sales of HFS loans

Amortization of inlangibles

Gain on sale of securities

Other-than-temporary-impairment charges on securities

Net decrease in fair value option instruments and derivatives

Writedown of land

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Decrease in other assets

Increase in accounits payable

Net cash provided in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale

Maturity/call of investment securities available-for-sale

Purchase of investment securities held-to-maturity

Maturity/call of investment securities held-to-maturity

Increase decrease in loans

Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned

Proceeds from sale of land

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in deposit accounts

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

Repayment of advancea from th Federal Home Loan Bank

Increase decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Decrease in other borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of subordinated note payable

Repayment of subordinated note payable

Proceeds from sale Common Stock

Redemption of Preferred Stock

Repurchase of stock warrants

Dividend reinvestment plan

Dividends paid Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Net cash provided used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivallents
at end of year

Supplemental disclosure

Cash paid during the period for Interest

Thxes

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Unrealized loss gain on securities available-for-sale

Itansfer of loans to foreclosed property

ilansfer of HTM securities to APS securities
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First Community Corporation the

Company and its wholly owned subsidiary First Community Bank the Bank The Company owns

all of the common stock of FCC Capital Trust All material intercompany transactions are eliminated

in consolidation The Company was organized on November 1994 as South Carolina corporation

and was formed to become bank holding company The Bank opened for business on August 17

1995 FCC Capital Trust is an unconsolidated special purpose subsidiary organized for the sole

purpose of issuing trust preferred securities

Note 2SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America These principles require management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination

of the allowance for loan losses The estimation process includes managements judgment as to future

losses on existing loans based on an internal review of the loan portfolio including an analysis of the

borrowers current financial position the consideration of current and anticipated economic conditions

and the effect on specific borrowers In determining the collectability of loans management also

considers the fair value of underlying collateral Various regulatory agencies as an integral part
of their

examination process review the Companys allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the

Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about information available

to them at the time of their examination Because of these factors it is possible that the allowance for

loan losses could change materially

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand due from banks interest-bearing bank balances

federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell Generally federal funds are sold

for one-day period and securities purchased under agreements to resell mature in less than 90 days

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified as either held-to-maturity avaiIable-forsale or trading

securities In determining such classification securities that the Company has the positive intent and

ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to maturity and are carried at amortized cost Securities

classified as available-for-sale are carried at estimated fair values with unrealized gains and losses

included in shareholders equity on an after tax basis Trading securities are carried at estimated fair

value with unrealized gains and losses included in Non-interest income See Note

Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities and trading securities are determined

using the specific identification method Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and

available-for-sale securities below their cost that are judged to be other than temporary are written

down to fair value and charged to income in the Consolidated Statement of Income
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Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the

period to maturity

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

The Company ot igmates fixed rate residential loans on servicing
released basis in the secondary

market Loans closed but not yet settled with an investor are carried in the Companys loans held for

sale portfolio These loans are fixed rate residential loans that have been originated in the Companys

name and have closed Virtually all of these loans have conmitments to be purchased by investors at

locked in price with 1he investors on the same day that the lOan was locked in with the Companys

customers Therefore these loans present very
little market risk for the Company

The Company usually delivers to and receives funding from the investor -within 30 days

Commitments to sell these loans to the investor are considered derivative contracts and are sold to
investors on best efforts basis The Company is not obligated to- deliver loan or pay penalty if

loan is not delivered to the investor As result of the short-term nature of these derivative contracts

the fair value of the mortgage loans held for sale in most cases is the same as the value of the loan

amount at its origination These loans are classified as Level

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future- or

until maturity or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any --

charge-offs the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans Interest- is

recognized over the term of the loan based- on- the loan balance outstanding Fees charged for

originating loans -if any are deferred and offset by the deferral of certain direct expenses associated

with loans originated The net deferred fees are recognized as yield adjustments by applying the

interest method

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at level believed to be adequate by management to

absorb potential losses in the loan portfolio Managements determination of the adequacy of the

allowance is based on an evaluation -ci the-portfolio past loss experience economic conditions and

volume growth and composition of the portfolio

The Company considers loan to be impaired when based upon current information and events

it is believed that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contraºtual

terms of the loan agreement Loans that are considered impaired are accounted for at the lower of

carrying value or fair value The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when in

managements opinion the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due generally

when loan becomes 90-days past due When interest accrual is discontinued all unpaid accrued

interest is reversed Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are

received first to principal and then-to interest income

Properly and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is-

computed using the straight-line -method over the assets estimated useful life Estimated lives range up

to 39 years
for buildings and up to 10 years for furniture fixtures and equipment
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Goodwill and Qther Intangible Assts

Goodwill represents the cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired including identifiable

intangibles in purchase transactions Other intangible assets represent premiums paid for acquisitions
of core deposits core deposit intangibles Core deposit intangibles are being amortized on

straight-line basis over seven years Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for

impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of

an asset may not be recoverable The annual valuation is performed on September 30 of each year

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned includes real estate acquired through foreclosure Other real estate owned
is carried at the lower of cost principal balance at date of foreclosure or fair value minus estimated
cost to sell Any write-downs at the date of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses

Expenses to maintain such assets subsequent changes in the valuation allowance and gains or losses on

disposal are included other expenses

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income in accordance with ASC 220 Comprehensive
Income ASC 220 requires that all items that are required to be reported under accounting standards

as comprehensive income be reported in financial statement that is displayed with the same
prominence as other financial statements The disclosures requirements have been included in the

Companys consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Mortgage Origination Fees

Mortgage origination fees relate to activities comprised of
accepting residential mortgage

applications qualifring borrowers to standards established by investors and selling the mortgage loans

to the investors under pre existing commitments The loans are funded by the investor at closing and
the related fees received by the Company for these services are recognized at the time the loan is

closed

Advertising Expense

Advertising and public relations costs are generally expensed as incurred External costs incurred in

producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs

relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent

Income Taxes

deferred income tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated future effects attributable

to differences in the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts iii the financial

statements as well as operating loss and tax credit
carry forwards The deferred tax asset or liability is

measured using the enacted tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the period in which the

deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized

In 2006 the FASB issued guidance related to Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes This

guidance clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprises financial
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statements in accordance with FASB ASC topic 740-10 Income Taxes It also prescribes recognition

threshold and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in an enterprises tax

return

Stock Based Compensation Cost

The Company accounts for stock based compensation under the fair value provisions
of the

accounting literature Compensation expense is recognized in salaries and employee benefits

The fair value of each grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Sholes option pricing

model No options were granted in 2012 2011 or 2010

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income

available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for

the period Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the

weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents Common stock

equivalents consist of stock options and warrants and are computed using the treasury stock method

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before

financial statements are issued Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide

additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet including the

estimates inherent in the
process

of preparing financial statements Non-recognized subsequent events

are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but

arose after that date In preparmg these financial statements subsequent events were evaluated through

the time the financial statements were issued and all material subsequent events have been either

recognized or disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Segment Infonnation

ASC Topic 280-10 Segment Reporting requires selected segment information of operating

segments based on management approach The Company operates as one business segment

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2011 the Intangibles topic was amended to permit an entity to consider qualitative

factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less

than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step

goodwill impairment test These amendments were effective for the Company on January 2012

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 to assist creditors with their determination of when

restructuring is Troubled Debt Restructuring TDR The determination is based on whether the

restructuring constitutes concession and whether the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties as

both events must be present The new guidance was effective for the Company beginning January

2012 and did not have material effect on the Company TDR determinations
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In April 2011 the criteria used to determine effective control of transferred assets in the Transfers

and Servicing topic of the ASC was amended by ASU 2011-03 The requirement for the transferor to

have the ability to repurchase or redeem the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms and the

collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion were removed from the

assessment of effective control The other criteria to assess effective control were not changed The

amendments were effective for the Company on January 2012 and had no effect on the financial

statements

ASU 2011-04 was issued in May 2011 to amend the Fair Value Measurement topic of the ASC by

clarifying the application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and by

changing particular principles or requirements for measuring fair value or for disclosing information

about fair value measurements The amendments were effective for the Company beginning January

2012 and had no effect on the financial statements

The Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC was amended in June 2011 The amendment

eliminates the option to present other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in

stockholders equity and requires consecutive presentation of the statement of net income and other

comprehensive income The amendments were applicable to the Company on January 2012 and have

been applied retrospectively In December 2011 the topic was further amended to defer the effective

date of presenting reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income on the

face of the financial statements Companies should continue to report reclassifications out of

accumulated other comprehensive income consistent with the presentation requirements in effect prior

to the amendments while FASB finalizes its conclusions regarding future requirements

In July 2012 the Intangibles topic was amended to permit an entity to consider qualitative factors

to determine whether it is more likely than not that indefinite-lived intangible assets are impaired If it

is determined to be more likely than not that indefinite-lived intangible assets are impaired then the

entity is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the

quantitative impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount The amendments

are effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after

September 15 2012 Early adoption is permitted The amendments are not expected to have material

effect on the Companys financial statements

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards

setting bodies are not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results

of operations or cash flows

Risk and Uncertainties

In the normal course of business the Company encounters two significant types of risks economic

and regulatory There are three main components of economic risk interest rate risk credit risk and

market risk The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing

liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds or on different basis than its interest-earning assets

Credit risk is the risk of default on the Companys loan and investment portfolios that results from

borrowers or issuers mability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments Market risk

reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans and investments and the valuation of real

estate held by the Company
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The Company is subject to regulations of various governmental agencies regulatory risk These
regulations can and do change significªntlyfrom period to period TheCompany also undergoes
periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies which may subject it to further changes with respect
to asset valuations amounts ofrequired loan loss allowances and operating restrictions from regulators
judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination

Reclassiji cat ions

Certain captions and amounts in the 2011 and 2010 consOlidated financial statements were
reclassified to conform to the 2012 presentation

Note 3BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Bank expanded its residential mortgage business unit with the acquisition of the assets of
Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation Palmetta South effective July 31 2011 Palmetto South
which operates as division of the Bank offers mortgage loan products for home purchase or
refinance in the South Carolina market area The acquisition price will be paid during three year
earn Out period with the actual amount calculated based on the achievement of certain

profitability
metrics The earn out terms over the three year period provide for contingent consideration which
ranges from $0 io $1.2 million based upon annual net income Management anticipates the amount will
be approximately $600 thousand based upon recent past operating results and as such

contingent
liability was recognized for this amount when

considering business combination accounting rules The
purchase price cf operating assets was $22 thousand This acquisition was not considered material to
the financial statements
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values .of investment securitjes are summarized below

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Dollars in thousands
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2012

Government sponsored enterprises 1522 12 1534

Mortgage backed securities 110425 2343 624 112144

Small Business Administration pools 54148 1008 163 54993
State and local government 31483 936 46 32373

Corporate and other securities 2349 53 2401

$199927 $4352 .834 $203445

December 31 2011

Government sponsored enterprises .. 31 34

Mortgage-backed securities .141103 2876 234 141631

Small Business Administration poois 35889 634 44 36479
State and local government 19617 871 20488

Corporate and other securities 2432 54 86 2400

$199072 $.4438 $2478 $201032

At December 31 2012 corporate and other securities available-for-sale included the following at

fair value corporate bonds at $1 million mutual funds at $884 thousand foreign debt of

$59.7 thousand Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock of $30.0 thousand and
Corporate preferred stock in the amount of $416.7 thousand At December 31 2011 corporate an1

other securities available for-sale included the following at fair value corporate bonds at $1 milliofi

mutual funds at $904.9 thousand foreign debt of $59.6 thousand and Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation preferred stock of $20 thousand

Other investments at cost include Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB stock in the amount of

$2.5 million at December 31 2012 and FHLB and Federal Reserve stock in the amount of $1.8 million

and $3.8 million at December 31 2011 respectively

For the year ended December 31 2012 proceeds from the sale of securities available-for-sale

amounted to $55.8 million gross realized gains amounted to $2.2 million and
gross realized losses

amounted to $2.lmillion For the year ended December 31 2011 proceeds from the sale of securities

available-for-sale amounted to $56.0 million gross realized gains amounted to $2.6 million and gross

realized losses amounted to $2.0 million For the year ended December 31 2010 proceeds from the

sale of securities available-for-sale amounted to $85.5 million gross
realized gains amounted to

$2.5 million and gross realized losses amounted to $1.7 million The tax provision applicable to the net

realized gain was approximately $9.0 thousand $201.0 thousand and $289.0 thousand for 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively
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The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31 2012 by contractual

maturity follow Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have

the right to call or prepay the obligations with or without prepayment penalties

Available-for-sale

Amortized Fair

Dollars in thousands
Cost Value

Due in cne year or less 26725 26722

Due after one year through five years 83068 84630

Due after five years through ten years 30565 31161

Due after ten years
59569 60932

$199927 $203445

Securities with an amortized cost of $29.0 million and fair value of $30.3 million at December 31

2012 were pledged to secure FHLB advances public deposits and securities sold under agreements to

repurchase Securities with an amortized cost of $35.1 million and fair value of $36.6 million at

December 31 201.1 were pledged to secure FHLB advances public deposits demand notes due the

Treasury and securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The following tables show gross unrealized losses and fair values aggregated by investment

category
and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous loss position at

December 31 201.2 and 2011

Less than 12 mouths 12 months or more Total

December 31 2012 Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Dollars in thousands Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Available-for sale securities

Government Sponsored Enterprise

mortgage-backed securities $22662 $233 $4583 13 $27245 $246

Small Business Administration pools 11013 158 2447 13460 163

Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 2363 378 2363 378

State nd local government 2599 46 2599 46

Corporate bonds and other 50 50

Total $36274 $437 $9443 $397 $45717 $834
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Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

December31 2011 Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Dollars in thousands Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Available-for-sale securities

Government Sponsored Enterprise

mortgage-backed securities $25113 $163 3269 24 $28382 187

Small Business Administration poois 6108 38 2203 8311 44

Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 574 13275 2158 13849 2161

Corporate bonds and other 940 60 524 26 1464 86

Total $32735 $264 $19271 $2214 $52006 $2478

Government Sponsored Enterprise Mortgage Backed Securities Throughout 2008 and

continuing through 2012 the bond markets and many institutional holders of bonds came under great

deal of stress partially as result of increasing delinquencies
in the mortgage lending market At

December 31 2012 the Company owns mortgage-backed securities MBSs including collateralized

mortgage obligations CMOs with an amortized cost of $107 million and approximate fair value of

$109 million issued by government sponsored enterprises GSE5 Current economic conditions

have impacted MBSs issued by GSEs such as the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation the

FHLMC and the Federal National Mortgage Association the FNMA These entities have

experienced increasing delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the MBSs and CMOs As of

December 31 2012 arid 2011 all of the MBSs issued by GSEs are classified as Available for Sale

Unrealized losses on certain of these investments are not considered to other than temporary

and we have the intent and ability to hold these until they mature or recover the current book value

The contractual cash flows of the investments are guaranteed by the GSE Accordingly it is expected

that the securities would not be settled at price less than the amortized cost of the Companys

investment Because the Company does not intend to sell these securities and it is more likely than not

the Company will not be required sell these securities before recovery of its amortized cost which

may be maturity the Company does not consider the investments to be other-than temporarily

impaired at December 31 2012

Non-agency Mortgage Backed Securities The Company also holds private label mortgage-backed

securities PLMBS5 including CMOs at December 31 2012 with an amortized cost of $3.1 million

and approximate fair value of $2 million Management monitors each of these scurities on

quarterly basis to identify any deterioration in the credit quality collateral values and credit support

underlying the investments

During the year ended December 31 2012 the Company identified two PLMBs with fair value

of $2.5 million that it considered other-than-temporarily-impaired As prescribed by the Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC 320-10-65 the

Company recognized an impairment charge in earnings of $199 thousand credit component during

year ended December 31 2012 The $199.8 thousand represents the estimated credit losses on these

securities for the year ended December 31 2012 One of the securities identified as

other-than-temporarily-impaired during the year ended December 31 2012 was subsequently sold after

the impairment was recognized
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For the year ended December 31 2011 we recognized impairment charges on three PLMBs

investment$ whereby the credit cunponent was $293 thousand recognized through earnings and the

amount recogniz through other comprehensive income amounted to $35 thousand For the year

ended December 31 2010 we recognized impairment charges on nine PLMBs investments whereby the

credit component was $477 thousand recognized through earnings and the amount recognized through

other comprehensive income amounted to $2.9 million For the year ended December 31 2009 we

recognized the credit impairment charges of $491 thousand as the credit component on five PLMBs
securities through earnings and $1.7 million through other comprehensive income. The PLMBs

continue to experience high levels of delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the PLMBSs
and as result we could experience additional OTTI in the future

As prescribOd by FASB ASC 32040-35 for the year ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the

Company recognized the credit component of OTTI on debt securities in earnings and the non-credit

component in other comprehensive income OCIfor those securities in which the Company does not

intend to sell the security and it more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell the

securities prior to recovery

Corporate Bonds Corporate bonds held by the Company are reviewed on quarterly basis to

identify downgrades by rating agencies as well as deterioration of the underlying collateral or the

issuers ability to service the debt obligation As of December 31 2012 the Company owns one

corporate bond which is rated above investment grade The Company does not consider this investment

to be OTT

During the twelve months.ended December 31 2011 the Company recorded $4.0 thousand in

OTII charges on preferred term security During the third quarter of 2011 the Company sold this

security and recorded an additional realized loss of $455 thousand This loss was offset by the sale of

two municipal bonds with recorded gain of $488 thousand During the fourth quarter of 2011 the

Company sold an SLM Corporation bond that was rated below investment grade with book value of

$1 million and recorded $73.0 thousand loss

State and Local Governments and Other Management monitors these securities on quarterly

basis to identify any deterioration in the credit quality Included in the monitoring is review of the

credit rating financial analysis and certain demographic data on the underlying issuer The Company

does not consider these securities to be OTTI at December 31 2012

During the bears ended December 31 2012 December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 the

Company record OTT losses on held-to maturity and available-for sale securities as follows

Dollars in thousands

Total OTTI charge realized and unrealized

OTII cognized in other comprehensive income non credit

component

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings credit component

Notes to Consolidatçd Financial Statements Continued

Year ended

December 31
2012

Available-

for-sale

securities

$415

215

$200
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Year ended

December 31
2011

Available-

for-sale

Dollars in thousands
securities

Total OFFI charge realized and unrealized $262

0TH recognized in other comprehensive income non-credit

component 35

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings credit component $297

Dollars in thousands

Total OTTI charge realized and unrealized

0Th recognized in other comprehensive income non-credit component

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings credit component $108
______

During 2012 2011 and 2010 OTTIs occurred for which only portion is attributed to credit loss

and recognized in earnings The remainder was reported in other comprehensive income The following

is roll forward analysis of amounts relating to credit losses on debt securities recognized in earnings

during the twelve months ended December 31 2012 December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

For the year ended December 31 2012 there were two non-agency mortgage backed securities

with OTTI in which $200 thousand of OTII representing the credit loss was recognized in earnings

The Company uses third party to obtain information about the structure in order to assist in

determining how the underlying cash flows will be distributed to each security The following is

roilforward analysis of amounts relating to credit losses recognized in earnings

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Other-than-temporary-impairment not previously recognized

Additional increase for which an other-than-temporary

impairment was previously recognized related to credit losses

Realized losses during the period

Other-than-temporary impairment previously recognized in

securities sold

Transfer to available-for-sale

2012 2011 2010

Available Available Available Held to

for Sale for Sale for Sale maturity

930 2143 545 132

Balance related to credit losses on debt securities at end of

period
271 930 $2143

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Year ended December 31 2010

Held-to

maturity

mortgage- Available-

backed for-sale

securities securities

$108 $4310

2858

$1452

Total

4418

2858

$1560

173 50 291

27 247 1161

180 1510 94

679
240

98

10

240
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In evaluating the non-agency mortgage backed securities relevant assumptions such as prepayment

rate default rate and loss severity on loan level basis are used in determining the expected recovery

of the contraºfual cash flows The balance of the underlying portfolio cash flows are evaluated using

ongoing assumptions for loss seventies prepayment rates and default rates The ongoing assumptions
for average prepayment rate default rate and severity used in the valuations were approximately

13.7% 8.0% and 50.4% respectively The underlying collateral on substantially all of these securities

are fixed rate residential first mortgages located throughout the United States The underlying

collateral includes various percentages of owner-occupied as well as investment related single-family

2-4 family and condominium residential properties The securities were purchased at various discounts

to par value Based on the assumptions used in valuing the securities the existing discount and

remaining subordinated collateral provide coverage against future credit losses on the downgraded

securities for which no OTTI has been recognized

The following table summarizes as of December 31 2012 the number of CUSIPs carrying value

and fair value of the non-agency mortgage-backed securities/CMOs by credit rating The credit rating

reflects the lowest credit rating by any major rating agency All non-agency mortgage-backed /CMO
securities are in he super senior or senior tranche

Dollars in thousands

Number
of

Credit Rating CUSIPs

Al

A3

BBB

Baal

Baa2

Below Investment Grade

Total

Par

Value

264

380

320

Amortized

Cost

264

380

320

72

231

71

97

1653

$3088

Fair

Value

268

374

318

71

225

72
96

1291

$2715

72
231

71

97

2008

$3443
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Loans summarized by category are as follows

Dollars in thousands

Commercial financial and agricultural

Real estate

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home equity

Other ______ ______

Total _______ _______

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows

Dollars in thousands

Balance at the beginning of year

Provision for loan losses

Charged off loans

Recoveries _____ ______ ______

Balance at end of year ______

85

December 31

2012

20924

13052

38892

226575

27173

5495

$332111

2011

20608

11767

38337

220288

27976

5335

$324311

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$4699 4911 4854

496 1420 1878

742 1696 1948
168 64 127

$4621 4699 4911
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The detailed activity in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans

receivable as of and for the
years ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 follows

Real estate Real estate

Real estate Mortgage Mortgage Consumer consumer
Commercial Construction Residential CommerŁial Home equity Other Unallocated Total

338

$20924

37

20887

357 5772

Real estate

Commercial Construction

10

Real estate

Mortgage
Residential

Real estate

Mortgage
Commercial

Dollars in thousands

2012

Allowance for loan

losses

Beginning balance 331 514 1475 521 57 $1801 4699
Charge-oils 258 112 293 79 742
Recoveries 42 86 37 168

Provisions 223 253 140 124 508 496

Ending balance 338 235 1322 400 $17 $2309 4621

Ending balances

Individually evaluated

for impairment

Collectively evaluated

for impairment 235 1322 400 17 2309 4621
Loans receivable

Ending balance-total $13052 $38892 $226575 $27173 $5495 $332111

Ending balances

Individually evaluated

for impairment 6176

Collectively evaluated

for impairment 13052 38535 220803 27173 5485 325935

Consumer Consumer

Dollars in thousands
Home equity Other Unallocated Total

2011

Allowance for loan

losses

Beginning balance

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Provisions

Ending balance

Ending balances

Individually evaluated

for impairment

Collectively evaluated

for impairment 330 514 1474 521 57 1801 4697
Loans receivable

Ending balance-total $20608 $11767 $38337 $220288 $27976 $5335 $324311

Ending balances

Individually evaluated

for impairment 45 622 8667

Collectively evaluated

for impairment $20563 $11767 $37715 $211621 $27976 $5316 $314958

Loans outstanding and available lines of credit to bank directors executive officers and their

related business interests amounted to $10.9 million and $11.3 million at December 31 2012 and 2011
respectively Repayments on these loans during the year ended December 31 2012 were $855 thousand
and loans made amounted to $230 thousand Repayments on these loans during the year ended

681

265

31

116

331

905

905

465

186

230

514

1404

861

932

1475

325

285

476

521

88

99

23

45

57

$1043

758

$1801

4911

1696

64

1420

4699

19 9353
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December 31 2011 were $577 thousand and loans made amounted to $1.2 million Related party loans

are made on substantially the same terms including mterest rates and collateral as those prevailmg at

the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and generally do not invOlve more than

the normal risk of collectability

The following table presents at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 loans mdividually evaluated

and considered impaired under FAS ASC 310 ccounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan

Impairment includes performing troubled debt restructurings

December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011 2010

Total loans considered impaired at year end $6176 $9353 9587

Loans considered impaired for which there is related allowance for loan loss

Outstanding loan balance

Related allowance

Loans considered impaired and previously written down to fair value

Average impaired loans

Amount of interest earned during period of impairment

148$ 378$$ 2$ 96

$6176 $9205 9209

$6704 $9926 $10576

179 397$ 323
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The following tables are by loan category and present at December 31 2012 and December 31

2011 loans individually evaluated and considere impaired under FAS ASC 310 Accounting by

Creditors for Impairment of Loan Impairment includes performing troubled debt restructurings

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2012

With no allowance recorded

Commercial

Real estate

Construôtion

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home Equity

Other

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Real estate

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home Equity

Other

Total

Commercial

Real estate

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home Equity

Other

178

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Inºôme

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

37 50 53

357 381 442

5772 6162 6188

10 10 21

37 50 53

442

6188

21

$6704

357

5772

10

$6176

381

6162

10

$6603

178

$179
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Unpaid Average Interest

Dollars in thousands
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

December 31 2011 Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

With no allowance recorded

Commercial 12 19 21 --

Reaiestate

Construºtion

Mortgage-residential
622 .650 656

Mortgage-commercial 8552 8975 9066 382

Consumer

Homç Equity

Other
19 19 30

With an allowance recorded

Commercial 33 33 36

Real estate

45 52 57

622 650 656

8667 9090 9183 390

19 19 30

$9353 $9811 $2 $9926 $397

115 115 117

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home Equity

Other

Total

Commercial

Real estate

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home Equity

Other
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The Compan.y categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability
of borrowers to service their debt such as current financial information historical payment experience
credit documentation public information and current economic trends among other factors The
Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk This analysis is performed
on monthly basis The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings

Special Mention Loans classified as special mention have potential weakness that deserves

managements close attention If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in

deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institutions credit position at some
future date Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to
sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Loans so classified
have well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt They are
characterized by the distinct

possibility that the institution will Sustain some loss if the deficiencies

are not corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as

substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in

full on the basis of
currently existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and

improbable

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed mdividually as part of the above described

process are considered to be Pass rated loans As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and
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based on the most recent analysis performed the risk category of loans by class of loans is shown in

the table below As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 no loans were classified as doubtful

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2012
_________ _______ __________ _______ _________

Commercial financial agricultural

Real estate

Construction

Mortgageresidential

Mortgagecommercial
Consumer

Home Equity

Other
_______ _____ ______ _______

Total
_____ ______ _______

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2011

_________ _______ __________ _______ _________

Commercial financial agricultural

Real estate

Construction

Mortgageresidential

Mortgagecommercial
Consumer

Home Equity

Other _______ _____ ______ _______

Total
_______ _____ ______ _______

At December 31 2012 and 2011 non-accrual loans totaled $4.7 million and $5.4 million

respectively The gross interest income which would have been recorded under the original terms of the

non-accrual loans amounted to $352 thousand and $224 thousand in 2012 and 2011 respectively

Interest recorded on non-accrual loans in 2012 and 2011 amounted to $112 thousand and

$163 .thousand respectively

Troubled debt restructurings TDRs that are still accruing are included in impaired loans at

December 31 2012 and 2011 amounted to $1.5 million and $3.9 million respectively Interest earned

during 2012 and 2011 on these loans amounted to $123 thousand and $234 thousand respectively

Loans greater than 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest at December 31 2012 and 2011

amounted to $55 thousand and $25 thousand respectively

Special

Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

20826 27 71 20924

8595 2047 2410 13052

36493 1677 722 38892

208825 3803 13947 226575

26604 124 445 27173

5475 17 5495

$306818 $7681 $17612 $332111

Special

Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

19827 499 282 20608

6764 5003 11767

37063 305 969 38337

200984 8009 11295 220288

27692 38 246 27976

5311 19 5335

$297641 $8856 $17814 $324311
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The following tables are by loan category and present loans past due and on non-accrual status as

of December 31 2012 and December 312011

Commercial 17

Real estate

Construction

Mortgageresiclential

Mortgagecommercial

Consumer

Home equity

Other
_____

Total

211

32

$1198

Greater than

90 Days and Total Past

__________
Accruing Nonaccrual Due Current Total Loans

1O7 85 209 20715 20924

13052 13052

357 1046 37846 38892

55 4263 5843 220732 226575

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2012

30- 59Days 60-89 Days
Past Due Past Due

311

627

Dollars in thousands
December 31 2011

$55

10

$4715

26962

5446

$324753

27173

5495

$332111

Greater than

90 Days and

Accruing Nonaccrual

12

623

25 4749

$25

19

$5403

378

898

211

_____ _____
49

_______ _______

______
$1390

______
$7358

________ ________

30 59 Days 60 89 Days Total Past

Past Due Past Due Due Current Total Loans

Commercial 147 123 282 20326 20608

Real estate

Construction 11767 11767

Mortgageresidential 391 95 1109 37228 38337

Mortgagecommercial 1382 966 7122 213166 220288

Consumer

Home equity 45 45 27931 27976
Other 42 18

_____
79 5256 5335

Total $2007 $1202 $8637 $315674 $324311

As result adopting the aimndments in ASU 2011-02 the Bàæk reassessed all restructurings

that occurred on or after the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption January 2011 to determine

whether they are considered TDRs under the amended guidance The Bank identified as TDRs certain

loans for which the allowance for loan losses had previously been measured under general allowance

methodology Upon identiIing those loans as TDRs the Bank identified them as impaired under the

guidance in ASC 310-10-35 The amendments in ASU 2011-02 require prospective application of the

impairment measurement guidance in ASC 10-10-35 for those loans newly identified as impaired At

December 31 2012 the recorded investment in loans for which the allowance was previously measured

under general allowance methodology and are now impaired under ASC 310-10-35 was $3.3 million

and no allowance for loan losses was associated with those loans At December 31 2011 the recorded

investment in loans for which the allowance was previously measured under general allowance

methodology and are now impaired under ASC 310-10-35 was $7.7 million and $2 thousand

allowance for loan losses was associated with those loans
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The following table by loan categoly present loans determined to be TDRs during the twelve

month period ended December 31 2012

For the twelve months ended December 31 2012

Pre-Modification Post-Modification

Number Outstanding Outstanding
of Recorded Recorded

Contracts Investment Investment

During the twelve month ended December 31 2012 the Company modified three loans that were

considered to be TDRs The payment and interest rate were lowered for two of these loans and the

payment was modified to interest only for one loan

The following table by loan category present loans determined to be TDRs during the twelve

month period ended December 31 2011

For the twelve months ended December 31 2011

Pre-Modification Post-Modification

Number Outstanding Outstanding
of Recorded Recorded

Contracts Investment Investment

741 741

43 43

784 784

$3138 $3138

$3138 $3138

$3922 $3922

froubled Debt

Restructurings

Dollars in thousands
________

Nonaccrual

MortgageCommercial
Total nonaccrual

Accrual

MortgageCommercial

Total Accrual

Total TDRs

40

40

$596

$596

$636

$40

40

$596

$596

$636

froubled Debt

Restructurings

Dollars in thousands

Nonaccrual

MortgageCommercial

Commercial Industrial

Total nonaccrual

Accrual

MortgageCommercial
Total Accrual

TOtal TDRs

During the twelve months ended December 31 2011 the Bank modified eight loans that were

considered to be TDRs The payment and interest rate were lowered for six of these loans the

payment was lowered for one loan and for one loan the business and guarantor were released One

TDR that had been restructured with lower payment in 2011 was paid out during the fourth quarter

of 2011

The following table by loan category presents loans determined to be TDRs in the twelve months

ended December 31 2011 that had payment defaults during the period ended December 31 2011

There were no loans determined to be TDRs in the twelve months ended December 31 2012 that
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subsequently defaulted during the twelve month period ended December31 2012 Defaulted loans are

those loans that are greater than 89 days past due

For the twelve months

Troubled Debt
ended December 31

Restructurings that
2011

subsequently defaulted Number

this period
of Recorded

Dollars in thousands Contracts Investment

MortgageCommercial $704

Commercial Industrial 11

Total TDRs $715

During the twelve month period ended December 31 2011 five nonaccrual loans that had

previously been restructured had payment defaults

In the determination of the allowance for loan losses all TDRs are reviewed to ensure that one of

the three proper valuation methods fair market value of the collateral present value of cash flows or

observable market price is adhered to All non-accrual loans are written down to its corresponding

collateral value Al TDR accruing loans and where the loan balance exceeds the
present

value of cash

flow will have specific allocation All nonaccrual loans are considered impaired Under ASC 310-10

loan is impaired when it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due including

both principal and interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Note 6FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company adopted FASB ASC Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 which defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or

paid to transfer Liability an exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date ASC 820 also

establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels

of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for

similar assets or liabilities quoted prices
in markets that are not active or

other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable

market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and

that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities Level

assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is

determined using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or

similar techniques as well as instruments for which the determination of

fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation
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FASB ASC 825-10-50 Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires the

Company to disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments Fair value estimates methods

and assumptions are set forth below

Cash and short term investmentsThe carrying amount of these financial instruments cash and

due from banks interest-bearing bank balances federal funds sold and securities purchased under

agreements to resell approximates fair value All mature within 90 days and do not present

unanticipated credit concerns and are classified as Level

Investment SecuritiesMeasurement is on recurring basis based upon quoted market prices if

available If quoted market prices are not available fair values are measured using independent pricing

models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows

adjusted for prepayment assumptions projected credit losses and liquidity Level securities include

those traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange or by dealers or brokers in

active over-the-counter markets Level securities include mortgage-backed securities issued both by

government sponsored enterprises and private label mortgage-backed securities Generally these fair

values are priced from established pricing models Level securities include corporate debt obligations

and assetbacked securities that are less liquid or for which there is an inactive market

Loans Held for SaleThe Company originates fixed rate residential loans on servicing released

basis in the secondary market Loans closed but not yet settled with an investor are carried in the

Companys loans held for sale portfolio These loans are fixed rate residential loans that have been

originated in the Companys name and have closed Virtually all of these loans have commitments to be

purchased by investors at locked in by price with the investors on the same day that the loan was

locked in with the Companys customers Therefore these loans present very
little market risk for the

Company and are classified as Level The carrying amount of these loans approximates fair value

LoansThe fair value of loans are estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the

current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the

same remaining maturities and are classified as Level As discount rates are based on current loan

rates as well as management estimates the fair values presented may not be indicative of the value

negotiated in an actual sale Loans which are deemed to be impaired are primarily valued on

nonrecurring basis at the fair value of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are

obtained using independent appraisals which the Company considers to be Level inputs

Other Real Estate Owned OREOOREO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value

on non-recurring basis Fair value is based upon independent appraisals or managements estimation

of the collateral and is considered Level measurement

Accrued Interest ReceivableThe fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as

Level

Interest rate swapThe fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as Level

DepositsThe fair value of demand deposits savings accounts and money market accounts is the

amount payable on demand at the reporting date The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of

deposits is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of

similar remaining maturities Deposits are classified as Level
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Federal Home Loan Bank AdvancesFair value is estimated based on discounted cash flows using

current market rates for borrowings with similar terms and are classified as Level

Short Term BorrowingsThe carrying value of short term borrowings securities sold under

agreements to repurchase and demand notes to the Treasury approximates fair value These are

classified as Level

Junior Subordinated DebenturesThe fair values of junior subordinated debentures is estimated

by using discounted cash flow analyses based on incremental borrowing rates for similar types of

instruments These are classified as Level

Accrued Interest PayableThe fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as

Level

Commitments to Extend CreditThe fair value of these commitments is immaterial because their

underlying interest rates approximate market

The carrying amount and estimated fair value by classification Level of the CQmpanys financial

instruments as of ecember 31 2012 are as follows

December 31 2012

Carrying

Fair Value

Dollars in thousands
Amount Total Level Level Leyel

Financial Assets

Cash and short term investments $18296 $18296 $18296

Available-for-sale securities 203445 203445 914 202114 417

Other investments at cost 2527 2527
Loans held for sale 9658 9658 9658
Net loans receivable 327490 328893 322717 6176
Accrued interest 2098 2098 2098

Interest rate swap 338 338 338
Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing demand 97526 97526 97526

NOW and money market accounts 150874 150874 150874

Savings 41100 41100 41100

Time deposits 185477 187313 187313

Total deposits 474977 476813 476813

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 36344 41977 41977

Short term borrowings 15900 15900 15900
Junior subordinated debentures 15464 15464 15464
Accrued interest payable 1029 1029 1029
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The
carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Companys financial instruments as of

December 31 2011 are as follows

Dollars in thousands _________ _________

Financial Assets

Cash and short term investments

Available-for-sale securities

Other investments at cost

Loans held for sale

Net loans receivable

Accrued interest

Interest rate swap

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing demand 83572 83572
NOW and money market accounts 136483 136483

Savings 34048 34048
Time deposits 210482 214437

Total deposits 464585 468540
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 43862 50238
Short term borrowings 13616 13616
Junior subordinated debentures 17913 17913

Accrued interest payable 1624 1624

The following table reflects the changes in fair values for the years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 and where these changes are included in the income statement

2012 2011 2010

Non-interest Non-interest Non-interest

income income income
Fair-value Fair-value Fair-value

adjustment adjustment adjustment
gain loss gain loss gain loss

58 166 581
$58 $166 $581

The following table summarizes quantitative disclosures about the fair value for each category of

assets carried at fair value as .of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 that are measured on
recurring basis There were no liabilities carried at fair value as of December 31 2012 or December 31
2011 that are measured on recurring basis

December 31 2011

Carrying Fair

Amount Value

$16492 16492

201032 201032

5637

3725 3725

319612 319505

1914 1914

602 602

Dollars in thousands

Interest rate swap

Total
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Dollars in thousands

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

____________
Level_2

1534

112144

54993

32373

_______
1070

202114

$202114

Dollars in thousands

Description ______________ _______________ ____________

Available for sale securities

Government sponsored

enterplises

Mortgage backed securities

Small Business Administration

securities

State and local government

Corporate and other securities
________ _______

Interest rate cap/floor ________ _______

Total

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

December 31 Assets

2012 Level

1534

112144

Description

Available for sale securities

Government sponsored

enterprises

Mortgage-backed securities

Small Business Administration

securities

State and local government

Corporate and other securities

Interest rate cap/swap

Total

54993

32373

2401

203445

338

$203107

914

914

$914

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

417

417

338

79

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

602

$602

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other

Identical Observable

December 31 Assets Inputs

2011 Level Level

34

141631

36479

20488

2400

201032

602

$200430

34

141631

36479

20488

926 1474

926 200106

$926 $200106
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The following tables reconcile the changes in Level financial instruments for the year ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 measured on recurring basis

2012

Interest rate Corporate Preferred

Dollars in thousands Swap Stock

Beginning Balance December 31 2011 $602
Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings 58
Included in other comprehensive income

Purchases issuances and settlements 322 417

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Ending Balance December 31 2012 $338 417

2011

Dollars in thousands

Beginning Balance December 31 2010

Total gains or losses realized/

unrealized

Included in earnings

Included in other comprehensive

income

Purchases issuances and settlements

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Ending Balance December 31 2011

During the fourth quarter of 2011 state and local government bond with fair value of

$579 thousand was called and removed from the Level category

The following tables summarize quantitative disclosures about the fair value for each category of

assets carried at fair value as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 that are measured on

non-recurring basis There were no liabilities carried at fair value and measured on non-recurring
basis at December 31 2012 and 2011

State and local

government
securities

625

625

Corporate and other Interest rate

securities Swap

$182 $778

103 166

79
342

$602
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Description
____________ ______________ __________

Impaired loans

Commercial Industrial

Real estate

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial

Consumer

Home equity

Other
________

Total impaired _______

Other real estate owned

Construction

Mortgage-residential

Mortgage-commercial
_______

Total other real estate

owned ______

Total

100

Dollars in thousands

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

2012 Level Level Level

37 .$ 37

357 357

5772 5772

10

6176

301

488

3198

10

6176

301

488

3198

3987

$10163

3987

$10163



Other real estate owned
Construction 2156

Mortgage-residential 4278

Mortgage-commercial 917

Total other real estate

owned

Total

622

8666

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPQRTION
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Note 6FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT Continued

Dollars in thousands

Significant

Other Significant

Observable Unobservable

Inputs Inputs

Level Level

44

December 31
Description 2011

Impaired loans

Commercial Industrial 44

Real estate

Mortgage-residential 622

Mortgage-commercial 8666

Consumer

Home equity

Other 19

Total impaired 9351

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical Assets

Level
_________

19

9351

2156

4278
917

7351

$16702

7351

$16702

The Company has large percentage of loans with real estate serving as collateral Loans which

are deemed to be impaired are primarily valued on nonrecurring basis at the fair value of the

underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are obtained using independent appraisals which the

Company considers to be Level inputs Third party appraisals are generally obtained when loan is

identified as being impaired or at the time it is transferred to OREO This internal process would

consist of evaluating the underlying collateral to independently obtained comparable properties With

respect to less complex or smaller credits an internal evaluation may be performed Generally the

independent and internal evaluations are updated annually Factors considered determining the fair

value include geographic sales trends the value of comparable surrounding properties as well as the

condition of the property The aggregate amount of impaired loans was $6.2 million and $9.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2012 and year ended December 31 2011 respectively
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For Level assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring or non-recurring basis as of

December 31 2012 the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements were as

follows

comparable

non-listed securities

$3987 Appraisal Value

Comparison Sales

Other estimates

Note 7PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following

Dollars in thousands

Land

Premises

Equipment

Significant Significant

Observable Unobservable

Inputs Inputs

Weighted 3.20%

Average Credit

Factor

Appraisals and Appraisals

or sales of discounted 6%

comparable to 16% for sales

properties commissions

and other

holding cost

Appraisals

discounted 6%

to 16% for sales

commissions

and other

holding cost

December 31

2012 2011

5297 .5467

13990 13990

7187 6381

26474 25838

9216 8355

$17258 $17483

Valuation Technique

Fair Value as of

December 31
2012

388

417

Discounted cash

flows

Dollars in thousands

Interest Rate Swap

Preferred stock

OREO

Impaired loans

Estimation based on Comparable

transactions

n/a

$6176 Appraisal Value Appraisals and

or sales of

comparable

properties

Accumulated depreciation

Provision for depreciation included in operating expenses for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 amounted to $862 thousand $841 thousand and $882 thousand respectively
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Intangible assets excluding goodwill consisted of the following

December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011

Core deposit premiums gross carrying amount 3438 3438
Other intangibles 646 646

4084 4084
Accumulated amortization 3924 3719
Net 160 365

Amortization of the intangibles amounted to $204 thousand $517 thousand and $621 thousand the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Amortization of the intangibles is

scheduled to be as follows

Dollars in thousands

2013 160

$160

The acquisition of two financial advisory firms in 2008 resulted in recognition of $646 thousand in

an intangible asset related to the customer list The intangible asset is being amortized on straight

line basis over five years

As result of the acquisition of Palmetto South mortgage on July 31 2011 we have recorded

goodwill in the amount of $571 thousand Beginning in 2012 and each year thereafter this goodwill

will be tested for impairment

Bank-owned life insurance provides benefits to various existing officers The carrying value of all

existing policies at December 31 2012 and 2011 was $10 million and $11 million respectively

Note 9OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

The following summarizes the activity in the other real estate owned for the
years

ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

December 31

In thousands
2012 2011

Balancebeginning of year $7351 $6904
Additionsforeclosures 2770 3889
Writedowns 317 261

Sales 5817 3181

Balance end of year $3987 $7351
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At December 31 2012 the scheduled maturities of Certificates of Deposits are as follows

Dollars in thousands

2013 $109239

2014 32423

2015 14793

2016 16240

2017 12780

Thereafter

$185477

Interest paid cm certificates of deposits of $100 thousand or more totaled $1 million $1 million

and $2.1 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Deposits from directors and executive officers and their related interests at December 31 2012 and

2011 amounted to approximately $4.8 million and $4.4 million respectively

The amount of overdrafts classified as loans at December 31 2012 and 2011 were $142 thousand

and $119 thousand respectively

Note 11SECURI SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE AND OTHER

BORROWED MONEY

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days from the

transaction date The weighted average interest rate at December 31 2012 and 2011 was 021% and

25% respectively
The maximum month-end balance dunng 2012 and 2011 was $17 million and

$18.1 million respectively The average outstanding balance during the years ended December 31 2012

and 2011 amounted to $15.5 million and $15.9 million respectively with an average rate paid of 0.23%

and 0.25% respectively Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are collateralized by securities

with fair market value of 100% of the agreement

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had unused short-term lines of credit totaling

$20.0 million

Note 12ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances frörnthe FHLB at December 31 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following

December 31

In thousands
2012 2011

Maturing
Amount Rate Amount Rate

2012 1000 0.36%

2013 4000 3.58%

2015 4000 4.22% 6500 4.09%

After five years 32344 4.13% 32362 4.13%

$36344 4.14% $43862 3.99%
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As collateral for its advances the Company has pledged in the form of blanket liens eligible loans

in the amount of $43.8 million at December 31 2012 In addition securities with fair value of

approximately $3.8 million have been pledged as collateral for advances as of December 31 2012 As

collateral for its advances the Company has pledged in the form of blanket liens eligible loans in the

amount of $58.1 million at December 31 2011 In addition securities with fair value of approximately

$15.9 million have been pledged as collateral for advances as of December 31 2011 Advances are

subject to prepayment penalties The average advances during 2012 and 2011 were $38.8 million and

$56.0 million respectively The average interest rate for 2012 and 2011 was 4.15% and 3.84%

respectively The maximum outstanding amount at any month end was $42 million and $64 million

for 2012 and 2011

During the years ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 the Company prepaid

advances in the amount of $9.1 million and $14.0 million respectively and realized losses on the early

extinguishment of $217 thousand and $188 thousand respectively The Company did not prepay any

advances for the year ended December 31 2010

Note 13JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT

On September 16 2004 FCC Capital Trust Trust wholly owned unconsolidated subsidiary

of the Company issued and sold floating rate securities having an aggregate liquidation amount of

$15.0 million The Trust securities accrue and pay distributions quaiterly at rate per annum equal to

LIBOR plus 257 basis points The distributions are cumulative and payable in arrears The Company

has the right subject to events of default to defer payntentsof interest on the Trust secuiities for

period not to exceed 20 consecutive quarters provided no extension can extend beyond the maturity

date of September 16 2034 The Trust securities are mandatorily redeemable upon maturity at

September 16 2034 If the Trust securities are redeemed on or after September 16 2009 the

redemption price will be 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest The Trust

security were eligible to be redeemed in whole but not in part at any time prior to September 16 2009

following an occurrence of tax event capital treatment event or investment company event

Currently these securities qualify under risk-based capital guidelines as Tier capital subject to certain

limitations The Company has no current intention to exercise its right to defer payments of interest on

the Trust securities

On December 16 2011 the Company sold 2500 Units the Units with each Unit consisting of

an 8.75% Subordinated Note due in 2019 $1000 principal amount collectively the Notes and

Warrant to purchase 43 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price equal to $5.90

per share collectively the Warrants to certain accredited investors including directors and

executive officers of the Company for an aggregate purchase price of $2.5 million Interest on the

Notes is payable quarterly on February 15 May 15 August 15 and November 15 of each year

commencing on February 15 2012 at rate of 8.75% per annum Proceeds were retained by the

Company and available to pay dividends on the Companys common and preferred stock interest on

the Notes and dividends on the Companys trust preferred securities and for general corporate and

banking purposes On November 15 2012 the Company redeemed the $2.5 million of Notes at par

plus accrued but unpaid interest to the redemption date The Warrants to purchase 107500 shares are

immediately exercisable and will automatically expire on December 16 2019 The number of shares of

common stock of the Company for which and the price per share at which Warrant is exercisable
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are subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events including without limitation stock

split stock dividend or merger as provided in the Warrant

Note 14INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense benefit for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2Olland 2010 consists of the

following

Year ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011 2010

current

Federal $136

State 284 142 102

284 142 238

Deferred

Federal 1336 1315 327

State

1336 1315 327

Income tax expense benefit $1620 $1457 $565

Reconciliation from expected federal tax expense to effective income tax expense benefit for the

periods indicated are as follows

Year ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011 2010

Expected federal income tax expense $1900 $1625 822

State income tax net of federal benefit 187 112 67

Tax exempt interest 182 29 52
Increase in cash surrender value lifeinsurance 130 59 131
Valuation allowance 35 97

Other 155 227 238

$1620 $1457 565
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The following is summary of the tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant

portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011

Assets

Allowance for loan losses

Excess tax basis of deductible intangible assets

Net operating loss carry forward

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities

Compensation expense deferred for tax purposes

Fair value adjustment on interest rate swap agreement

Deferred loss on other than temporary impairment charges

Interest on nonaccrual loans

Tax credit carry-forwards

Excess discount accretion on securities for tax purposes

Other _____ _____

Total deferred tax asset

Valuation reserve _____ ______

Total deferred tax asset net of valuation reserve
______ _____

Liabilities

Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation

Excess tax basis of non-deductible intangible assets

Excess financial reporting basis of assets acquired

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities

Other _____ _____

Total deferred tax liabilities 2351 1909

Net deferred tax asset recognized $3414 $5478

At December 31 2012 there is $132 thousand valuation allowance that relates to deferred tax

benefits for contribution carry forwards and capital loss carry forwards At December 31 2012 the

Company has net operating loss carry
forwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately

$5 million available to offset future taxable income through 2031 The ultimate realization of deferred

tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income dunng the periods in which the

temporary differences become deductible Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred

income tax liabilities projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies making this

assessment Additional amounts of these deferred tax assets considered to be realizable could be

reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are

reduced Durmg 2010 the Company recognized OTTI charges on certain investment securities in the

amount of $13 million which resulted recognition
of $4 million deferred tax asset at

December 31 2010 These losses were not deductible until the securities were either sold or deemed

worthless During 2011 and 2012 sigmficant portion of those mvestments that created the deferred

tax asset were sold and as result created an $8.0 million taxable loss The remaining $5.0 million tax

$1609
121

1699

$1598

121

3277

767 736

115 205

257 471

99 109

829 410

360

401 232

5897 7519

132 132

5765 7387

118

11

956

1266

126

42

1O14

705

22
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net operating loss can be carried forward until the year ended 2031 The net deferred asset is included

in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets

portion cf the change in the net deferred tax asset relates to unrealized gains and losses on

securities available-for-sale The change in the tax expense related to the chan5ge in unrealized losses on

these securities of $564 thousand has been recorded directly to shareholders equity The balapce in the

change in net deferred tax asset results from the current period deferred tax expense of $1.3 million

Tax returns for 2010 and subsequent years are subject to examination by taxing authorities

Note 15COMMITMENTS CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank
party to financial instruments with off balance sheet risk in the normal course of

business to meet the
financing needs of its customers These financial instruments include commitments

to extend credit These instruments involve to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the

amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

The Banks exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the

financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of

these instrumenls The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as for on-balance

sheet mstrumenls At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Bank had commitments to extend credit

including lines of credit of $53 million and $40 million respectively

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no

violation of any condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration

dates or other tc rmination clauses and may require payment of fee Since commitments may expire

without being drawn upon the total commitments do not necessarily represent future cash

requirements The Bank evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case by case basis The

amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit is based on

managements credit evaluation of the party Collateral held varies but may include inventory property

and equipment residential real estate and income producing commercial properties

The primary market area served by the Bank is Lexington Richiand Newberry and Kershaw

Counties within the Midlands of South carolina Management closely monitors its credit concentrations

and attempts to diversifr the portfolio within its primary market area The Company considers

concentrations of credit risk to exist when pursuant to regulatory guidelines the amounts loaned to

multiple borrow rs engaged in similar business activities represent 25% or more of the Banks risk

based capital or approximately $15 million Based on this criteria the Bank had four such

concentrations at December 31 2012 including $82 million 24 7% of total loans to private

households $45 million 13 8% of total loans to lessors of residential properties $62 million

18 7% of total loans to lessors of non residential properties and $26 million 1% of total loans to

religious organizations As reflected above private households make up 24 7% of total loans and

equate to approximately 133 1% of total regulatory capital The risk in this portfolio is diversified over

large number of loans approximately 2065 Commercial real estate loans and commercial

construction loans represent $237 rn1lion or 72 1% of the portfolio Approximately $76 million or

31 7% of the tol al commercial real estate loans are owner occupied which can tend to reduce the risk

associated with these credits Although the Banks loan portfolio as well as existing commitments
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reflects the diversity of its primary market area substantial portion of its debtors ability to honor

their contracts is dependent upon the economic stability of the area

The nature of the business of the company and bank may at times result in certain amount of

litigation The bank is involved in certajn litigation that is considered incidental to the normal conduct

of business Management believes that the liabilities if any resulting from the proceedings will not

have material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position consolidated results of operations

or consolidated cash flows of the company

At December 31 2012 the Bank has entered into the
following interest rate swap agreement

Dollars in thousands cap/swap Contract Expiration Fair Value

Notional Amount Description Rüte Date Date 12/31/2012

$10000 Interest Rate Swap 3.66% fixed 10/8/2008 tO/8/2013 $338

The Bank entered into five year interest rate swap agreement on October 2008 The swap

agreement has $10.0 million notional amount The Bank will receive variable rate of interest on the

notional amount based on three month LIBOR rate and pay fixed rate interest of 3.66% The

contract was entered into to protect us from the negative impact of rising intrestrates The Banks

exposure to credit risk is limited to the ability of the counterparty to make potential future payments

required pursuant to the agreement The Banks exposure to market risk of lossixlimitecL to the

changes in the market value of the swap between reporting periods The fair value of the cOnttact was

$338 thousand and $602 thousand as of December 31 2012 and December31 2011 respectively

The change in fair value of the ontract recognized in earnings during 2012 2011 and 2010 was
$58 thousand $166 thousand and $581 thousand respectively The Tair value Of thecontract is

calculated based on the
present value Over the remaining- term of the coritrªet of the difference

between the five year swap rate multiplied by the notional amount at the reporting date and the fixed

interest rate of 3.66% multiplied by the notional amount of the contract.-
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summary of the components of other non-interest expense is as follows

Year ended December 31

Dollars in thousands
2012 2011 2010

Data processing
479 472 414

Supplies
138 178 150

Telephone
297 307 302

Courier 72 66 63

Correspondent services 168 193 97

Insurance 209 213 220

Postage
172 174 181

Loss on Limited partnership interest 194 119 119

Director fees 312 319 264

Professional fees 745 1040 1068

Other 692 666 624

$3478 $3747 $3502

Note 17STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK

The Company has adopted stock option plan whereby shares have been reserved for issuance by

the Company upon the grant of stock options or restricted stock awards At December 31 2012 and

20 11 the Company had 307779 and 340640 shares respectively reserved for future grants The

350000 shares reserved were approved by shareholders at the 2011 annual meeting The plan provides

for the grant of options to key employees and directors as determined by stock option committee

made up of at.least two members of the board of directors Options are exercisable for period of ten

years from date of grant

Stock option transactions for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 are summarized

as follows

Weighted-

Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate

Average Contractual Intrinsic Value

Shares Exercise Price Term ºars in thousands

Outstanding December 31 2010 188441 13.28 1.70

Forfeited 113419 9.30

Outstanding December 31 2011 75022 19.69 3.03

Forfeited
_______

Outstanding December 31 2012 75022 19.69 2.03
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Stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31 2012 are as follows

Number of Option Weighted Average

Shares Remaining Weighted

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Average Exercise

Low/High and Exercisable Life Years Price

$12.35 1619 0.95 $12.35

$14.21 $16.70 9903 2.26 14.46

$19.00 $22.50 63500 2.02 20.22

75022 203 $1929

In 2012 each non employee director received 604 common shares of restricted stock connection

with their overall compensation plan total of 7852 shares were issued to these directors at value

of $8.27 per share All of these shares vested on January 2013

In 2012 25009 restricted shares were issued to executive officers in connection with the Banks

incentive compensation plan The shares were valued at $8 27 per share and cliff vest on May 15 2015

The assumption used in the calculation of these amounts for the awards granted in 2012 is based on

the price of the Companys common stock on the grant date

Warrants to purchase 107500 shares at $5.90 per share were issued in connection with the issuing

of subordinated debt on November 15 2011 See Note 13-Junior Subordinated Debt

Note 18EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company mamtains 401k plan which covers substantially all employees Participants may

contribute up to the maximum allowed by the regulations During the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 the plan expense amounted to $276 thousand $254 thousand and $233 thousand

respectively Prior to July 2007 the Company matched 50% of an employees contribution up to

6.00% participant contribution Beginning July 2007 the Company began matching 100% of the

employees contribution up to 3% and 50% of the employees contribution on the next 2% of the

employees contribution

The Company acquired various single premium life insurance policies from DutchFork that are

used to indirectly fund fringe benefits to certain employees and officers salary continuation plan was

established payable to two key individuals upon attainment of age 63 The plan provides for monthly

benefits of $2500 each for seventeen years Other plans acquired were supplemental life insurance

covering certain key employees No expense is accrued relative to these benefits as the life insurance

covers the anticipated payout with the Company receiving the remainder thereby recovering its

investment in the policies In 2006 the Company established salary continuation plan which covers six

additional key officers The plan provides for monthly benefits upon normal retirement age of varying

amounts for period of fifteen years Additional single premium life insurance policies were purchased

in 2006 in the amount of $3 million designed to offset the funding of these additional fringe benefits

The cash surrender value at December 31 2012 and 2011 of all bank owned life insurance was

$10 million and $11 million respectively Expenses accrued for the anticipated benefits under the

salary continuation plans for the year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 amounted to

$261 thousand $161 thousand and $275 thousand respectively
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Note 19EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following reconciles the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per

common share computation

Year ended December 31

Amounts in thousands
2012 2011 2010

Numerator Included in basic and diluted earnings per

share $3292 $2654 $190

Denominator

Weighted average common shares outstanding for

Basic earnings common per share

Dilutive securities

WarrantsTreasury stock method

Diluted common share outstanding

The ave rage market price used in calculating assumed

number of shares 98 34 78

For the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 options are not dilutive in calculating

diluted earnings per share In 2010 2011 and 2012 the exercise price on all outstanding options

exceeded the average market price for the year

On December 16 2011 there were 107500 warrants issued in connection with the issuance

$2.5 million in subordinated debt See Note 13 These warrants were not dilutive to earnings per share

for the period ended December 31 2011 As shown above the warrants were dilutive for the period

ended December 31 2012

Note 20SHAREHOLDERS EQUIT CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND DiVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS

The Company and Bank are subject to various federal and state regulatory requirements including

regulatory capitalL requirements Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain

mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions that if undertaken could have direct

material effect on the Companys financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the

regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Company and Bank must meet specific capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Companys assets liabilities and certain off-balance

sheet items as caLculated under regulatory accounting practices The Company and Bank capital

amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about

components risk weighting and other factors The Company and Bank are required to maintain

minimum Tier capital total risked based capital and Tier leverage ratios of 4% 8% and 4%
respectively

On April 2010 the Bank entered into the Formal Agreement with the 0CC the Banks then

primary federal regulator the Formal Agreement The Formal Agreement was based on the findings

of the 0CC during 2009 on site examination of the Bank As reflected in the Formal Agreement the

OCCs primary concern with the Bank is driven by the rating agencies downgrades of non agency MBS
in its investment portfolio The Formal Agreement did not require any adjustment to the Banks

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATIONs
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4144 3287 3262

28

4172 3287 3262
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balance sheet or income statement nor did it change the Banks well capitalized status The 0CC
did however separately establish the following individual minimum capital ratios for the Bank Tier

leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00% Tier risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00% and Total

risk-based capital ratio of at least 12.00%

Following recent on-site examination of the Bank the 0CC notified the Bank that effective

June 28 2012 the Bank is no longer subject to the Formal Agreement As of December 31 2012 the

Bank had reduced the non-agency MBSs in its investment portfolio that are rated below investment

grade to $1.3 million

The 0CC also notified the Bank that effective June 28 2012 it was no longer subject to the

Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24 2010 In addition the

Federal Reserve notified the Company That effective July 10 2012 the Company is no longer subject

to the MOU

On July 27 2012 the Company closed public offering of common stock The offering resulted in

the issuance of total of 875 million shares of common stock at $8 00 per share resulting in gross

proceeds of $15 million as compared to our original target of $125 million and net proceeds of

approximately $13.8 million

On August 29 2012 we repurchased $3.78 million of our Series Preferred Stock from the U.S

Treasury through modified Dutch auction process This represented 3780 shares of the original

11350 shares of preferred stock sold to the US Treasury in November 2008 pursuant to the TARP
Capital Purchase Program The remaining 7570 shares of Series Preferred Stock were purchased in

this same auction by third party investors unrelated to the Company The auction price was $982.83per

share As of October 2012 we have repurchased or redeemed the remaining shares of Series

Preferred Stock from the third parts investors The financial results reported for the year ended

December 31 2012 include non-recurring expenses related to this matter in theamount of

$119 thousand including attorney costs accounting costs and Treasury underwriter costs In

addition we recorded charge for the remaining discount accretion of approximately $159 thousand

On October 2012 we completed planned conversion from national bank charter to state

bank charter as non-member bank The conversion is expected reduce certain regulatory examination

costs in the future

On October 25 2012 the Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the warrant to purchase

195915 shares of our common stock issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP Capital

Purchase Program The repurchase price agreed upon was $297500 The repurchase transaction was

completed on November 2012 The repurchase of the warrant from the Treasury has completely

eliminated the Treasurys equity stake in the Company through the TARP Capital Purchase Program

On November 15 2012 we redeemed the $2.5 million of outstanding subordinated debt at par

which was issued in November 2011
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The actual capital amounts and ratios as well as minimum amounts for each regulatory defined

category
for the Bank and the Company are as follows

Required to be

Categorized

Actual CapLe Reqwred to be

Dollars in thousands
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Well Capitalized

December 31 2012

First Community Corporation

Tier Capital $63381 17.33% $14628 4.00% N/A N/A

Total Risked Based Capital 67963 18.58% 29258 8.00% N/A N/A

Tier Leverage 63381 10.63% 23846 4.00% N/A N/A

First Community Bank

Tier Capital $61588 16.87% $14605 4.00% $21907 6.00%

Total Risked Based Capital 66158 18.12% 29209 8.00% 36512 10.00%

Tier Leverage 61588 10.34% 23824 4.00% 29779 5.00%

December 31 2011

First Community Corporation

Tier Capital $56207 15.33% $14668 4.00% N/A N/A

Total Risked Based Capital 63256 17.25% 29335 8.00% N/A N/A

Tier Leverage 56207 9.40% 23909 4.00% N/A N/A

First Community Bank

Tier Capital $55377 15.12% $14647 4.00% $21971 6.00%

Total Risked Based Capital 59971 16.38% 29294 8.00% 36616 10.00%

Tier Leverage 55377 9.27% 23898 4.00% 29873 5.00%

The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement regarding the payment of dividends by

bank holding companies In general the Federal Reserve Board policies provide that dividends should

be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the bank

holding company appears consistent with the organizations capital needs asset quality and overall

financial condition The Federal Reserve Boards policies also require that bank holding company

serve as source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available

resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of financial stress or

adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital raising capacity to obtain additional

resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary In addition under the prompt corrective

action regulations the ability of bank holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if

subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the

Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions

The Companys principal source of cash flow including cash flow to pay dividends to its

shareholders is dividends it receives from the Bank Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to the

Banks payment of dividends to the Company As South Carolina chartered bank the Bank is subject

to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay Unless otherwise instructed by the

S.C Board the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking regulations to pay cash

dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior approval of the
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S.C Board The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin bank from engaging in what

in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business including the

payment of dividend under certain circumstances

If our Bank is not permitted to pay cash dividends to the Company it is unlikely that we would be

able to pay cash dividends on our common stock Moreover holders of our common stock are entitled

to receive dividends only when and if declared by our board of directors Although we have historically

paid cash dividends on our common stock we are not required to do so and our board of directors

could reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend in the future

Note 21PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The balance sheets statements of operations and cash flows for First Community Corporation

Parent Only follow

Condensed Balance Sheets

At December 31

2012 2011

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash on deposit
1417 3547

Securities purchased under agreement to resell 128 128

Investment securities available-for-sale 429 12

Investment in bank subsidiary
67055 61713

Other
767 608

Total assets
$69796 $66008

Liabilities

Subordinated notes payable
2449

Junior subordinated debentures 15464 15464

Other
149 199

Total liabilities
15613 18112

Shareholders equity
54183 47896

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
$69796 $66008
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Dollars in thousands

Income

Interesi and dividend income

Equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiary

Dividend income from bank subsidiary

Total income

Expenses

Interest expense

Other

Total expense

Income before taxes

Income tax benefit

Net income

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
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Condensed Statenents of Operations

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

1$ $52
4313 3782 2270

320

4634 3791 2322

658 446 443

301 239 177

959 685 620

3675 3106 1702

293 218 152

$3968 $3324 $1854

116



FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemepts Continued

Note 21PARENT COMPANY FINANCL4L INFORMATION Continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before

financial statements are issued Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet including the

estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements Non-recognized subsequent events

are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but

arose after that date Management has reviewed events occurring through the date the financial

statements were available to be issued and no subsequent events occurred requiring accrual or

disclosure

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

3968 3324 $1854

4313 3782
.90 232

435 226

2270
72

344

Dollars in thouSands

Cash flows from
operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used

by operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary

Other-net

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of available-for salesecurities

Maturity of available-for-sale securities

Other-net

Net cash provided used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of subordmated note payable

Repayment of subordinated note payable

Dividends paid Common stock

Preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Redemption of preferred stock

Redemption of stock warrants

Net cash provided used in financing activities

417
1250

76 52
417 1174 52

2500

2500
605 525 522
475 670 664

13885 182 101

11073
510

1278 1487 1085

2130 2435 1481
3547 1112 2593

1417 3547 $1112

Note 22SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Note 23QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

The following provides quarterly financial data for 2012 and 2011 dollars in thousands except per

share amounts

Fourth Third Second First

2012 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Interest income $5468 $5650 $5840 $6044

Net interest income 4285 4329 4451 .4509

Provision for loan losses 80 115 71 230

Gain loss on sale of securities 88 35 38 11

Other-than-temporary-impairment
200

Income before income taxes 1338 1793 1327 1130

Net income 1021 1220 928 799

Preferred stock dividends
339 168 169

Net income available to common shareholders $1021 881 760 630

Net income per share basic 0.20 0.19 0.23 0.19

Net income per share diluted 0.19 0.19 0.23 0.19

Fourth Third Second First

2011 Quarter Quarter Qæarter Quarter

Interest income $6238 $6382 $6466 $6440

Net intelest income 4616 4628 4619 4454

Provision for loan losses 310 360 390 360

Gain on sale of securities
301 133 134

Other-than temporary impairment 243 50
Income 1efore income taxes 1565 1398 1020 798

Net income 1071 957 726 570

Preferred stock dividends 168 167 168 167

Net income available to common shareholders... 903 790 $. 558 403

Net income per share basic 0.27 0.24 0.17 0.12

Net income per share diluted 0.27 0.24 0.17 0.12
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report we carried out an evaluation under the

supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure contr9ls and procedures as defined in

Exchange Act Rule 1a-15e Based upon that evaluation our hief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of

December 31 2012 There have been no significant changes in our internal controls over financial

reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or

are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting

The design Of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions

about the likelihood of future events There can be no assurance that any design will succeed

achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions regardless of how remote

Managements Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial

reporting Managements assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2012 is included in Item of this report under the heading Managements Report

on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm

regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation

by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange

Commission that permit us to provide only managements report in this annual report

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our mternal controls over fmancial reporting that occurred during our

most recent fiscal quarter that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal controls over financial reporting

Item 9B Other InformatiOn

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statement

for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22 2013

We have adopted Code of Ethics that applies to our directors executive officers including our

principal executive officer and principal financial officer and employees in accordance with the

Sarbanes-Oxley Corporate Responsibility Act of 2002 The Code of Ethics is available on our web site

at www.firstcommunitysc.com We will disclose any future amendments to or waivers from provisions

of these ethics policies and standards on our website promptly as practicable as and to the extent

required under NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards and applicable SEC rules
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Item 11 Executive CompØnsation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statement

for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22 2013

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The following table sets forth equity compensation plan infonnation at December 31 2012 All

information has been adjusted for any stock splits and stock dividends effected during the penods

presented

Equi Compensation elan bfoation

ber of securities

remaining available for

Number of securities future issuance under
to be issued Weighted average eqmty compensation

upon exercise of exercise price of plans excluding
outstanding options outstanding options securities reflected

warrants and rights warrants and rights in columna

$19.69 3O7729

$19.69 307729

Includes 9713 shares with weighted average exercise price
of $13 90 issuable under the First

Community Corporation DeKaib Bankshares Inc Stock Incentive Plan This plan and the

outstanding awards were assumed by us in connection with the merger with DutchFork

Bancshares and DeKalb Bankshares Inc We are not authorized to make any additional

awards under these plans These plans were previously approved by the shareholders of Dutchrork

Bancshares Inc

The additional information required by this Item 12 is set forth under Security Ownership of

Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy

statement for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22 2013

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independerice

The informal required by Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statemcnt

for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22 2013

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statement

for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22 2013

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

a1 Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements are located in Item of this report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for theyears ended December31 2012

2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Changes in SharehOlders Equity for the
years

ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

These schedules have been omitted because they are not required are not applicable or have been

included in our consolidated financial statements

a3 Exhibits

The following exhibits are required to be filed with this Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of

Regulation S-K

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger between First Community Coiporätion and DeKalb

Bankshares Inc dated January 19 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on January 20 2006

22 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between First Community Corporation and DutchFork

Bancshªres Inc dated as of April 12 2004 incorporated by reference to Appendix of the

Form S-4 filed on June 2004

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Companys Registration Statement No 33 86258 on Form S-i

3.2 Bylaws incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Registration Statement

No 33-86258 on Form

Articles of Amendment to the Companys Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation

establishing the terms of the Series Preferred Stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1

to the Companys Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008

Provisions in the Companys Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws defimng the rights of holders

of the Companys Common Stock included in Exhibits 3.1 3.2 and 3.3

42 Form of Series Preferred Stock Certificate with the Umted States Department of the

Treasury dated November 21 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 42 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008

Warrant to Purchase up to 192915 Shares of Common Stock mcorporated by reference to

Exhibit to the Companys Form filed on November 25 2008

10.1 1996 Stock Option Plan and Form of Option Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10 to the Companys Form 10 KSB for the period ended December 31 1995

10.2 First Community Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and Form of Option Agreement

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Form 10-KSB for the period

ended December 31 1998

10.3 First Amendment to the First Community Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Companys Form 10-K for the period ended December 31

2005
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10.4 Divided Reinvestment Plai dated July 2003 incorporated by reference to Form S-31D filed

with the SEC on July 14 2003 File No 333107009

10.5 Employment Consulting and NoncompeteAgreement between First Community $ank N.A
Newberry Federal Savings Bank DutchFork Bancshares Inc and Steve Sligh dated April 12

2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Registration Statement

No 333-116242 on Forth-4

10.6 Employment Consulting and Noncompete Agreement between First Community Bank N.A
Newberry Federal Savings Bank DutchFork Bancshares Inc and Thomas Johnson dated

April 12 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Registration

Statement No 333-116242 on Form S-4

10.7 Amendment No to the Employment Consulting and Noncompete Agreement between First

Community Bank N.A and Steve Sligh dated September 14 2005 incorporated by reference

to Exhibil 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on September 15 2005

10.8 Form of Salary Continuation Agreement dated August 2006 incorporated by referende to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 2006

10.9 Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan approved September 30 2006 and Form

of Deferred Compensation Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to

the Companys Form 8-K filed on October 2006

10.10 Employment Agreement by and between Michael Crapps and First Community Corporation

dated June 17 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K

filed on June 19 2008

10.11 Employment Agreement by and between Joseph Sawyer and First Community Corporation

dated June 17 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K

filed on June 19 2008

10.12 Employment Agreement by and between David Proctor and First Community Corporation

dated June 17 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K

filed on June 19 2008

10.13 Employment Agreement by and between Robin Brown and First Community Corporation

dated June 17 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K

filed on June 19 2008

10.14 Employment Agreement by and between Ted Nissen and First Community Corporation dated

June 17 008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Companys Form filed on

June 19 2008

10.15 Employment Agreement by and between James Leventis and First Community Corporation

dated June 17 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Companys Form

filed on June 19 2008

10 16 Agreement by and between First Community Bank and the Office of the Comptroller of the

Currency incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on

April 2010

10.17 Subordinated Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated December 16 201i incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on December 19 2011

10 18 Form of First Community Corporation Subordinated Note Due 2019 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on December 19 2011
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10.19 Form of First Community Corporation Warrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to

the Companys Form 8-K filed on December 19 2011

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirmElliottDavis LLC

24.1 Power of Attorney contained on the signature page hereto

31.1 Rule 13ª-14a Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

31 Rule 13a-14a Certification of the Chief Fmancial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certifications

99.1 TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 31 C.F.R

Section 30.15

99 TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 31 FR

Section 30.15

101 The following materials from the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2012 formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language XBRL the

Consolidated Balance Sheets as December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 ii Consolidated

Statements of Income for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

iii Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
years

ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 iv Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 and vi Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.1

The Exhibits listed above will be furnished to any security holder free of charge upon written request

to the Corporate Secretary First Community Corporation 5455 Sunset Blvd Lexington South

Carolina 29072

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhibit to

this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are

deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or

12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under

those sections

See listing of Exhibits above and Exhibit List following this Annual Report on Form 10-K for

listing of exhibits filed herewith

Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 Or 15d of the Securities Exchange AØt of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

Michael Crapps

President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below

constitutes and appoints Michael Crapps his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full

power of substitution and resubstitution for him and in his name place and stead in any and all

capacities to sign any and all amendments to this report and to file the same with all exhibits thereto
and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission granting

unto attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and
every act and

thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes
as he might or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that attorney-in-fact and agent
or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title

Direºtor

Director

March 28 2013

Date March 28 2013 FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

By Is MICHAEL .C CRAPPS

Is RICHARD BOGAN

Richard Bogan

Date

Is TI-IoriAs BROWN

Thomas Brown

Is CHIMIN Co

Director

Chimin Chao

Is MIcHAEL CRAPPs

Michael Crapps

Is ANITA EASTER

March 28 2013

March 28 2013

Director President Chief Executive
March 28 2013

Officer Principal Executive Officer

Director March 28 2013
Anita Easter
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Signature
Tile

Is ETHRIDGE

Ethridge

Director March 28 2013

Is MITCHELL WILLOUGHBY

Mitchell Willoughby

Director Vice Chairman of the Board

Director Chairman of the Board

Secretary

Director

Is JOSEPH SAWYER

Joseph Sawyer

Chief Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

March 28 2013

Director March 28 2013Is GEORGE FANN JR

George Fann Jr

Is THOMAS JOHNSON

Thomas Johnson

Is JAMES KITCHENS JR

James Kitchens Jr

Is JAMES LEVENTIS

James Leventis

March 28 2013

Director March 28 2013

March 28 2013

Is ALEXANDER SNIPES JR
Director

Alexander Snipes Jr

Is RODERICK TODD JR

Roderick Todd Jr

Is LORETFA WHITEHEAD

Loretta Whitehead

March 28 2013

March 28 2013

March 28 2013

March 28 2013

Director

Director
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Exhibit List

The following exhibits are required to be filed with this Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of

Regulation S-K

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirmElliott Davis LLC

24.1 Power of Attorney contained on the signature page hereto

31.1 Rule 13a-14a Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14a Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certifications

99.1 TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 31 C.FR
Section 30.15

99.2 TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 31 C.ER
Section 30.15

101 The following materials from the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2012 formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language XBRL the

Consolidated Balance Sheets as December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 ii Consolidated

Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 iii Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
iv Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 and vi Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.1

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are

deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or

12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under

those sections
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